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PART |
Item1. Business
General

Eagle Financial Services, Inc. (the “Company”) isaak holding company that was incorporated in 198he company is headquartered
in Berryville, Virginia and conducts its operatiaimsough its subsidiary, Bank of Clarke County (tBank”). The Bank is chartered under Virginia
law.

The Bank has eleven full-service branches and ome-through only facility. The Bank’s main offige located at 2 East Main Street in
Berryville, Virginia. The Bank opened for business April 1, 1881. The Bank has offices locatedClarke County, Frederick County, Loudoun
County and the City of Winchester. This marketaeelocated in northwestern Virginia. In late 2adr early 2013, the Bank will open its twelfth
branch, servicing Loudoun County.

The Bank offers a wide range of retail and comnagribanking services, including demand, savings tané deposits and consumer,
mortgage and commercial loans. Branded creditscard offered through a larger financial institntind the Bank also has a merchant services
program which allows its commercial customers toeat credit card payments. The Bank has sixteeM Adcations in its trade area and issues
both ATM cards and Debit cards to deposit custom@lgese cards can be used to withdraw cash at Afddts through the Bank's membership in
both regional and national networks. These caatisatso be used to make purchases at retailersaedept transactions through the same regional
and national networks. The Bank offers telephoaeking, internet banking, and mobile banking tociistomers. Internet banking also offers
online bill payment to consumer and commercial @musrs. The Bank offers other commercial deposibat services such as ACH origination
and remote deposit capture.

Eagle Investment Group (“EIG”) offers both a trdspartment and investment services. The trusicgardivision of EIG offers a full
range of personal and retirement plan servicessiwiniclude serving as agent for bill paying andtedy of assets, as investment manager with full
authority or advisor, as trustee or co-trusteetriasts under will or under agreement, as trustddeoinsurance trusts, as guardian or committee, a
agent under a power of attorney, as executor axegutor for estates, as custodian or investmevis@dfor individual retirement plans, and as
trustee or trust advisor for corporate retiremdahg such as profit sharing and 401(k) plans. HOite&erage division of EIG offers a full range of
investment services, which include tax-deferreduities, IRAs and rollovers, mutual funds, retireing@tans, 529 college savings plans, life
insurance, long term care insurance, fixed incamesting, brokerage CDs, and full service or distduokerage services. Non-deposit investment
products are offered through a third party provider

In addition to the Bank, the Company has a whollywed subsidiary, Eagle Financial Statutory Trustvhich was formed in connection
with the issuance of $7,000,000 in trust prefesedurities in 2007. During the second quarterQff72 the outstanding capital securities issued
through Eagle Financial Statutory Trust | were sded and this subsidiary was subsequently dissolvéé Company is also a general partner in a
low income housing project. The Company’s subsydiBank of Clarke County, is a partner in Bank€&itee Shenandoah, LLC, which sells title
insurance, and is an investor in Virginia Bankeisurance Center, LLC, which serves as the brokensurance sales through its member banks.

Employees

The Company, including the Bank, had 48 officef¥) ather full-time and 23 part-time employees (6t full-time equivalent employees)
at December 31, 2011. None of the Company's emptogee represented by a union or covered undeliectdee bargaining agreement. The
Company considers relations with its employeestexxzellent.

Securities and Exchange Commission Filings

The Company maintains an internet websitenatv.bankofclarke.com Shareholders of the Company and the public ncagss, free of
charge, the Company’s periodic and current regartduding annual reports on Form 10-K, quartedparts on Form 10-Q and current reports on
Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports) filih or furnished to the Securities and Excha@gemmission, through the “Investor
Relations” section of the Company’s website. Tdygorts are made available on this website as sepnaaticable following the filing of the reports
with the SEC. The information is free of chargd amy be reviewed, downloaded and printed fromntelesite at any time.

Competition

There is significant competition for both loans ateposits within the Company’s trade area. Cortipetifor loans comes from other
commercial banks, savings banks, credit unions,tgage brokers, finance companies, insurance compamaind other institutional lenders.
Competition for deposits comes from other commétzaaks, savings banks, credit unions, brokeragesfiand other financial institutions. Based
on total deposits at June 30, 2011 as reporteukt&DIC, the Company has 20.7% of the total dep@siits market area, which is the second largest
share behind BB&T. The Company’s market area mhetuClarke County, Frederick County, Loudoun Coamty the City of Winchester.



Supervision and Regulation

General As a bank holding company, the Company is stltfecegulation under the Bank Holding Company 8£1956, as amended,
and the examination and reporting requirementh@fBoard of Governors of the Federal Reserve Systdsa state-chartered commercial bank,
the Bank is subject to regulation, supervision examination by the Virginia State Corporation Cossion’s Bureau of Financial Institutions. It is
also subject to regulation, supervision and exatitindy the Federal Reserve Board. Other federdlsaate laws, including various consumer and
compliance laws, govern the activities of the Battile investments that it makes and the aggregatmumatnof loans that it may grant to one
borrower.

The following sections summarize the significarddial and state laws applicable to the Companyitarslibsidiaries. To the extent that
statutory or regulatory provisions are describé@, description is qualified in its entirety by neflece to that particular statutory or regulatory
provision.

The Bank Holding Company ActUnder the Bank Holding Company Act, the Compengubject to periodic examination by the Federal
Reserve and is required to file periodic reporgarding its operations and any additional infororatthat the Federal Reserve may require.
Activities at the bank holding company level araited to the following:

¢ banking, managing or controlling banks;

« furnishing services to or performing services fersubsidiaries; and

e engaging in other activities that the Federal Reséas determined by regulation or order to belesety related to banking as to be a
proper incident to these activities.

Some of the activities that the Federal Reservedbas determined by regulation to be closely eeldb the business of a bank holding
company include making or servicing loans and djpetypes of leases, performing specific data psso®y services and acting in some
circumstances as a fiduciary or investment or fimgradviser.

With some limited exceptions, the Bank Holding Camyp Act requires every bank holding company to iobtiae prior approval of the
Federal Reserve before:

e acquiring substantially all the assets of any bank;

e acquiring direct or indirect ownership or contrélamy voting shares of any bank if after such asitjon it would own or control more
than 5% of the voting shares of such bank (untesisdady owns or controls the majority of suchrebg or

¢ merging or consolidating with another bank holdaognpany.

In addition, and subject to some exceptions, thekBdolding Company Act and the Change in Bank Ganict, together with their
regulations, require Federal Reserve approval goiany person or company 25% or more of any addissoting securities of the bank holding
company. Prior notice to the Federal Reservedaired if a person acquires 10% or more, but leaa 25%, of any class of voting securities of a
bank or bank holding company and either has ragidtsecurities under Section 12 of the Securitieh&nge Act of 1934 or no other person owns
a greater percentage of that class of voting séesiimmediately after the transaction.

In November 1999, Congress enacted the Gramm-LBhA&y- Act (“GLBA”), which made substantial revigis to the statutory
restrictions separating banking activities fromeotfinancial activities. Under the GLBA, bank hiolg companies that are well-capitalized and
well-managed and meet other conditions can eledietmme “financial holding companies.” As finahdlding companies, they and their
subsidiaries are permitted to acquire or engageréwiously impermissible activities such as inseemnnderwriting, securities underwriting and
distribution, travel agency activities, insurangercy activities, merchant banking and other aawithat the Federal Reserve determines to be
financial in nature or complementary to these @&ats. Financial holding companies continue tasbbject to the overall oversight and supervision
of the Federal Reserve, but the GLBA applies thcept of functional regulation to the activitiesidocted by subsidiaries. For example, insurance
activities would be subject to supervision and fafjon by state insurance authorities. Although @ompany has not elected to become a financial
holding company in order to exercise the broadgvigcpowers provided by the GLBA, the Company n&gct do so in the future.

Payment of DividendsThe Company is a legal entity separate andndisfrom the Bank. The majority of the Companysenues are
from dividends paid to the Company by the Bank.e Bank is subject to laws and regulations thattlime amount of dividends it can pay. In
addition, both the Company and the Bank are sultigecairious regulatory restrictions relating to freyment of dividends, including requirements
to maintain capital at or above regulatory minimun@anking regulators have indicated that bankirganizations should generally pay dividends
only if the organization’s current earnings arefisight to fully fund the dividends and the prospee rate of earnings retention appears consistent
with the organization’s capital needs, asset qualiid overall financial condition. The Company sloet expect that any of these laws, regulations
or policies will materially affect the ability ohe Bank to pay dividends. Refer to Item 5 for &iddal information on dividend restrictions. Dugi
the year ended December 31, 2011, the Bank pa®8,000 in dividends payable to the Company.

The FDIC has the general authority to limit theidénds paid by insured banks if the payment is dgkam unsafe and unsound practice.
The FDIC has indicated that paying dividends thgilete a bank’s capital base to an inadequate ieoeld be an unsound and unsafe banking
practice.

Insurance of Accounts, Assessments and RegulatitimebFDIC The Bank’s deposits are insured up to applictibigs by the FDIC. The
FDIC amended its risk-based assessment system{@d ROwhich, insured institutions are assigned te @f four risk categories based on
supervisory evaluations, regulatory capital lealsl certain other factors. Effective April 1, 20iie assessment base is an institution’s average
consolidated total assets less average tangiblégye@ud the initial base assessment rates wilb&igveen 5 and 35 basis points depending on the
institutions risk category, and subject to potdr&tdjustment based on certain long-term unsecuebti@hd brokered deposits held by the institution.



In July 2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform &uhsumer Protection Act permanently raised thedstal maximum deposit insurance
amount to $250,000. The legislation did not chacmeerage for retirement accounts, which contirtodse $250,000. Beginning December 31,
2010 through December 31, 2012, all deposits heldoin-interest bearing transaction accounts at FDB$0red institutions will be fully insured
regardless of the amount in the account.

Capital Requirements The Federal Reserve Board has issued risk-based leverage capital guidelines applicable to banki
organizations that it supervises. Under the rigked capital requirements, the Company and the Bemleach generally required to maintain a
minimum ratio of total capital to risk-weighted atsof 8%. At least half of the total capital mbstcomposed of “Tier 1 Capital”, which is defined
as common equity, retained earnings and qualifygagpetual preferred stock, less certain intangibl@he remainder may consist of “Tier 2
Capital”, which is defined as specific subordinatiedt, some hybrid capital instruments and othedifying preferred stock and a limited amount
of the loan loss allowance. In addition, eachhef federal banking regulatory agencies has estaulimninimum leverage capital requirements for
banking organizations. Under these requiremerdakihg organizations must maintain a minimum ratfoTier 1 capital to adjusted average
quarterly assets equal to 3% to 5%, subject tor&denk regulatory evaluation of an organizatiooverall safety and soundness. In sum, the
capital measures used by the federal banking remgalare as follows:

« the Total Capital ratio, which is the total of TeCapital and Tier 2 Capital;
e the Tier 1 Capital ratio; and
« the leverage ratio.

Under these regulations, a bank will be classiéiedollows:

«  ‘“well capitalized” if it has a Total Capital ratmf 10% or greater, a Tier 1 Capital ratio of 6%goeater, and is not subject to any written
agreement, order, capital directive, or prompt extive action directive by a federal bank regulatagency to meet and maintain a
specific capital level for any capital measure;

« “adequately capitalized” if it has a Total Capitatio of 8% or greater, a Tier 1 Capital ratio &6 4r greater, and a leverage ratio of 4% or
greater — or 3% in certain circumstances — andtisvell capitalized;

« ‘“undercapitalized” if it has a Total Capital ratibless than 8%, a Tier 1 Capital ratio of les1théb - or 3% in certain circumstances;

« ‘“significantly undercapitalized” if it has a Tot@lapital ratio of less than 6%, a Tier 1 Capitaloraff less than 3%, or a leverage ratio of
less than 3%; or

«  “critically undercapitalized” if its tangible eqyits equal to or less than 2% of average quartargible assets.

The risk-based capital standards of the Federaie®Board explicitly identify concentrations oédit risk and the risk arising from non-
traditional activities, as well as an institutiomibility to manage these risks, as important factorbe taken into account by the agency in asggssi
an institution’s overall capital adequacy. Theitdmuidelines also provide that an institutioe)Xposure to a decline in the economic value of its
capital due to changes in interest rates be coreid®y the agency as a factor in evaluating a Ingnéfganization’s capital adequacy.

The Dodd-Frank Act contains a number of provisidealing with capital adequacy of insured depositosjitutions and their holding
companies, which may result in more stringent ehpéquirements. Under the Collins Amendment eoRlodd-Frank Act, federal regulators have
been directed to establish minimum leverage amdlésed capital requirements for, among otheriestibanks and bank holding companies on a
consolidated basis. These minimum requirements bariess than the generally applicable leveragkrésk-based capital requirements established
for insured depository institutions nor quantitativiower than the leverage and risk-based capgtplirements established for insured depository
institutions that were in effect as of July 21, @0These requirements in effect create capitall IBwors for bank holding companies similar to
those in place currently for insured depositoryiingons. The Collins Amendment also excludestipreferred securities issued after May 19,
2010 from being included in Tier 1 capital unldss issuing company is a bank holding company veigls than $500 million in total assets. Trust
preferred securities issued prior to that date edhitinue to count as Tier 1 capital for bank hafdtompanies with less than $15 billion in total
assets, and such securities will be phased oukoflTcapital treatment for bank holding companvéh over $15 billion in total assets over a three-
year period beginning in 2013. Accordingly, then@pany’s trust preferred securities will continuegtalify as Tier 1 capital.

The FDIC may take various corrective actions adaany undercapitalized bank and any bank that failsubmit an acceptable capital
restoration plan or fails to implement a plan atable to the FDIC. These powers include, but arelimited to, requiring the institution to be
recapitalized, prohibiting asset growth, restrigtinterest rates paid, requiring prior approvatapital distributions by any bank holding company
that controls the institution, requiring divestiuy the institution of its subsidiaries or by ti@ding company of the institution itself, requinew
election of directors, and requiring the dismissgfadlirectors and officers. The Bank presently raiims sufficient capital to remain well capitalized
under these guidelines.

Other Safety and Soundness RegulatioRsere are a number of obligations and restristilmposed on bank holding companies and their
depository institution subsidiaries by federal lamd regulatory policy that are designed to redwtergial loss exposure to the depositors of such
depository institutions and to the FDIC insurangeds in the event that the depository institut®msolvent or is in danger of becoming insolvent.

For example, under the requirements of the Fed®eakrve Board with respect to bank holding compapgrations, a bank holding company is
required to serve as a source of financial stretgtils subsidiary depository institutions and tomenit resources to support such institutions in
circumstances where it might not do so otherwiseaddition, the “cross-guarantee” provisions afdial law require insured depository institutions
under common control to reimburse the FDIC for lnsg suffered or reasonably anticipated by the F&Y@ result of the insolvency of commonly
controlled insured depository institutions or faryaassistance provided by the FDIC to commonly radled insured depository institutions in

danger of failure. The FDIC may decline to enfaitoe cross-guarantee provision if it determines ghaaiver is in the best interests of the deposit
insurance funds. The FDIC’s claim for reimbursetnemder the cross guarantee provisions is sup&iataims of shareholders of the insured



depository institution or its holding company bsitsubordinate to claims of depositors, secureditorsdand nonaffiliated holders of subordinated
debt of the commonly controlled insured deposiiosfitutions.

Interstate Banking and BranchingCurrent federal law authorizes interstate adjoms of banks and bank holding companies without
geographic limitation. Effective June 1, 1997 amlbheadquartered in one state is authorized tgameith a bank headquartered in another state, as
long as neither of the states had opted out of suteistate merger authority prior to such datdtera bank has established branches in a state
through an interstate merger transaction, the braak establish and acquire additional branches wtlacation in the state where a bank
headquartered in that state could have establishadquired branches under applicable federalade saw.

Monetary Policy The commercial banking business is affectedonbt by general economic conditions but also byrttenetary policies
of the Federal Reserve Board. The instrumentsasfatary policy employed by the Federal Reserve @omiude open market operations in United
States government securities, changes in the discate on member bank borrowing and changes grvesequirements against deposits held by
all federally insured banks. The Federal Reserpar@®s monetary policies have had a significanéafon the operating results of commercial
banks in the past and are expected to continue smdn the future. In view of changing conditionghe national and international economy and in
the money markets, as well as the effect of actipnsonetary fiscal authorities, including the Fedl®eserve Board, no prediction can be made as
to possible future changes in interest rates, dejgegls, loan demand or the business and earmifitiee Bank.

Federal Reserve Systemin 1980, Congress enacted legislation that imgogserve requirements on all depository instingithat
maintain transaction accounts or nonpersonal tieposits. NOW accounts, money market deposit acs@md other types of accounts that permit
payments or transfers to third parties fall withliire definition of transaction accounts and are extthfo these reserve requirements, as are any
nonpersonal time deposits at an institution.

The reserve percentages are subject to adjustmehet-ederal Reserve Board. Because requiretd/essmust be maintained in the form
of vault cash or in a non-interest-bearing accainor on behalf of, a Federal Reserve Bank, tferebf the reserve requirement is to reduce the
amount of the institution’s interest-earning assets

Transactions with Affiliates Transactions between banks and their affiliatesgoverned by Sections 23A and 23B of the Fedesérve
Act. An affiliate of a bank is any bank or entibat controls, is controlled by or is under comneontrol with such bank. Generally, Sections 23A
and 23B (i) limit the extent to which the Bank t& subsidiaries may engage in “covered transactiite any one affiliate to an amount equal to
10% of such institution’s capital stock and surplrsd maintain an aggregate limit on all such tratisns with affiliates to an amount equal to 20%
of such capital stock and surplus, and (ii) reqtirat all such transactions be on terms substbntia¢ same, or at least as favorable, to the
association or subsidiary as those provided to reaffitate. The term “covered transaction” inclgdéhe making of loans, purchase of assets,
issuance of a guarantee and similar other typésw$actions.

Transactions with InsidersThe Federal Reserve Act and related regulaiimp®se specific restrictions on loans to directesscutive
officers and principal shareholders of banks. Urslection 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act, loana director, an executive officer and to a
principal shareholder of a bank, and some affitiaatities of any of the foregoing, may not excaedether with all other outstanding loans to such
person and affiliated entities, the bank’s loarot@ borrower limit. Loans in the aggregate todass and their related interests as a class may not
exceed two times the bank’s unimpaired capital amchpaired surplus until the bank’s total assetsaéqr exceed $100,000,000, at which time the
aggregate is limited to the bank’s unimpaired @@ind unimpaired surplus. Section 22(h) also ipitthloans, above amounts prescribed by the
appropriate federal banking agency, to directorgcetive officers and principal shareholders ofamlb or bank holding company, and their
respective affiliates, unless such loan is apprdmegtdvance by a majority of the board of directofshe bank with any “interested” director not
participating in the voting. The FDIC has presedtihe loan amount, which includes all other outitag loans to such person, as to which such
prior board of director approval is required, ambehe greater of $25,000 or 5% of capital angbksisr (up to $500,000). Section 22(h) requires that
loans to directors, executive officers and printgl@areholders be made on terms and underwritagdsirds substantially the same as offered in
comparable transactions to other persons.

The Dodd-Frank Act also provides that banks may‘potchase an asset from, or sell an asset to'h& besider (or their related interests)
unless (i) the transaction is conducted on maskahs between the parties, and (i) if the propdsmusaction represents more than 10 percent of the
capital stock and surplus of the bank, it has tzmroved in advance by a majority of the bank’s-ierested directors.

Community Reinvestment Adnder the Community Reinvestment Act and relaggnlilations, depository institutions have an aféitive
obligation to assist in meeting the credit needshefr market areas, including low and moderateine areas, consistent with safe and sound
banking practice. The Community Reinvestment &cuires the adoption by each institution of a ComitguReinvestment Act statement for each
of its market areas describing the depository tuistin’s efforts to assist in its community’s credeeds. Depository institutions are periodically
examined for compliance with the Community Reinesit Act and are periodically assigned ratingsis tegard. Banking regulators consider a
depository institution’s Community Reinvestment Aeting when reviewing applications to establistwngranches, undertake new lines of
business, and/or acquire part or all of anotheodiépry institution. An unsatisfactory rating caignificantly delay or even prohibit regulatory
approval of a proposed transaction by a bank hgldompany or its depository institution subsidisrie

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and federal bank requisthave made various changes to the CommunitywB&iment Act. Among other
changes, Community Reinvestment Act agreements pyitate parties must be disclosed and annual tepoust be made to a bank’s primary
federal regulator. A bank holding company will et permitted to become a financial holding compamg no new activities authorized under the
GLBA may be commenced by a holding company or bgrk financial subsidiary if any of its bank sulisits received less than a “satisfactory”
rating in its latest Community Reinvestment Actrekzation.



Fair Lending; Consumer Lawsln addition to the Community Reinvestment Adhey federal and state laws regulate various lendird
consumer aspects of the banking business. Govetahagencies, including the Department of Housind Urban Development, the Federal Trade
Commission and the Department of Justice, haverbeamncerned that prospective borrowers experidisogimination in their efforts to obtain
loans from depository and other lending institusionThese agencies have brought litigation agaiepbsitory institutions alleging discrimination
against borrowers. Many of these suits have betiled, in some cases for material sums, shortfoll &ial.

These governmental agencies have clarified what ¢besider to be lending discrimination and havecgjed various factors that they
will use to determine the existence of lending disimation under the Equal Credit Opportunity Actdethe Fair Housing Act, including evidence
that a lender discriminated on a prohibited basiglence that a lender treated applicants difféydresed on prohibited factors in the absence of
evidence that the treatment was the result of gieguor a conscious intention to discriminate, awdlence that a lender applied an otherwise
neutral non-discriminatory policy uniformly to a@pplicants, but the practice had a discriminatdfgce unless the practice could be justified as a
business necessity.

Banks and other depository institutions are aldgesit to numerous consumer-oriented laws and régnl These laws, which include
the Truth in Lending Act, the Truth in Savings Aitte Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, thetrBiéc Funds Transfer Act, the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act, and the Fair Housing Act, requampliance by depository institutions with variodisclosure requirements and requirements
regulating the availability of funds after depamitthe making of some loans to customers.

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 was signed it} on November 12, 1999. The GLBA covers
a broad range of issues, including a repeal of mbshe restrictions on affiliations among depasitastitutions, securities firms and insurance
companies. The following description summarizeseaof its significant provisions.

The GLBA repeals sections 20 and 32 of the Glasagztl Act, thus permitting unrestricted affiliato between banks and securities
firms. It also permits bank holding companies leceto become financial holding companies. A fiicial holding company may engage in or
acquire companies that engage in a broad rangmafdial services, including securities activitesch as underwriting, dealing, investment,
merchant banking, insurance underwriting, sales lamderage activities. In order to become a fim@nbolding company, the bank holding
company and all of its affiliated depository instibns must be well-capitalized, well-managed amrdehat least a satisfactory Community
Reinvestment Act rating.

The GLBA provides that the states continue to htheeauthority to regulate insurance activities, fmathibits the states in most instances
from preventing or significantly interfering withé ability of a bank, directly or through an affti, to engage in insurance sales, solicitations or
cross-marketing activities. Although the statemegally must regulate bank insurance activitiesinondiscriminatory manner, the states may
continue to adopt and enforce rules that spedgicagulate bank insurance activities in specifieas identified under the law. Under the new law,
the federal bank regulatory agencies adopted inseraonsumer protection regulations that applyatesspractices, solicitations, advertising and
disclosures.

The GLBA adopts a system of functional regulatiorder which the Federal Reserve Board is desigredeithe umbrella regulator for
financial holding companies, but financial holdiogmpany affiliates are principally regulated by dtianal regulators such as the FDIC for state
nonmember bank affiliates, the Securities and BExgaa@Commission for securities affiliates, and sitaserance regulators for insurance affiliates. It
repeals the broad exemption of banks from the diefirs of “broker” and “dealer” for purposes of tBecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
It also identifies a set of specific activitiesclinding traditional bank trust and fiduciary adiies, in which a bank may engage without being
deemed a “broker,” and a set of activities in whactbank may engage without being deemed a “dealédditionally, the new law makes
conforming changes in the definitions of “brokerida“dealer” for purposes of the Investment Compaay of 1940, as amended, and the
Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended.

The GLBA contains extensive customer privacy pribcd@cprovisions. Under these provisions, a finahaistitution must provide to its
customers, both at the inception of the customatiomship and on an annual basis, the instituig@licies and procedures regarding the handling
of customers’ nonpublic personal financial inforroat The new law provides that, except for spedifinited exceptions, an institution may not
provide such personal information to unaffiliatddrd parties unless the institution discloses te tustomer that such information may be so
provided and the customer is given the opportuiitypt out of such disclosure. An institution mmot disclose to a non-affiliated third party, other
than to a consumer reporting agency, customer ataoumbers or other similar account identifiers foarketing purposes. The GLBA also
provides that the states may adopt customer prigemtgctions that are more strict than those coathin the act.

Bank Secrecy ActUnder the Bank Secrecy Act ("BSA"), a finandiadtitution is required to have systems in placelétect certain
transactions, based on the size and nature ofdhsedction. Financial institutions are generadiguired to report cash transactions involving more
than $10,000 to the United States Treasury. Irtiadd financial institutions are required to fitspicious activity reports for transactions that
involve more than $5,000 and which the financiatimtion knows, suspects or has reason to suspeoclyes illegal funds, is designed to evade the
requirements of the BSA or has no lawful purpo§te USA PATRIOT Act, enacted in response to thet&aper 11, 2001 terrorist attacks,
requires bank regulators to consider a financistitition's compliance with the BSA when reviewangplications from a financial institution. As
part of its BSA program, the USA PATRIOT Act alsequires a financial institution to follow recentijmplemented customer identification
procedures when opening accounts for new custoemasto review lists of individuals and entities wa@ prohibited from opening accounts at
financial institutions.



Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200Zhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act represents a comprehensiisian of laws affecting corporate governance,
accounting obligations and corporate reporting. $hebanes-Oxley Act is applicable to all compamigh equity securities registered or that file
reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1%4articular, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act establiskigsnew requirements for audit committees,
including independence, expertise, and resportsgsii(ii) additional responsibilities regardingdincial statements for the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer of the reporting compatiii) new standards for auditors and regulatidraudits; (iv) increased disclosure and reporting
obligations for the reporting company and its dives and executive officers; and (v) new and ineedacivil and criminal penalties for violations of
the securities laws. Many of the provisions wefeaifve immediately while other provisions beconffe&ive over a period of time and are subject
to rulemaking by the SEC. Because the Company’swamstock is registered with the SEC, it is cullsestibject to this Act.

Future Regulatory UncertaintBecause federal and state regulation of finanoititutions changes regularly and is the subjecboktant
legislative debate, the Company cannot forecast feo\eral and state regulation of financial instiins may change in the future and, as a result,
impact our operations. Although Congress and tlée diegislature in recent years have sought tocedbe regulatory burden on financial
institutions with respect to the approval of spedifansactions, the Company fully expects thatfif@ncial institution industry will remain heavily
regulated in the near future and that additionatlar regulations may be adopted further regulaijmegific banking practices.

Incentive Compensatioin June 2010, the Federal Reserve issued a fitaloruincentive compensation policies intendedrnsuee that the
incentive compensation policies of banking orgatioze do not undermine the safety and soundnessabf organizations by encouraging excessive
risk-taking. Banking organizations are instructededview their incentive compensation policiestswee that they do not encourage excessive risk-
taking and implement corrective programs as neetibd. Federal Reserve Board will review, as parthef regular, risk-focused examination
process, the incentive compensation arrangemeritardfing organizations, such as the Bank, thahatélarge, complex banking organizations.”
These reviews will be tailored to each organizabased on the scope and complexity of the orgdaizatactivities and the prevalence of incentive
compensation arrangements. The findings of thersigoey initiatives will be included in reports ekamination. Deficiencies will be incorporated
into the organization’s supervisory ratings, whietm affect the organization’s ability to make asifigins and take other actions.

Dodd-Frank Act.In July 2010, the Dodd-Frank Act was signed intg, lencorporating numerous financial institution uégfory reforms. Many
of these reforms will be implemented over the cews2011 and beyond through regulations to be tedidpy various federal banking and securities
regulatory agencies. The Dodd-Frank Act implemdatseaching reforms of major elements of the riicial landscape, particularly for larger
financial institutions. Many of its provisions dmt directly impact community-based institutionkelithe Bank. For instance, provisions that
regulate derivative transactions and limit derivadi trading activity of federally-insured institutis, enhance supervision of “systemically
significant” institutions, impose new regulatorytlzarity over hedge funds, limit proprietary tradibg banks, and phase-out the eligibility of trust
preferred securities for Tier 1 capital are amadmg provisions that do not directly impact the Baither because of exemptions for institutions
below a certain asset size or because of the natutlee Bank’s operations. Provisions that canigact the Bank include the following:

*  FDIC AssessmentsThe Dodd-Frank Act changes the assessment bagsdfmal deposit insurance from the amount of indaeposits to
average consolidated total assets less its avésagéle equity. In addition, it increases the imimm size of the Deposit Insurance Fund
(“DIF") and eliminates its ceiling, with the burdenthe increase in the minimum size on institusievith more than $10 billion in assets.

*  Deposit InsuranceThe Dodd-Frank Act makes permanent the $250,000 fiamfederal deposit insurance and provides uitdichfederal
deposit insurance until December 31, 2012 for mierést-bearing demand transaction accounts imisalted depository institutions.

* Interest on Demand DepositsThe Dodd- Frank Act also provides that, effectivee oyear after the date of enactment, depository
institutions may pay interest on demand depositduding business transaction and other accounts.

« Interchange FeesThe Dodd-Frank Act requires the Federal Reserget@ cap on debit card interchange fees chargedaiters. While
banks with less than $10 billion in assets, sucthaBank, are exempted from this measure, ik&yithat all banks could be forced by
market pressures to lower their interchange fedaaar potential rejection of their cards by retaile

e Consumer Financial Protection Bureaurhe Dodd-Frank Act centralizes responsibility f@nsumer financial protection by creating a
new agency, the Consumer Financial Protection Byressponsible for implementing federal consumeteution laws, although banks
below $10 billion in assets will continue to be exaed and supervised for compliance with these layvheir federal bank regulator.

¢ Mortgage Lending.New requirements are imposed on mortgage lendiedyding new minimum underwriting standards, prdiohs on
certain yield-spread compensation to mortgage maigirs, special consumer protections for mortgagad that do not meet certain
provision qualifications, prohibitions and limitatis on certain mortgage terms and various new nedddisclosures to mortgage
borrowers.

* Holding Company Capital Level$Bank regulators are required to establish minimapital levels for holding companies that are astea
as stringent as those currently applicable to hamksaddition, all trust preferred securities isdwafter May 19, 2010 will be counted as
Tier 2 capital, but the Company’s currently outsliag trust preferred securities will continue taliy as Tier 1 capital.

« De Novo Interstate Branching\ational and state banks are permitted to estabishovo interstate branches outside of their hstaie,
and bank holding companies and banks must be wpltalized and well managed in order to acquirekbdacated outside their home
state.

e Transactions with AffiliatesSThe Dodd-Frank Act enhances the requirements fdaicetransactions with affiliates under Sectio28d
23B of the Federal Reserve Act, including an exjpenef the definition of “covered transactions” aimdreasing the amount of time for
which collateral requirements regarding covereddaations must be maintained.

« Transactions with Insidersnsider transaction limitations are expanded thiotlge strengthening of loan restrictions to insidand the
expansion of the types of transactions subjecthéo various limits, including derivative transac8pmepurchase agreements, reverse
repurchase agreements and securities lending ooviiog transactions. Restrictions are also placedartain asset sales to and from an
insider to an institution, including requirementstt such sales be on market terms and, in ceriegnnestances, approved by the
institution’s board of directors.

e Corporate GovernanceThe Dodd-Frank Act includes corporate governaneisians that apply to all public companies, not jiusancial
institutions, including with regard to executivengmensation and proxy access to shareholders.



Many aspects of the Dodd-Frank Act are subjectitermaking and will take effect over several years] their impact on the Company or the
financial industry is difficult to predict befor@ish regulations are adopted.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The Company is subject to many risks that coulceezbly affect its future financial condition andfpemance and, therefore, the market
value of its securities. The risk factors applieatn the Company include, but are not limited ®ftilowing:

Difficult market conditions have adversely affectecbur industry.

Dramatic declines in the housing market, fallingnigoprices and increasing foreclosures, and unempoyand under-employment have
negatively impacted the credit performance of estdite related loans and resulted in significaitevdlowns of asset values by financial institutions
These write-downs, initially of asset-backed sdmgibut spreading to other securities and loaage ltaused many financial institutions to seek
additional capital, to reduce or eliminate dividentb merge with larger and stronger institutiond,an some cases, to fail. Reflecting concern
about the stability of the financial markets geitgrand the strength of counterparties, many lesdard institutional investors have reduced or
ceased providing funding to borrowers, includingother financial institutions.  This market turmaind tightening of credit have led to an
increased level of commercial and consumer delingjes, lack of consumer confidence, increased rmamatility and widespread reduction of
business activity generally. The resulting ecormopnessure on consumers and lack of confidendeeifinancial markets has adversely affected our
business and results of operations. Market dewadops may affect consumer confidence levels and caage adverse changes in payment
patterns, causing increases in delinquencies afaliltleates, which may impact our charge-offs anolvision for credit losses. A worsening of
these conditions would likely exacerbate the adveftects of these difficult market conditions anamnd others in the financial institutions industry

The Company’s concentration in loans secured by réaestate may increase its credit losses, which wouhegatively affect our financial
results.

At December 31, 2011, loans secured by real estéded $370,167,000 and represented 90.2% of trep@ny’s loan portfolio. If
adverse changes in the local real estate market e local or national economy continue, borr@vability to pay these loans may be further
impaired, which could impact the Company’s finahgarformance. The Company attempts to limit kpasure to this risk by applying good
underwriting practices at origination, evaluatihg fppraisals used to establish property valuesrautinely monitoring the financial condition of
borrowers. If the value of real estate servinga@hateral for the loan portfolio were to continteedecline materially, a significant part of theufo
portfolio could become under-collateralized. If tlans that are secured by real estate becomelémuthen real estate market conditions are
declining or have declined, in the event of foreal®, the Company may not be able to realize theuatrof collateral that was anticipated at the
time of originating the loan. In that event, thengpany might have to increase the provision fonlwesses, which could have a material adverse
effect on its operating results and financial ctindi

An inadequate allowance for loan losses would reda®ur earnings.

Our earnings are significantly affected by our ipoilo properly originate, underwrite and servicahs. We maintain an allowance for
loan losses based upon many factors, includindoifaving:

. actual loan loss history;

. volume, growth, and composition of the loan poitfpl

« the amount of non-performing loans and the valugheif related collateral;
« the effect of changes in the local real estate etask collateral values;

« the effect of current economic conditions on a tar’s ability to pay; and
«  other factors deemed relevant by management.

These determinations are based upon estimatearthatherently subjective, and their accuracy ddpen the outcome of future events;
therefore, realized losses may differ from currestimates. Changes in economic, operating, aner attnditions, including changes in interest
rates, which are generally beyond our control, @dntrease actual loan losses significantly. Agsult, actual losses could exceed our current
allowance estimate. We cannot provide assurarateotir allowance for loan losses is sufficientdoer actual loan losses should such losses differ
significantly from the current estimates.

In addition, there can be no assurance that otinadelogy for assessing our asset quality will sectin properly identifying impaired
loans or calculating an appropriate loan loss aloee. We could sustain losses if we incorrectbess the creditworthiness of our borrowers or fail
to detect or respond to deterioration in assetityual a timely manner. If our assumptions andgumnts prove to be incorrect and the allowance
for loan losses is inadequate to absorb losse$bank regulatory authorities require us to insethe allowance for loan losses as a part of their
examination process, our earnings and capital doellsignificantly and adversely affected.

The Company’s success depends upon its ability toamage interest rate risk.

The profitability of the Company depends signifitaron its net interest income, which is the difiece between the interest earned on
loans, securities and other interest-earning asaptkthe interest paid on deposits and borrowin@eanges in interest rates will affect the rates
earned on securities and loans and rates paid moside and other borrowings. While the Companyebek that its current interest rate exposure
does not present any significant negative exposuieterest rate changes, it cannot eliminatexfsosure to interest rate risk because the factors
which cause interest rate risk are beyond the Cagipaontrol. These factors include competitiagdral economic, monetary and fiscal policies,
and general economic conditions.



The Company may not be able to successfully manags growth or implement its growth strategy, whichmay adversely affect results of
operations and financial condition.

A key component of the Company’s business stratedgy continue to grow and expand. The Companibtato grow and expand
depends upon its ability to open new branch loaatiattract new deposits to the existing and newdir locations, and identify attractive loan and
investment opportunities. The Company may not lide g0 implement its growth strategy if it is unatib identify attractive markets or branch
locations. Once identified, successfully managingwth will depend on integrating the new branctaltions while maintaining adequate capital,
cost controls and asset quality. As this growitiatsgy is implemented, the Company will incur domstion costs and increased personnel,
occupancy and other operating expenses. Becagse tlosts are incurred before new deposits and lxangenerated, adding new branch locations
will initially decrease earnings, despite efficiexiecution of this strategy.

The Company’s success depends upon its ability tompete effectively in the banking industry.

The Company'’s banking subsidiary faces competiiom banks and other financial institutions, indhglsavings and loan associations,
savings banks, finance companies and credit urfandeposits, loans and other financial servicesinmarket area. Certain divisions within the
banking subsidiary face competition from wealth agement and investment brokerage firms. A numlbghese banks and other financial
institutions are significantly larger and have sahsally greater access to capital and other messy as well as larger lending limits and branch
systems, and offer a wider array of banking sesvic&his competition may reduce or limit our masgand our market share and may adversely
affect our results of operations and financial ¢oonl.

The Company could be adversely affected by economionditions in its market area.

The Company’s branches are located in the couafi€arke, Frederick and Loudoun, and the City dh¥tiester. The current recession
presents numerous challenges to the way we do dsssin Poor economic conditions, which are beyond comtrol, negatively impact the
Company'’s financial condition and performance. Seheonditions influence the volume of loans andditp, the asset quality of the loan portfolio,
and pricing of loans and deposits.

The soundness of other financial institutions coul@ddversely affect us.

Our ability to engage in routine funding transassiccould be adversely affected by the actions awdneercial soundness of other
financial institutions. Financial services instituns are interrelated as a result of trading, radeg counterparty or other relationships. We have
exposure to many different industries and countégs and we routinely execute transactions withnterparties in the financial industry. As a
result, defaults by, or even rumors or questiormiglone or more financial services institutionsthe financial services industry generally, haae |
to market-wide liquidity problems and could leaddeses or defaults by us or by other institutiodany of these transactions expose us to credit
risk in the event of default of our counterpartyctient. In addition, our credit risk may be exdxzed when the collateral held by us cannot be
realized upon or is liquidated at prices not sidfit to recover the full amount of the financiastimment exposure due us. There is no assurance
that any such losses would not materially and ashhgraffect our results of operations.

Government measures to regulate the financial indusy, including the recently enacted Dodd-Frank Act,subject us to increased regulation
and could adversely affect us.

As a financial institution, we are heavily reguthtat the state and federal levels. As a resutheffinancial crisis and related global
economic downturn that began in 2007, we have faaed expect to continue to face, increased pualplitlegislative scrutiny as well as stricter and
more comprehensive regulation of our financial eew practices. In July 2010, the Dodd-Frank Aeswigned into law. The Dodd-Frank Act
includes significant changes in the financial ragpily landscape and will impact all financial ifgions, including the Company and the Bank.
Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act hawegbn to be or will be implemented over the nexesaivmonths and years and will be subject
both to further rulemaking and the discretion oplagable regulatory bodies. Because the ultimatpact of the Dodd-Frank Act will depend on
future regulatory rulemaking and interpretation,e@@not predict the full effect of this legislation our businesses, financial condition or resofits
operations. Among other things, the Dodd-Frank @&l the regulations implemented thereunder caniid debit card interchange fees, increase
FDIC assessments, impose new requirements on rgertgading, and establish more stringent capitflirements on bank holding companies. As
a result of these and other provisions in the DBdik Act, we could experience additional costsyvel$ as limitations on the products and services
we offer and on our ability to efficiently pursuadiness opportunities, which may adversely affecthusinesses, financial condition or results of
operations.

The Company relies heavily on its senior managemetgam and the unexpected loss of key officers coutdiversely affect operations.

The Company believes that its growth and succepsrdks heavily upon the skills of its senior manag@nteam. The Company also
depends on the experience of its subsidiary’s effiand on their relationships with the customeey tserve. The loss of one or more of these
officers could disrupt the Company’s operations amgair its ability to implement its business st@t, which could adversely affect the
Company’s financial condition and performance.



Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2.  Properties
The Company owns or leases buildings which are usedrmal business operations. The following ¢ishtains information about the

business locations of the Company. Informationualtiee functional purpose of the location and whethe location is owned or leased is included
in the list. The Company believes that its prapsrare maintained in good operating condition amedsuitable and adequate for its purposes.

Corporate Headquarters:
2 East Main Street

Berryville, Virginia 22611
County of Clarke

Banking Locations:

108 West Main Street
Boyce, Virginia 22620

202 North Loudoun Street
Winchester, Virginia 22601

400 McNeil Drive
Berryville, Virginia 22611

1508 Senseny Road
Winchester, Virginia 22602

1460 North Frederick Pike
Winchester, Virginia 22602

3360 Valley Pike
Winchester, Virginia 22602

1879 Berryville Pike
Winchester, Virginia 22602

382 Fairfax Pike
Stephens City, Virginia 22655

2555 Pleasant Valley Road
Winchester, Virginia 22601

110 Crock Wells Mill Drive
Winchester, Virginia 22603

21 Main Street
Round Hill, VA 20141

Other Properties:

The main office, owned by the Bank, is a two-stamyilding of brick
construction. It houses a full-service branch fimca including lending
services. In addition, it houses the Bank's Openat Information
Technology, Finance, Human Resources, and Mark&émartments. This
location has an ATM, but no drive-up banking.

This location, owned by the Bank, has a full-sesviobby, including
lending services. It also has drive-up bankingl, amrive-up ATM.

This location, owned by the Bank, is a three-stanigk building. The first
floor houses the branch services, including drigebanking and a drive-up
ATM. The Bank’s loan department is located on $keeond floor, which
includes loan officers, loan operations and caiberst. Eagle Investment
Group is located on the third floor along with avfbusinesses who lease
office space that the Bank does not currently ne€tle basement of this
location serves as a training facility for the Bank

This location, owned by the Bank, offers drive-igmking only. It also has
a drive-up ATM.

This location, owned by the Bank, has a full-sesviobby, including
lending services. It also has drive-up banking addive-up ATM.

This location, owned by the Bank, has a full-sesviobby, including
lending services. It also has drive-up banking adive-up ATM.

This location, owned by the Bank, has a full-sesviobby, including
lending services. It also has drive-up banking addive-up ATM.

The Bank leases the land on which this branch veasstoucted. This
location has a full-service lobby, including lengliservices. It also has
drive-up banking and a drive-up ATM.

This location, owned by the Bank, has a full-sesviobby, including
lending services. It also has drive-up banking addive-up ATM.

This location, owned by the Bank, opened in Julg®@nd replaced the
branch located on Jubal Early Drive. The branch &dull-service lobby,
including lending services. It also has drive-ignking and a drive-up
ATM.

This location, owned by the Bank, has a full-sesviobby, including
lending services. It also has drive-up banking addive-up ATM.

This location, leased by the Bank, opened in 20id ia the bank’s first
branch located in Loudoun County. It has a fullvgee lobby, including
lending services. It also has drive-up banking addive-up ATM.

None



Item 3. Legal Proceedings
There are no material pending legal proceedingghioh the Company is a party or of which the propef the Company is subject.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

None



PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities

The Company’'s common stock is not listed for trgdim a registered exchange. Shares of the comtook sf the Company are traded
on the over-the-counter (OTC) market and quotedhen OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol "EFSIL." eT®TC Bulletin Board provides
information about the common stock to professionatket makers who match sellers with buyers. S@esibrokers can obtain information from
the OTC Bulletin Board when working with client8/hen a client decides to initiate a transactioa,ltoker will contact one of the stock’s market
makers.

The Company has a limited record of trades invguis common stock in the sense of "bid" and "gsftes or in highs and lows. The
effort to accurately disclose trading prices is satbre difficult due to the fact that price perreghiaformation is not required to be disclosedth®
Company when shares of its stock have been solblaers and purchased by others. The table tid@nmon Stock Market Price and Dividend
Data” summarizes the high and low sales pricedafes of the Company’s common stock on the badimdés known to the Company (including
trades through the OTC Bulletin Board) and divideddclared during 2011 and 2010. The Company rotbe aware of the per share price of all
trades made.

Common Stock Market Price and Dividend Data

2011 2010 Dividends Per Share

High Low High Low 2011 2010

1st Quarter $17.54 $16.00 $18.25 $15.75 $0.18 $0.17
2nd Quarter 18.00 15.75 18.25 16.00 0.18 0.17
3rd Quarter 18.25 14.65 18.01 15.82 0.18 0.17
4th Quarter 17.75 16.35 17.75 16.30 0.18 0.18

As of March 7, 2012, the Company had approximategly2 shareholders of record.

The Company has historically paid dividends on artguly basis. The final determination of the tighiamount and payment of dividends
on the Common Stock is at the discretion of the gamy's Board of Directors. Some of the factoreetfhg the payment of dividends on the
Company’s common stock are operating results, @irzucondition, capital adequacy, regulatory reguoients and shareholders returns.

The Company is organized under the Virginia StookpBration Act, which prohibits the payment of &idéend if, after giving it effect,
the corporation would not be able to pay its delstshey become due in the usual course of busiarébghe corporation’s total assets would be less
than the sum of its total liabilities plus the ambthat would be needed, if the corporation werkedalissolved, to satisfy the preferential righismu
dissolution of any preferred shareholders.

The Company is a legal entity separate and disfinat its subsidiaries. Its ability to distributash dividends will depend primarily on
the ability of the Bank to pay dividends to it, i@ Bank is subject to laws and regulations tingit the amount of dividends that it can pay. As a
state member bank, the Bank is subject to ceresirictions imposed by the reserve and capitalirespents of federal and Virginia banking
statutes and regulations. Under Virginia law, akbaray not declare a dividend in excess of its uidéid profits. Additionally, the Bank may not
declare a dividend if the total amount of all deidls, including the proposed dividend, declaredt by any calendar year exceeds the total of its
retained net income of that year to date, combinigd its retained net income of the two precediegng, unless the dividend is approved by the
Federal Reserve.

The Federal Reserve and the state of Virginia hlgegeneral authority to limit the dividends paigibsured banks if the payment is
deemed an unsafe and unsound practice. Both tteeddt¥(irginia and the Federal Reserve have inditdhat paying dividends that deplete a bank’s
capital base to an inadequate level would be aountsand unsafe banking practice. Under the Fed®@sérve’s regulations, the Bank may not
declare or pay any dividend in excess of its nebiime for the current year plus any retained netrivefrom the prior two calendar years. The Bank
may also not declare or pay a dividend withoutapproval of its board and two-thirds of its shatdbrs if the dividend would exceed its undivided
profits, as reported to the Federal Reserve.

In addition, the Company is subject to certain taguy requirements to maintain capital at or abosgulatory minimums. These
regulatory requirements regarding capital affestdividend policies. The Federal Reserve has itelicthat a bank holding company should
generally pay dividends only if its current earrsrage sufficient to fully fund the dividends, ai fprospective rate of earnings retention appears
consistent with the organization’s capital needsetaquality and overall financial condition.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities for the Quaer Ended December 31, 2011
The following table details the Company’s purchaskés common stock during the fourth quarter parg to the Stock Repurchase

Program announced on September 19, 2011. The Gonaehorized 150,000 shares for repurchase uh@eStock Repurchase program. The
Program has an expiration date of June 30, 2012.



Total Number of Shares Maximum Number of

ST r?;?;g;?:;i;g; d Ave r?)g(: ; :;(:epald Purchased as Part of Shares that may Yet Be
Publicly Announced Plan  Purchased Under the Plan
October 1 - October 31, 2011 - $ - - 150,000
November 1 - November 30, 2011 13,963 17.25 13,963 136,037
December 1 - December 31, 2011 1,700 17.50 1,700 134,337
15,663 $ 17.28 15,663 134,337

Stock Performance

The following line graph compares the cumulativialteeturn to the shareholders of the Company ¢oréturns of the NASDAQ Bank
Index and the NASDAQ Composite Index for the last fyears. The amounts in the table representahee of the investment on Decembef' ®1
the year indicated, assuming $100 was initiallyested on December 31, 2006 and the reinvestmatividEnds. See Management Discussion and
Analysis sections Liquidity and Capital Resourced &lote 17, “Restrictions on Dividends, Loans ardi@nces” to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for information on Eagle Financial S\ Inc. ability and intent to pay dividends.
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2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Eagle Financial Senvces, Inc.  $ 100 % 78 $ 57 $ 58 $ 64 $ 68

NASDAQ Bank Index 100 78 59 48 54 47
NASDAQ Composite Index 100 110 65 94 110 108




Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents selected financiabdathich was derived from the Company’s auditedrtial statements for the periods

indicated.

Income Statement Data:

Interest and dividend income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for
loan losses

Noninterest income

Net revenue

Noninterest expenses

Income before income taxes

Applicable income taxes

Net Income

Performance Ratios:

Return on average assets

Return on average equity
Shareholders' equity to assets
Dividend payout ratio
Non-performing loans to total loans
Non-performing assets to total assets

Per Share Data:

Net income, basic

Net income, diluted

Cash dividends declared

Book value

Market price

Average shares outstanding, basic
Average shares outstanding, diluted

Balance Sheet Data:
Total securities

Total loans

Total assets

Total deposits
Shareholders' equity

December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
27,571 $ 27,789 $ 27,453 $ 29,439 $ 31,162
4,805 5,530 6,793 10,512 13,892
22,766 $ 22,259 $ 20,660 $ 18,927 $ 17,270
3,750 6,325 4,350 2,310 550
19,016 $ 15934 % 16,310 $ 16,617 % 16,720
5,585 5,499 4,626 4,609 6,192
24,601 $ 21,433 $ 20,936 $ 21,226 $ 22,912
18,908 16,809 16,480 15,814 15,551
5693 $ 4,624 $ 4,456 $ 5,412 $ 7,361
1,371 1,019 1,015 1,357 2,100
4,322 $ 3,605 $ 3,441 $ 4,055 $ 5,261
0.76% 0.65% 0.65% 0.79% 1.04%
7.73% 6.71% 7.06% 8.81% 12.25%
10.23% 9.63% 9.65% 8.87% 8.90%
54.77% 61.98% 63.02% 52.01% 37.87%
0.62% 2.05% 1.26% .87% 0.00%
0.86% 1.82% %4.47 0.78% 0.04%
131 % 1.11 $ 1.09 $ 1.29 $ 1.70
1.31 1.11 1.08 1.29 1.69
0.72 0.69 0.68 0.67 0.64
17.67 16.50 16.05 14.79 14.57
16.81 16.50 15.75 16.10 22.75
3,292,290 3,243,292 3,177,244 3,136,535 3,101,276
3,299,998 3,250,868 3,184,534 3,143,907 3,113,792
117,654 $ 113,776 $ 101,210 $ 98,919 $ 84,237
410,424 408,449 404,066 390,086 389,661
568,022 558,840 535,385 528,142 507,551
448,465 429,296 398,107 386,527 379,585
58,090 53,829 51,643 46,829 45,178



Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operation

The purpose of this discussion is to focus on thpoitant factors affecting the financial conditioasults of operations, liquidity and
capital resources of Eagle Financial Services, (the “Company”). This discussion should be readdnjunction with the Company's Consolidated
Financial Statements and the Notes to the Congetidginancial Statements presented in Item 8, EiahStatements and Supplementary Data, of
this Form 10-K.

GENERAL

The Company is a bank holding company which owr®d 0f the stock of Bank of Clarke County (the “BgnkAccordingly, the results
of operations for the Company are dependent upemplerations of the Bank. The Bank conducts comialdsanking business which consists of
attracting deposits from the general public ancsating those funds in commercial, consumer andes@lte loans and corporate, municipal and
U.S. government agency securities. The Bank’s siepare insured by the Federal Deposit Insurarampdation to the extent permitted by law.
At December 31, 2011, the Company had total asge$568,022,000, net loans of $401,681,000, totmlodits of $448,465,000 and shareholders'
equity of $58,090,000. The Company’s net income $4322,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011.

MANAGEMENT'S STRATEGY

The Company strives to be an outstanding finanaistitution in its market by building solid sustabie relationships with: (1) its
customers, by providing highly personalized custoservice, a network of conveniently placed brasched ATMs, a competitive variety of
products/services and courteous, professional grepk (2) its employees, by providing generous fitenea positive work environment,
advancement opportunities and incentives to exeegubctations, (3) its communities, by participatinglocal concerns, providing monetary
support, supporting employee volunteerism and piiogiemployment opportunities, and (4) its shareéid, by providing sound profits and returns,
sustainable growth, regular dividends and comngjttsmour local, independent status.

OPERATING STRATEGY

The Bank is a locally owned and managed financigfitution. This allows the Bank to be flexibledaresponsive in the products and
services it offers. The Bank grows primarily bpdéng funds to local residents and businessesatrgetitive price that reflects the inherent rigk o
lending. The Bank attempts to fund these loansutiin deposits gathered from local residents anthbésses. The Bank prices its deposits by
comparing alternative sources of funds and selgdhie lowest cost available. When deposits areadetjuate to fund asset growth, the Bank relies
on borrowings, both short and long term. The Bankimary source of borrowed funds is the Fedehel Loan Bank of Atlanta which offers
numerous terms and rate structures to the Bank.

As interest rates change, the Bank attempts totaiaiits net interest margin. This is accomplisbgathanging the price, terms, and mix
of its financial assets and liabilities. The Baigo earns fees on services provided through Bagéstment Group, which is the Bank’s investment
management division that offers both trust serviged investment sales, mortgage originations amqmbgieoperations. The Bank also incurs
noninterest expenses associated with compensatiptpgees, maintaining and acquiring fixed assetd, @urchasing goods and services necessary
to support its daily operations.

The Bank has a marketing department which seekievelop new business. This is accomplished thr@rgbngoing calling program
whereby account officers visit with existing andqrdial customers to discuss the products andcEndffered. The Bank also utilizes traditional
advertising such as television commercials, rad&® aewspaper ads, and billboards.

LENDING POLICIES

Administration and supervision over the lendinggass is provided by the Bank’s Credit Administrati@epartment. The principal risk
associated with the Bank’s loan portfolio is theditworthiness of its borrowers.  In an effortmi@nage this risk, the Bank’s policy gives loan
amount approval limits to individual loan officdsased on their position and level of experienceed risk is increased or decreased, depending on
the type of loan and prevailing economic conditios consideration of the different types of loanghe portfolio, the risk associated with real
estate mortgage loans, commercial loans and comdoars varies based on employment levels, conseordidence, fluctuations in the value of
real estate and other conditions that affect thi@yabf borrowers to repay debt.

The Company has written policies and procedurdsetp manage credit risk. The Company utilizesam loeview process that includes
formulation of portfolio management strategy, glimes for underwriting standards and risk assessnpeacedures for ongoing identification and
management of credit deterioration, and regulatf@lar reviews to establish loss exposure and toedain compliance with the Company’s
policies.



The Bank uses a tiered approach to approve creditests consisting of individual lending authositi@ senior management loan
committee, and a director loan committee. Lendiimifs for individuals and the Senior Loan Comnttare set by the Board of Directors and are
determined by loan purpose, collateral type, atetival risk rating of the borrower. The highestiuidual authority (Category I) is assigned to the
Bank’s President / Chief Executive Officer, Serlioan Officer and Senior Credit Officer (approvattaarity only). Two officers in Category | may
combine their authority to approve loan requestsbdorowers with credit exposure up to $1,000,000 eorsecured basis and $500,000
unsecured. Officers in Category Il, Ill, IV, V, \dnd VII have lesser authorities and with apprafah Category | officer may extend loans to
borrowers with exposure of $500,000 on a secureiskeand $250,000 unsecured. Loan exposures 6,600,000 may be approved with the
concurrence of two, Category | officers. Loanstwrowers with total credit exposures between $1,@@0 and $3,000,000 are approved by the
Senior Loan Committee consisting of the Presidéhtef Operating Officer, Senior Loan

Officer, Senior Credit Officer, and Chief Financiafficer. Approval of the Senior Loan Committeaesjuired prior to being referred to the
Director Loan Committee for approval. Loans exdeg®3,000,000 and up to the Bank’s legal lendindtican be approved by the Director Loan
Committee consisting of four directors (three dives constituting a forum). The Director’s Loanrfluittee also reviews and approves changes to
the Bank’s Loan Policy as presented by management.

The following sections discuss the major loan aatieg within the total loan portfolio:
One-to-Four-Family Residential Real Estate Lending

Residential lending activity may be generated leyBlank’s loan officer solicitations, referrals Bal estate professionals, and existing or
new bank customers. Loan applications are takea Bank loan officer. As part of the application g@ss, information is gathered concerning
income, employment and credit history of the agpltc The valuation of residential collateral isypded by independent fee appraisers who have
been approved by the Bank’s Directors Loan Committdn connection with residential real estatsmm$gahe Bank requires title insurance, hazard
insurance and, if applicable, flood insurance addition to traditional residential mortgage loaesured by a first or junior lien on the propetihg
Bank offers home equity lines of credit.

Commercial Real Estate Lending

Commercial real estate loans are secured by vatiges of commercial real estate in the Bank’s miadtea, including multi-family
residential buildings, commercial buildings anda&$, small shopping centers and churches. Conmheeal estate loan originations are obtained
through broker referrals, direct solicitation ofvdpers and continued business from customersts kmderwriting of commercial real estate, the
Bank’s loan to original appraised value ratio isgmlly 80% or less. Commercial real estate lemeéintails significant additional risk as compared
with residential mortgage lending. Commercial restiate loans typically involve larger loan balanoascentrated with single borrowers or groups
of related borrowers. Additionally, the repaymefitoans secured by income producing propertiégoically dependent on the successful operation
of a business or a real estate project and thushmagubject, to a greater extent, to adverse dondiin the real estate market or the economy, in
general. The Bank's commercial real estate loanemmdting criteria require an examination of deleingce coverage ratios, the borrower’s
creditworthiness, prior credit history and repuatiand the Bank typically requires personal guaesor endorsements of the borrowers’ principal
owners.

Construction and Land Development Lending

The Bank makes local construction loans, primamdlgidential, and land acquisition and developmean$. The construction loans are
secured by residential houses under constructidntta® underlying land for which the loan was oledin The average life of most construction
loans is less than one year and the Bank offerls fixéd and variable rate interest structures. iFiterest rate structure offered to customers
depends on the total amount of these loans ouisiguaaid the impact of the interest rate structuréh@ Bank's overall interest rate risk. There are
two characteristics of construction lending whichpact its overall risk as compared to residentiartgage lending. First, there is more
concentration risk due to the extension of a ldoge balance through several lines of credit tingls developer or contractor. Second, there is
more collateral risk due to the fact that loan feirede provided to the borrower based upon the atginvalue of the collateral after completion.
This could cause an inaccurate estimate of the atmoeeded to complete construction or an excedsareto-value ratio. To mitigate the risks
associated with construction lending, the Bank gahelimits loan amounts to 80% of the estimatgpraised value of the finished home. The
Bank also obtains a first lien on the property @susity for its construction loans and typicallyjuéres personal guarantees from the borrower’s
principal owners. Finally, the Bank performs insfigns of the construction projects to ensure that percentage of construction completed
correlates with the amount of draws on the constmdine of credit.

Commercial and Industrial Lending

Commercial business loans generally have morethiak residential mortgage loans, but have higheldgi To manage these risks, the
Bank generally obtains appropriate collateral aaspnal guarantees from the borrower’s principah@ns and monitors the financial condition of
its business borrowers. Residential mortgage |lg@merally are made on the basis of the borrowdrilityato make repayment from employment
and other income and are secured by real estatsemadue tends to be readily ascertainable. Inrasiitcommercial business loans typically are
made on the basis of the borrower’s ability to ma#payment from cash flow from its business and smeured by business assets, such as
commercial real estate, accounts receivable, eqripand inventory. As a result, the availabilityfarids for the repayment of commercial business
loans is substantially dependent on the succeigedusiness itself. Furthermore, the collaterakcfammercial business loans may depreciate over
time and generally cannot be appraised with as muetision as residential real estate.



Consumer Lending

The Bank offers various secured and unsecured omrsipans, which include personal installment lggmersonal lines of credit,
automobile loans, and credit card loans. The Banninates its consumer loans within its geographarket area and these loans are generally
made to customers with whom the Bank has an egis@tationship. Consumer loans generally entabhtgr risk than residential mortgage loans,
particularly in the case of consumer loans whiah amsecured or secured by rapidly depreciable sasseh as automobiles. In such cases, any
repossessed collateral on a defaulted consumemi@gmot provide an adequate source of repaymethieodutstanding loan balance as a result of
the greater likelihood of damage, loss or deprigiat Consumer loan collections are dependent etbdrower’s continuing financial stability, and
thus are more likely to be adversely affected tyl@ss, divorce, iliness or personal bankruptcurttffermore, the application of various federal and
state laws, including federal and state bankruatay insolvency laws, may limit the amount which barrecovered on such loans.

The underwriting standards employed by the Banlcfmrsumer loans include a determination of theieg@pi's payment history on other
debts and an assessment of ability to meet existitigations and payments on the proposed loare sthbility of the applicant’'s monthly income
may be determined by verification of gross montinigome from primary employment, and from any vahfe secondary income. Although
creditworthiness of the applicant is the primarysideration, the underwriting process also includesanalysis of the value of the security in
relation to the proposed loan amount.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Company are preparaccordance with accounting principles gengradicepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). The financial information contatheiithin these statements is, to a significant mixtbased on measurements of the financial
effects of transactions and events that have afreadurred. A variety of factors could affect thiéimate value that is obtained when earning
income, recognizing an expense, recovering an assetieving a liability. The Company uses higtal loss factors as one element in determining
the inherent loss that may be present in the laatfghio. Actual losses could differ significantfyjom the historical factors that are used. In
addition, GAAP itself may change from one previgustceptable method to another method. Althoughettonomics of the transactions would be
the same, the timing of events that would impaettthnsactions could change.

The allowance for loan losses is an estimate ofdbges that may be sustained in the Company’s poafolio. As required by GAAP,
the allowance for loan losses is accrued when tdwurrence is probable and they can be estimatgdhat impairment losses be accrued based on
the differences between the loan balance and thee \af its collateral, the present value of futwash flows, or the price established in the
secondary market. The Company's allowance for loases has three basic components: the genesalaate, the specific allowance and the
unallocated allowance. Each of these componemtstesmined based upon estimates that can andashgelwhen actual events occur. The general
allowance uses historical experience factors tiones¢ future losses and, as a result, the estinaatexiint of losses can differ significantly from the
actual amount of losses which would be incurredhm future. However, the potential for significatifferences is mitigated by continuously
updating the loss history of the Company. The ifigeallowance is based upon the evaluation of gjegnpaired loans on which a loss may be
realized. Factors such as past due history, yidipay, and collateral value are used to identifyse loans on which a loss may be realized. Each
of these loans is then classified as to how musk Is estimated to be realized on its dispositidhe sum of the losses on the individual loans
becomes the Company's specific allowance. Thisga®is inherently subjective and actual losses lmagreater than or less than the estimated
specific allowance. The unallocated allowance wagst losses that are attributable to various ecanewents which may affect a certain loan type
within the loan portfolio or a certain industrial geographic sector within the Company's markes. thfe loans, which are affected by these events,
are identified or losses are experienced on thaslaghich are affected by these events, they willrdfiected within the specific or formula
allowances. Note 1 to the Consolidated Finandiale®nents presented in Item 8, Financial StatensrdsSupplementary Data, of the 2011 Form
10-K, provides additional information related te thllowance for loan losses.



FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Company makes forward looking statements mrport that are subject to risks and uncertaintiehese forward looking statements
include statements regarding our profitabilityuiidjty, allowance for loan losses, interest ratesgévity, market risk, growth strategy, and finaic
and other goals. The words “believes,” “expectsay,” “will,” “should,” “projects,” “contemplates, “anticipates,” “forecasts,” “intends,” or other
similar words or terms are intended to identifyward looking statements. These forward lookingestents are subject to significant uncertainties
because they are based upon or are affected mygantiuding:

« difficult market conditions in our industry;

« unprecedented levels of market volatility;

. effects of soundness of other financial institusion

e uncertain outcome of recently enacted legislatiostabilize the U.S. financial system;

«  potential impact on us of recently enacted legisfat

« the ability to successfully manage growth or impdetngrowth strategies if the Bank is unable to ifigmttractive markets, locations
or opportunities to expand in the future;

«  competition with other banks and financial institns, and companies outside of the banking industgjuding those companies that
have substantially greater access to capital amer oésources;

¢ the successful management of interest rate risk;

« risks inherent in making loans such as repaymeks tand fluctuating collateral values;

* changes in general economic and business conditiche market area;

« reliance on the management team, including théhil attract and retain key personnel;

« changes in interest rates and interest rate psjicie

¢ maintaining capital levels adequate to support gnpw

¢ maintaining cost controls and asset qualities asbranches are opened or acquired;

* demand, development and acceptance of new produndtservices;

«  problems with technology utilized by the Bank;

« changing trends in customer profiles and behavior;

« changes in banking and other laws and regulatimd;

e other factors described in Item 1A., “Risk Factbahove.

Because of these uncertainties, actual future teegudy be materially different from the resultsigaded by these forward looking statements. In
addition, past results of operations do not neciggadicate future results.



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Net Income

Net income for 2011 was $4,322,000, an increas®7df7,000 or 19.9% over 2010’s net income of $3@0&, Net income for 2010
increased $164,000 or 4.8% from 2009’s net incofr®3p441,000. Diluted earnings per share were$1$3.11, and $1.08 for 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively.

Return on average assets (ROA) measures how efficilne Company uses its assets to produce netriac Some issues reflected within
this efficiency include the Company’s asset mixyding sources, pricing, fee generation, and costreb The ROA of the Company, on an
annualized basis, was 0.76%, 0.65%, and 0.65%0fbt,2010, and 2009, respectively.

Return on average equity (ROE) measures the utdizaf shareholders’ equity in generating net imeo This measurement is affected
by the same factors as ROA with consideration @ hauch of the Company’'s assets are funded by theebblders. The ROE for the Company
was 7.73%, 6.71%, and 7.06% for 2011, 2010, an®,2@B8pectively.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income, the difference between tottdrest income and total interest expense, is tirapany's primary source of earnings.
Net interest income was $22,766,000 for 2011, 20 for 2010, and $20,660,000 for 2009, whigiresents an increase of $507,000 or 2.3%
and $1,599,000 or 7.7% for 2011 and 2010, respegtiviNet interest income is derived from the voduof earning assets and the rates earned on
those assets as compared to the cost of fundsal iiterest income was $27,571,000 for 2011, $Z% 0@ for 2010, and $27,453,000 for 2009,
which represents a decrease of $218,000 or 0.8%mrcrease of $336,000 or 1.2% for 2011 and 2fEdpectively. Total interest expense was
$4,805,000 for 2011, $5,530,000 for 2010, and $H0® for 2009, which represents a decrease of,8@2%r 13.1% and $1,263,000 or 18.6% in
2011 and 2010, respectively.

The table titled “Average Balances, Income and BEgps, Yields and Rates” displays the compositiomt&rest earnings assets and
interest bearing liabilities and their respectii@ds and rates for the years ended December 31, 2010, and 2009.

The net interest margin was 4.40% for 2011, 4.3862010, and 4.31% for 2009. The net interest maggcalculated by dividing tax-
equivalent net interest income by total averageiegs assets. Tax-equivalent net interest incamaliculated by adding the tax benefit on certain
securities and loans, whose interest is tax-exetofbtal interest income then subtracting totétriest expense. The tax rate used to calculate the
tax benefit was 34% for 2011, 2010, and 2009. Wide titled “Tax-Equivalent Net Interest Incomefconciles net interest income to tax-
equivalent net interest income, which is not a mesment under GAAP, for the years ended Decemhe2@®i1, 2010, and 2009.



Average Balances, Income and Expenses, Yields andtBs
(dollars in thousand

2011 2010 2009
Interest Average Interest Average Interest Average
Average Income/  Yield/ Average Income/  Yield/ Average Incane/  Yield/
Assets: Balances Expense Rate Balances Expense Rate Balances Expen Rate
Securities:
Taxable $ 80,146 $ 3,108 388% $ 72,029 $ 2,935 407% $ 66,132 $ 3,245 4.91%
Tax-Exempt” 38,285 2,117 5.53% 34,612 1973 5.70% 33,670 1,809 5.37%
Total Securities $ 18,431 $ 5225 441% $ 106,641 $ 4,908 4.60% $ 99,802 $ 5,054 5.06%
Loans:
Taxable 396,430 22,826 5.76% 393,791 23,269 5.91% 382,908 22,728 94%.
Non-accrual 4,735 0 0.00% 8,352 0 0.00% 2,515 0 0.00%
Tax-Exempf” 4,657 307 6.59% 5,600 394 7.04% 5,974 413 6.91%
Total Loans $ 405822 $ 23,133 570% $ 407,743 $23,663 580% $ 391397 $ 23,141 5.91%
Federal funds sold 5 0 0.00% 1326 2 0.15% 4,937 10 0.20%
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 17,219 37 1%.2 11,054 21 0.19% 221 3 136%
Total earning assets $ 536,742 $28,395 529% $ 526,764 $ 28,594 543% $ 496,357 $28,208 5.68%
Allowance for loan losses (7,687)— (6,638) (4,673)
Total non-earning assets 42,051 33,673 34,473
Total assets 7§ 571106 7$ 553,799 7$ 526,157
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:
Interest-bearing deposits:
NOW accounts $ 65410 $ 168 0.26% $ 69,154 $ 274 040% $ 60,338 $ 306 0.51%
Money market accounts 73,879 336 0.45% 66,819 7 40 0.61% 60,001 543 0.90%
Savings accounts 47,852 56 0.12% 40,570 69 0.17% 6,163 108 0.30%
Time deposits:
$100,000 and more 63,215 618 0.98% 59,944 710 891 51,455 1941 3.77%
Less than $100,000 89,987 1261 140% 87,940 2315 173% 94,523 1142 121%
Total interest-bearing deposits $ 340,343 $ 2,439 0.72% $ 324,427 $ 2,983 092% $ 302,477 $ 4,040 134%
Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase 15,742 364 319R. 15,473 387 2.50% 15,736 392 2.49%
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 44,214 1,685 3.81% 736 ,2 1,844 3.28% 63,709 2,042 3.21%
Trust preferred capital notes 7,217 317 4.39% 7,217 316 .38% 7,217 319 4.42%
Totalinterest-bearing liabilities $ 405 $ 4,805 118% $ 403,394 $ 5530 137% $ 389,139 $ 6,793 175%
Noninterest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits 104,041 93,583 84,876
Other Liabilities 4,048 3,114 3,423
Total liabilties s 515605 7% 500091 s 477438
Shareholders' equity 55,501 53,708 48,719
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 571,106 m m
Net interest income W W T:LMS
Net interest spread 4.11% 4.06% 3.93%
Interest expense as a percent of average earnmgtas 0.90% 105% 137%
Net interest margin 4.40% 4.38% 4.31%

@ Income and yields are reported on a tax-equitaiersis

using a federal tax rate of 34%




Tax-Equivalent Net Interest Income
(dollars in thousands)
December 31,

2011 2010 2009

GAAP Financial Measurements:

Interest Income - Loans $ 23,029 $ 23,529 $ 23,001

Interest Income - Securities and Other InteEstings Assets 4,542 4,260 4,452

Interest Expense - Deposits 2,439 2,983 4,040

Interest Expense - Other Borrowings 2,366 2,547 2,753
Total Net Interest Income $ 22,766 $ 22259 $ 20,660
Non-GAAP Financial Measurements:

Add: Tax Benefit on Tax-Exempt Interest Inconi®ans $ 104 % 134 % 140

Add: Tax Benefit on Tax-Exempt Interest Incon&ecurities

and Other Interest-Earnings Assets 720 671 615

Total Tax Benefit on Tax-Exempt Interest Income $ 824 $ 805 $ 755
Tax-Equivalent Net Interest Income $ 23,590 $ 23064 $ 21,415

The tax-equivalent yield on earning assets decteddebasis points from 2010 to 2011 and 25 basigtpfrom 2009 to 2010. The tax-
equivalent yield on securities decreased 19 basrgpfrom 2010 to 2011 and 46 basis points fro2@ 2010. The tax-equivalent yield on loans
decreased 10 basis points from 2010 to 2011 arzhdis points from 2009 to 2010. The decreasedryitgld on earning assets, securities, and the
loan portfolio was primarily a result of the lowténest rate environment that extended through 2011.

The average rate on interest-bearing liabilitiesrelesed 19 basis points from 2010 to 2011 and 88 paints from 2009 to 2010. These
changes were caused primarily by deposit pricirdy@duct mix. The average rate on total intebestring deposits decreased 20 basis points from
2010 to 2011 and 42 basis points from 2009 to 20k0general, deposit pricing is done in respomsenbnetary policy actions and yield curve
changes. Local competition for funds affects th&t of time deposits, which are primarily comprisédertificates of deposit. The Company issues
brokered certificates of deposit as a substituteoftering promotional certificates of deposit whteir rates are lower. The rates on brokered
certificates of deposit are usually comparable witier wholesale funding sources and these fund®eaathered more efficiently without causing
existing deposits to reprice. The Company prefersely most heavily on non-maturity deposits, whinclude NOW accounts, money market
accounts, and savings accounts. The average batdnon-maturity interest-bearing deposits inaeda$10,598,000 or 6.0% from $176,543,000
during 2010 to $187,141,000 in 2011 and increag8do#4,000 or 12.8% from $156,499,000 during 2@0$1{76,543,000 during 2010. Changes in
the average rate on interest-bearing liabilities also be affected by the pricing on other soudfefunds, namely borrowings. The Company
utilizes overnight borrowings in the form of fedefands purchased and retail repurchase agreem@&his Company also borrows funds for a longer
term through wholesale repurchase agreements, widiglire marketable securities as collateral. &erage rate on these borrowings decreased 19
basis points from 2010 to 2011 and increased Ishasint from 2009 to 2010. The cost of federaldfumpurchased is affected by the Federal
Reserve’s changes in the federal funds target vdtish remained at 0.25% during 2011. The rateetail repurchase agreements is variable and
changes monthly.  Finally, the Company borrowsrfithe Federal Home Loan Bank through short and term advances. The average rate on
FHLB advances increased 53 basis points from 2012011 and 7 basis points from 2009 to 2010. &dVverage balance on FHLB advances
decreased $12,063,000 in 2011.

The table titled “Volume and Rate Analysis” provddaformation about the effect of changes in finahassets and liabilities and changes
in rates on net interest income. Non-accruingdoare excluded from the average outstanding lodag-equivalent net interest income increased
$526,000 during 2011. The increase in tax-equitatet interest income during 2011 is comprisedroincrease due to volume of $1,108,000 and a
decrease due to rate of $582,000. The changeciadaivalent net interest income during 2011 wamarily affected by low rates on deposits,
Federal Home Loan Bank advances, and taxable loans.



Volume and Rate Analysis (Tax-Equivalent Basit
(dollars in thousand

2011 vs 201 2010 vs 200
Increase (Decrease Increase (Decrease
Due to Changes in Due to Changes in
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

Earning Assets:
Securities:

Taxable $ 295 $ (122) $ 173 $ 337 $ (647) $ (310)

Tax-exempt 200 (56) 144 51 113 164
Loans:

Taxable 159 (602) (443) 949 (408) 541

Tax-exempt (63) (24) (87) 27) 8 (19)
Federal funds sold Q) Q) 2) (6) 2 (8)
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 13 3 16 18 - 18

Total earning assets $ 603 $ (802) $ (199) $ 1,322 $ (936) $ 386
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
NOW accounts $ 14 $ (©2) $ (106) $ 67 $ (99 $ (32
Money market accounts 48 (119) (72) 74 (210) (136)
Savings accounts 20 (33) (13) 15 (54) (39)
Time deposits:

$100,000 and more 44 (136) (92) 389 (1,620) (1,231)

Less than $100,000 36 (298) (262) (74) 455 381

Total interest-bearing deposits $ 134 $ (678) $ (544) $ 471 $(1,528) $(1,057)
Federal funds purchased and securities

sold under agreements to repurchase $ 7$ (30) $ (23 $ @ % 2 $ 5)

Federal Home Loan Bank advances (646) 487 (159) (244) 46 (198)
Trust preferred capital notes - 1 1 - 3) 3)

Total interest-bearing liabilities $ (505) $ (2200 $ (725) $ 220 $(1,483) $(1,263)
Change in net interest income $ 1,108 $ (582) $ 526 $ 1,102 $ 547 $ 1,649

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is based upon managésnestimate of the amount required to maintairagdequate allowance for loan
losses as discussed within the Critical Accounfodjcies section above. The provision for loarsésswas $3,750,000 for 2011, $6,325,000 for
2010, and $4,350,000 for 2009. Changes in the atr@fiprovision for loan losses during each perieftect the results of the Bank’s analysis used
to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loases. The Company is committed to maintainingllowance that adequately reflects the risk
inherent in the loan portfolio. This commitmentisre fully discussed in the “Asset Quality” seatio

Noninterest Income

Total noninterest income was $5,585,000, $5,499,a0d $4,626,000 during 2011, 2010, and 2009, otispdy. This represents an
increase of $86,000 or 1.6% for 2011 and $873,00B®% for 2010. Management reviews the actiwitihich generate noninterest income on an
ongoing basis. The following paragraphs providerimation about activities which are included witlthe respective Consolidated Statements of
Income headings.

In 2011, the Company sold $4,849,000 in availabteséle securities for a net gain of $155,0002040, the Company sold $2,853,000 in
available for sale securities for a gain of $98,000 2009, the Company sold $1,959,000 in availdbt sale securities for a net loss of $419,000
and a gain of $7,000 was recognized in calls afisiées. During 2011, the Company also recordedhgrairment charge of $87,500 on a corporate
security.

Income from fiduciary activities, generated by trservices offered through Eagle Investment Grougs $907,000, $917,000, and
$818,000 during 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectivllyis represents a decrease of $10,000 or 1.1%gl@011 and an increase of $99,000 or
12.1% during 2010.

Service charges on deposit accounts were $1,586%100@84,000, and $2,053,000 during 2011, 2010, 20@P, respectively. This
represents a decrease of $198,000 or 11.1% for 26d1$269,000 or 13.1% for 2010. The primary comepd of service charges on deposit
accounts is overdraft fee income. The decline@oime is primarily the result of lower overdrafe feolume. However more recently, regulatory
changes on the charges of these type fees havaedstively impacted this item.



Other service charges and fees were $3,190,0009%200, and $2,148,000 during 2011, 2010, and ,2@3®ectively. This represents
an increase of $197,000 or 6.6% for 2011 and $8@500 39.3% for 2010. The amount of other servatesges and fees is comprised primarily of
commissions from the sale of non-deposit investnmeatiucts, fees received from the Bank’s creditlgaiogram, and fees generated from the
Bank's ATM/debit card programs. Commissions frdma sale of non-deposit investment products thrdeagie Investment Group were $626,000,
$509,000, and $549,000 during 2011, 2010, and 2@3pgectively. This represents an increase of $007or 23.0% during 2011 and a decrease of
$40,000 or 7.3% during 2010. The increase is damlynto increased sales and the lack of commisfées charged by Infinex for the last six
months of 2011. The Company converted from Uweshfinex during 2011 and is not being charged miyntommission fees for a twelve month
period. Fees received from the Bank’s credit ganfyram were $495,000, $577,000 and $472,000 d@@ig, 2010, and 2009, respectively. This
represents a decrease of $82,000 or 14.2% durittd 26d an increase of $105,000 or 22.3% during 20E6es generated from the Bank’s
ATM/debit card programs were $1,337,000, $1,166,G0@ $719,000 during 2011, 2010, and 2009, relsdct This represents an increase of
$171,000 or 14.7% in 2011 and $447,000 during 20Rflor to 2010, ATM income was netted against esps. This accounting change can be
attributed to the increase in 2010. Pursuantrtadate in the Dodd-Frank Act, the Federal Resestablished rules in 2011 regarding interchange
fees charged for electronic debit transactionsdyyment card issuers. This could potentially lotier Bank’s debit card income significantly in the
future.

Other operating income was $120,000, $128,000$82¢D00 for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectivelyis Tépresents a decrease of $8,000
or 6.3% during 2011 and an increase of $76,00%46r226 during 2010. The increase in 2010 is fronmarease in officer insurance income.

Noninterest Expenses

Total noninterest expenses were $18,908,000, 1/809and $16,480,000 during 2011, 2010, and 2@&ectively. This represents an
increase of $2,099,000 or 12.5% during 2011 an®$8® or 2.0% during 2010. The efficiency ratiotleé Company was 63.42%, 58.23%, and
62.28% for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. fffieiency ratio is calculated by dividing totadminterest expenses by the sum of tax-equivalent
net interest income and total noninterest incomelueing certain non-recurring gains and lossesreéonciliation of tax-equivalent net interest
income, which is not a measurement under GAAP etanterest income is presented within Met Interest Incomsection above. The following
paragraphs provide information about expenses wdmehincluded within the respective Consolidateatedhents of Income headings.

Salaries and employee benefits were $10,609,00263%00, and $9,262,000 during 2011, 2010, an® 2@3pectively. This represents
an increase of $1,346,000 or 14.5% for 2011 and0®lor 0.0% for 2010. During the fourth quarte26i1, a net loss of $589,000 was realized on
the distribution of the Company’s defined benekirpassets. Along with annual salary increasestiaddl staff was hired during the latter part of
2010 and early 2011 for the April 2011 openinghaf Company’s newest branch in Loudoun County, VActvincreased the Company’s salary and
benefit expenses by approximately $230,00@cupancy expenses were $1,155,000, $1,142,000$5069,000 during 2011, 2010, and 2009,
respectively. This represents an increase of $0300d.1% during 2011 and $73,000 or 6.8% durin020

Equipment expenses were $676,000, $625,000, ans, @85 during 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectiveliis Tepresents an increase of
$51,000 or 8.2% during 2011 and a decrease of §8®06.0% during 2010.

Advertising and marketing expenses were $500,0885$00, and $409,000 during 2011, 2010, and 2@3@ectively. This represents
an increase of $65,000 or 14.9% during 2011 and0®®6or 6.4% during 2010. This category contaimmérous expense types such as advertising,
public relations, business development, and chdeteontributions. The annual budgeted amounteégising and marketing expenses is directly
related to the Company’s growth in assets. Tha tahount of advertising and marketing expenseevdrased on planned events and advertising
campaigns. Expenses are allocated in a mannehwbauses on effectively reaching existing and piigé¢ customers within the market and
contributing to the community.

ATM network fees were $546,000, $442,000 and $X@tduring 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. Thesents an increase of
$104,000 or 23.5% during 2011 and $338,000 or 3250ring 2010. During 2011, ATM network fees wemainly impacted by increased debit
card usage. Prior to 2010, ATM income was netgairst expenses. This accounting change cantlauégt to the increase in 2010.

Other real estate owned expenses were $159,00)CRLand $366,000 during 2011, 2010, and 2009 entisely. This represents an
increase of $140,000 or 736.8% during 2011 andcaedse of $347,000 or 95% during 2010. The ineréa<2011 is due mainly to valuation
allowances established during the year as propattyes declined as well as increased activity meoteal estate owned. The decrease in 2010 is
due mainly to significant valuation allowances bished during 2009.

FDIC assessments were $712,000, $852,000 and $80Hring 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. FRESessments decreased
$140,000 or 16.4% during 2011 and increased $5100@4% during 2010. On December 30 2009, the fi2om prepaid their estimated quarterly
FDIC assessments of $2,300,000 for 2010, 201128a2.

Outside service fees were $742,000, $423,000 at8,830 during 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectivéligis represents an increase of
$319,000 or 75.4% during 2011 and $110,000 or 35i@fing 2010. An additional $141,000 in expense imaurred during 2011 for the purchase
of employee retirement annuities related to th&idigtion of the Company’s defined benefit planh&toutside service fees were also affected by
the increased review frequency of the Company’s fpatfolio by an outside firm and the expenselatpment fees related to brokered certificates
of deposits that were called during the first amgirth quarters of 2011. Together, those two matteneased other outside service fees by $221,000
in 2011.



Other operating expenses were $2,634,000, $2,626:00@ $2,558,000 during 2011, 2010, and 2009.r@perating expenses increased
$8,000 or 0.3% during 2011 and $68,000 or 2.7%ndu2010. This category is primarily comprisediw tost for services required during normal
operations of the Company. Expenses which arettliraffected by the number of branch locations aallime of accounts at the Bank include
postage, insurance, telephone, and credit car@psotrg fees. Other expenses within this categeraaditing fees, legal fees, and director fees.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $1,371,000, $1,019,000$4a/815,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2and 2009, respectively.
The change in income tax expense can be attridotetanges in taxable earnings at the federaltstgtincome tax rate of 34%. These amounts
correspond to an effective tax rate of 24.08%, £%0and 22.78% for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respéytiviote 9 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements provides a reconciliation between inctareexpense computed using the federal statutargnie tax rate and the Company's actual
income tax expense during 2011, 2010, and 2009.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

The Company’s total assets were $568,022,000 a¢rbleer 31, 2011, up $9,182,000 or 1.6% from $5580®@at December 31, 2010.
Securities increased $4,340,000 or 4.0% from 20180tL1. Loans, net of allowance for loan losseseased by $343,000 or 0.1% from 2010 to
2011. Total liabilities were $509,932,000 at Decentiil, 2011, compared to $505,011,000 at Decemhe2(®.0. Total shareholders’ equity at year
end 2011 and 2010 was $58,090,000 and $53,829 &€}tk ctively.

Securities

Total securities at December 31, 2011 were $1140084as compared to $109,794,000 as of Decembe2@M, which represents an
increase of $4,340,000 or 4.0% during 2011. Théetéitled “Securities Portfolio” shows the carrgiwalue of securities at December 31, 2011,
2010, and 2009. The Company purchased $46,79& 08 urities during 2011. This amount includes,$16,000 or 33.1% in obligations of U.S.
government corporations and agencies, $22,917,0@@.0% in mortgage-backed securities, and $8,406¢0 17.9% in obligations of states and
political subdivisions. The Company had $40,166,00 maturities and principal repayments on se&sitluring 2011. This amount includes
$30,500,000 or 75.9% in obligations of U.S. goveentrcorporations and agencies, $5,131,000 or 1h8%eortgage-backed securities, $2,535,000
or 6.3% in obligations of states and political sulsibns, and $2,000,000 or 5.0% in corporate sgéear The Company did not have any securities
from a single issuer, other than U.S. governmeaheigs, whose amount exceeded 10% of sharehokbpuy as of December 31, 2011. Note 2 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements providestiaddi details about the Company’s securities pticfas of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Securities Portfolio
(dollars in thousands)
December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Securities available for sale:
Obligations of U.S. government corporations agehcies $ 18533 $ 33,150 $ 27,045

M ortgage-backed securities 34,546 16,157 15,620
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 45,766 42,908 37,057
Corporate securities 13,043 15,401 14,944
Equity securities 2,246 2,178 2,145

$ 114,134 $ 109,794 $ 96,811

The ability to dispose of available for sale setesiprior to maturity provides management moreonstto react to future rate changes
and provides more liquidity, when needed, to mbettsterm obligations. The Company had a net dizeshgain on available for sale securities of
$4,944,000 and $2,343,000 at December 31, 20112@h@, respectively. Unrealized gains or lossesmilable for sale securities are reported
within shareholders' equity, net of the relatecedefd tax effect, as accumulated other comprehemsoome.

The table titled “Maturity Distribution and Yieldsf Securities” shows the maturity period and avergigld for the different types of
securities in the portfolio at December 31, 20KAlthough mortgage-backed securities have definithegurities, they provide monthly principal
curtailments which can be reinvested at a preagilaie and for a different term.



Maturity Distribution and Yields of Securities

(dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2011

Due after 10 years

Due in one year Due after 1 Due after 5 and
orless through 5 years through 10 years Equity Securities Total
Amo unt Yield Amo unt Yield Amo unt Yield Amo unt Yield Amount Y ield
Securities available for sale:
Obligations of U.S. government
corporations and agencies $ - - $ 9,861 264% $ 8,672 3.47% $ - - $ 18,533 3.02%
Mortgage-backed securities - - 1,418 5.07% 6,587 2.33% 26,541 3.28% 34,546 3.17%
Corporate securities 1,015 5.75% 4,193 6.88% 5239 6.84% 2,596 7.76% 13,043 6.95%
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions, taxable - - - - 3,150 4.43% 1,308 6.18% 4,458 4.97%
Equity securities - - - - - - 2,246 7.08% 2,246 7.08%
Total taxable $ 1015 $ 15,472 $ 23,648 $ 32,691 $ 72826
Obligations of states and political
subdivisions, lax-exem;ﬁl[) - - 17,295 5.58% 14,372 5.42% 9,641 5.87% 41308 5.59%
Total $ 1015 $ 32,767 $ 38,020 $ 42,332 $ 114,134

@ vields on tax-exempt securities have been compute a tax-equivalent basis using a federal tag tt34%

Loan Portfolio

The Company's primary use of funds is supportimglileg activities from which it derives the greatastount of interest income. Gross
loans were $410,424,000 and $408,449,000 at DeceBihe2011 and 2010, respectively. This represanticrease of $1,975,000 or 0.5% for
2011. The ratio of loans to deposits decreaseuhgltine year from 95.1% to 91.5% at December 31024nhd 2011, respectively. The table titled
“Loan Portfolio” shows the composition of the lgaortfolio over the last five years.

Loan Portfolio
(dollars in thousands)
December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Loans secured by real estate:
Construction and land develop ment $ 31579% 31560 $ 34531 $ 36,990 $ 33,268
Secured by farmland 3,390 4,332 5,636 5,305 7,468
Secured by 1-4 family residential properties 233,6 207,671 205,579 189,874 182,343
M ultifamily 4,517 4,908 3,112 2,973 2,685
Commercial 118,043 116,381 109,516 107,749 108,880
Loans to farmers 1,910 1,293 1,284 1,065 1,039
Commercial and industrial loans 22,866 24,449 24,268 23,629 27,027
Consumer installment loans 13,185 14,518 16,115 18,835 25,368
All other loans 2,296 3,337 4,025 3,666 1,583
Total loans $ 410,424 $ 408,449 $ 404,066 $ 390,086 $ 389,661

Loans secured by real estate were $370,167,00@.8¢0and $364,852,000 or 89.3% of total loans ateBwer 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. This represents an increase of $508D or 1.5% for 2011. Consumer installment loaese $13,185,000 or 3.2% and $14,518,000
or 3.6% of total loans at December 31, 2011 and26spectively. This represents a decrease 8881000 or 9.2% for 2011. Commercial and
industrial loans were $22,866,000 or 5.6% and $®IQD0 or 6.0% of total loans at December 31, 284d 2010. This represents a decrease of
$1,583,000 or 6.5% for 2011.

The table titled “Maturity Schedule of Selected hsashows the different loan categories and thegdeduring which they mature. For
loans maturing in more than one year, the table sit®ows a breakdown between fixed rate loans aradirilg rate loans. The table indicates that
$340,591,000 or 83.0% of the loan portfolio matushin five years. The floating rate loans matgriafter five years are primarily comprised of
home equity lines of credit.



Maturity Schedule of Selected Loans
(dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2011

After
1 Year
Within Within After
1 Year 5 Years 5 Years Total
Loans secured by real estate:
Construction and land develop ment $ 24,882 $ 6,558 % 139  $ 31,579
Secured by farmland 2,061 1,329 - 3,390
Secured by 1-4 family residential properties 38,23 124,440 49,961 212,638
M ultifamily 1,747 2,770 - 4,517
Commercial 26,659 73,593 17,791 118,043
Loans to farmers 1,339 571 - 1,910
Commercial and industrial loans 14,023 7,608 1,235 22,866
Consumer installment loans 1,555 11,500 130 13,185
All other loans 56 1,663 577 2,296

$ 110,559 $ 230,032 $ 69,833 $ 410,424

For maturities over one year:
Floating rate loans $ 20,249 $ 12,273 % 32,522
Fixed rate loans 209,783 57,560 267,343
$ 230,032 $ 69,833 $ 299,865

Asset Quality

The Company has policies and procedures designedntmol credit risk and to maintain the qualityitsf loan portfolio. These include
underwriting standards for new originations andang monitoring and reporting of asset quality audquacy of the allowance for loan losses.
There were $4,872,000 in total non-performing asseghich consist of nonaccrual loans, foreclosesperty, and repossessed assets at December
31, 2011. This is a decrease of $5,310,000 whempaced to the December 31, 2010 balance of $10,082,0

Nonaccrual loans were $2,449,000 and $8,377,00@e¢mber 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Thesgao®unt of interest income that
would have been recognized on nonaccrual loanspd/a8,000 for 2011 and $341,000 for 2010. Nonéhisf interest income was included in net
income for 2011 or 2010. Management evaluateditiamcial condition of these borrowers and the gatfi any collateral on these loans. The
results of these evaluations are used to estirhatarhount of losses which may be realized on thgodition of these nonaccrual loans. Nonaccrual
loans that were evaluated for impairment at Decer@be2011 totaled $2,449,000 and had $197,000énific allocations.

Foreclosed property increased to $2,378,000 atrbleee31, 2011, compared to $1,783,000 at Decenthe2®.0. When the property is
sold, the difference between the amount of oth@restate owned and the settlement proceeds igmeaal as a gain or loss on the sale of other real
estate owned. A loss of $361,000 was recognizeti@sale of other real estate owned during 2011.

Total loans past due 90 days or more and stillaiegrinterest were $94,000 or 0.02%, $10,000 o tean 0.01%, and $13,000 or less
than 0.01% of total loans at December 31, 2011026amhd 2009, respectively. The loans past duea®8 dr more and still accruing interest are
secured and in the process of collection; therefbiy are not classified as nonaccrual.

Nonperforming and Other Assets

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loathegraeal estate owned (foreclosed properties),rapdssessed assets. The table titled
“Nonperforming Assets” shows the amount of nonprenfag assets and loans past due 90 days and agéntiérest outstanding during the last five
years. The table also shows the ratios for thewalhce for loan losses as a percentage of nonp@rfgrassets and nonperforming assets as a
percentage of loans outstanding and other reakestened.

Loans are placed on non-accrual status when colfecf principal and interest is doubtful, generalthen a loan becomes 90 days past
due. There are three negative implications foriegenwhen a loan is placed on non-accrual statust, Rll interest accrued but unpaid at the date
that the loan is placed on non-accrual statustfeeideducted from interest income or written off @ loss. Second, accruals of interest are
discontinued until it becomes certain that botmgpal and interest can be repaid. Finally, themy rhe actual losses that require additional
provisions for loan losses to be charged againsireggs.

For real estate loans, upon foreclosure, the belafithe loan is transferred to “Other Real Es@ieed” (“"OREQO”) and carried at the
lower of the outstanding loan balance or the fairkat value of the property based on current apalsaand other current market trends, less selling
costs. If a write down of the OREOQO property is resegy at the time of foreclosure, the amount isgddhoff against the allowance for loan losses.
A review of the recorded property value is perfodnie conjunction with normal loan reviews, and iaket conditions indicate that the recorded
value exceeds the fair market value, additionalengbwns of the property value are charged dirgotlyperations.



In addition, the Company may, under certain cirdamses, restructure loans in troubled debt restrings as a concession to a borrower
when the borrower is experiencing financial ditreBormal, standardized loan restructuring prograre not utilized by the Company. Each loan
considered for restructuring is evaluated baseaustomer circumstances and may include modificatimnone or more loan provision. Such
restructured loans are included in impaired loaAsDecember 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company hag/@&M00 and $8,469,000 in restructured
loans, respectively. There were no restructuraddat December 31, 2009.

Nonperforming Assets
(dollars in thousands)

December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Nonaccrual loans $ 2,449 $ 8,377 % 509 $ 338 $ -
Other real estate owned and repossessed assets 2,423 1,805 2,776 734 215

Total nonperforming assets $ 4872 $ 10,182 $ 7875 $ 4119 % 215
Loans past due 90 days and accruing interest $ 94 10 $ 13 % 509 $ 813
Allowance for loan losses to

nonperforming assets 179% 70% 76% 110% 1484%
Non-performing assets to period end loans and

other real estate owned 1.18% 2.48% 1.94% 1.05% 0.06%

Other potential problem loans are defined as peiifty loans that possess certain risks that managedms identified that could result in
the loans not being repaid in accordance with tteems. Accordingly, these loans are risk rated level of substandard or lower. At December
31, 2011, other potential problem loans totaled 26,000. $14,751,000 or 52.9% of the total offzgential problem loans are currently
considered impaired and are disclosed in NotethadConsolidated Financial Statements.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The purpose and the methods for measuring the atlogvfor loans are discussed in the Critical ActiogriPolicies section above. The
table titled “Analysis of Allowance for Loan Los$eshows the activity within the allowance duringtlast five years, including a breakdown of the
loan types which were charged-off and recovered.

Charged-off loans were $2,966,000, $5,475,000, $3)d53,000 for 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectiveRecoveries were $848,000,
$291,000, and $252,000 for 2011, 2010, and 20G®eaively. Net charge-offs were $2,118,000, $5,480, and $2,901,000 for 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively. This represents a decreasetioharge-offs of $3,066,000 or 59.1% for 2011 amdncrease of $2,283,000 or 78.7% for 2010.
The allowance for loan losses as a percentageasfslavas 2.13%, 1.74%, and 1.48% at the end of 28010, and 2009, respectively. The
allowance for loan losses at year-end covered matge-offs during the year by 4.13 times for 2Q1LB7 times for 2010, and 2.06 times for 2009.
The ratio of net charge-offs to average loans wa2% for 2011, 1.27% for 2010, and 0.74% for 2009.

The provision for loan losses for the year endedebwer 31, 2011 was $3,750,000, a decrease of H®EY or 40.7% from December
31, 2010. The lower provision for loan losses comg@do last year reflects improvements in asselityuand a lower level of charge-offs in 2011,
tempered by higher reserves on remaining impagedd.

The table titled “Allocation of Allowance for Loanosses” shows the amount of the allowance for loases which is allocated to the
indicated loan categories, along with that categopgrcentage of total loans, at December 31, 20010, 2009, 2008, and 2007. The amount of
allowance for loan losses allocated to each loaegeay is based on the amount delinquent loankadhlban category, the status of nonperforming
assets in that loan category, the historical loksethat loan category, and the financial conditas certain borrowers whose financial conditioisal
monitored on a periodic basis. Management belig¢hias the allowance for loan losses is adequatedbas the loan portfolio’s current risk
characteristics.



Analysis of Allowance for Loan Losses
(dollars in thousands)
December 31,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Balance, beginning of period $ 7111 $ 5970 $ 4521 $ 3,191 $ 3,308
Loans Charged-Off:
Commercial, financial and agricultural 596 1,077 466 261 131
Real estate-construction and land development 710 2,917 1,090 256 141
Real estate-mortgage 1,204 1,239 1,141 306 96
Consumer 456 242 456 254 437
Total loans charged off $ 2966 $ 5475 $ 3,153 $ 1,077 % 805
Recoveries:
Commercial, financial and agricultural $ 137 $ 72 % 98 $ - 3% 40
Real estate-construction and land development 5 - - 14 -
Real estate-mortgage 299 102 - 2 2
Consumer 407 117 154 81 96
Total recoveries $ 848 $ 291 $ 252  $ 97 % 138
Net charge-offs 2,118 5,184 2,901 980 667
Provision for loan losses 3,750 6,325 4,350 2,310 550
Balance, end of period $ 8743 $ 7111 $ 5970 $ 4521 $ 3,191
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to
loans outstanding at period end 2.13% 1.74% 1.48% 69%.1 0.82%
Ratio of net charge offs to average
loans outstanding during the period 0.52% 1.27% .74 0.25% 0.17%
Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses
(dollars in thousands)
Commercial, Financial, Real Estate Real Estate Consumer and
and Agricultural Construction Mortgage Other Loans
Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent o
Allowance Loansin  Allowance Loansin  Allowance Loans in Allowance Loans in
for Category for Category for Category for Category
Loan to Total Loan to Total Loan to Total Loan to Total
Losses Loans Losses Loans Losses Loans Losses Loans
December 31, 2011 $ 1,077 56% $ 2,618 85% $ 4,601 81.7% $ 254 4.2%
December 31, 2010 $ 819 6.0% $ 1,386 88% $ 4,688 80.5% $ 218 4.7%
December 31, 2009 $ 1,417 73% $ 1,735 85% $ 2,464 80.1% $ 354 4.1%
December 31, 2008 $ 567 73% $ 1,580 95% $ 2,130 78.4% $ 244 4.8%
December 31, 2007 $ 795 76% $ 343 85% $ 1,830 77.4% $ 223 6.5%
Deposits

Total deposits were $448,465,000 and $429,296,@0Deaember 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, whegresents an increase of
$19,169,000 or 4.5% during 2011. The table titkderage Deposits and Rates Paid” shows the avategesit balances and average rates paid for
2011, 2010 and 2009.



Average Deposits and Rates Paid
(dollars in thousands)
December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Noninterest-bearing $ 104,041 $ 93,583 $ 84,876
Interest-bearing:
NOW accounts 65,410 0.26% 69,154 0.40% 60,338 0.51%
Money market accounts 73,879 0.45% 66,819 0.61% 60,001 0.90%
Regular savings accounts 47,852 0.12% 40,570 0.17% 36,160 0.30%
Time deposits:
$100,000 and more 63,215 0.98% 59,944 1.18% 51,455 3.77%
Less than $100,000 89,987 1.40% 87,940 1.73% 94,523 1.21%
Total interest-bearing $ 340,343 0.72% $ 324,427 0.92% $ 302,477 1.34%
Total deposits $ 444,384 $ 418,010 $ 387,353

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits, which are cseg of checking accounts, increased $8,981,000.5% from $98,256,000 at
December 31, 2010 to $107,237,000 at December @11.2 Interest-bearing deposits, which include N@u¢ounts, money market accounts,
regular savings accounts and time deposits, inede$%0,188,000 or 3.1% from $331,040,000 at Decebe2010 to $341,228,000 at December
31, 2011. Total NOW account balances increasef186)00 or 9.0% from $72,413,000 at December 31026 $78,927,000 at December 31,
2011. Total money market account balances incde$$8,627,000 or 19.5% from $69,766,000 at Decer@bef010 to $83,393,000 at December
31, 2011. Total regular savings account balanoesased $5,469,000 or 12.9% from $42,369,000 aember 31, 2010 to $47,838,000 at
December 31, 2011. Time deposits decreased $18@2dr 10.5% from $146,492,000 at December 310201$131,070,000 at December 31,
2011. This is comprised of a decrease in ceatific of deposit of $100,000 and more of $1,906@08.9% from $49,497,000 at December 31,
2010 to $47,591,000 at December 31, 2011 and aedse in certificates of deposit of less than @M of $1,752,000 or 2.7% from $65,097,000
at December 31, 2010 to $66,849,000 at Decembe2(@1,. Brokered certificates of deposits less 00,000 decreased $10,065,000 or 49.9%
from $20,172,000 at December 31, 2010 to $10,1074840December 31, 2011. This included $9,905,000adlitional brokered certificates of
deposit and $202,000 of certificates obtained thnothe CDARS network. Brokered certificates of a#{s, greater than $100,000, decreased
$5,203,000 or 44.4% from $11,726,000 at Decembe2B10 to $6,523,000 at December 31, 2011. Thes#icates were obtained through the
CDARS network. The Bank joined the CDARS netwark?D08, which allows it to offer over $50 million FDIC insurance on a certificate of
deposit.

The Company attempts to fund asset growth with sié¢@ecounts and focus upon core deposit growtbsgsimary source of funding.
Core deposits consist of checking accounts, NOWwatts, money market accounts, regular savings atsoand time deposits of less than
$100,000, excluding brokered certificates of depo€liore deposits totaled $431,835,000 or 96.3%%88¥,398,000 or 92.6% of total deposits at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The table titled “Maturities of Certificates of Degt and Other Time Deposits of $100,000 and Greatews the amount of certificates
of deposit of $100,000 and more maturing within thee period indicated at December 31, 2011. Tieen@any’s policy is to issue these
certificates for terms of twelve months or lesswbwer, exceptions have been made as indicatedeb$8t663,000 which matures over one year.
The total amount maturing within one year is $4%,080 or 84.0% of the total amount outstanding.

Maturities of Certificates of Deposit and Other Time Deposits of $100,000 and Greater
(dollars in thousands)

Within Three to Six to Over Percent
Three Six Twelve One of Total
Months Months Months Year Total Deposits

At December 31, 2011  $ 21,206 $ 13,124 $ 11,121 $ 8,663 $ 54,114 12.07%




CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company continues to be a well capitalizedrfime institution. Total shareholders' equity oad@mber 31, 2011 was $58,090,000,
reflecting a percentage of total assets of 10.28%oapared to $53,829,000 and 9.63% at Decemb20Bl. The common stock’s book value per
share increased $1.17 or 7.1% to $17.67 per sh@eamber 31, 2011 from $16.50 per share at Deee3th 2010. During 2011, the Company
paid $0.72 per share in dividends as compared &89%8er share for 2010 and $0.68 per share for.200@ Company has a Dividend Investment
Plan that reinvests the dividends of the sharehatd€ompany stock.

Analysis of Capital
(dollars in thousands)

December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
Tier 1 Capital:
Common stock $ 8,217 $ 8,124
Capital surplus 9,568 9,076
Retained earnings 37,374 35,419
Trust preferred capital notes 7,000 7,000
Net unrealized loss on available for sale ggecurities - -
Total Tier 1 capital $ 62,159 $ 59,619
Tier 2 Capital:
Allowance for loan losses $ 4,996 $ 5,072
Total Tier 2 capital $ 4,996 $ 5,072
Total risk-based capital $ 67,155 $ 64,691
Risk weighted assets $ 395,878 $ 403,738
Risk Based Capital Ratios:
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 15.70% 14.77%
Total risk-based capital ratio 16.96% 16.02%
Tier 1 leverage ratio 10.88% 10.62%

Federal regulatory risk-based capital guidelinepire percentages to be applied to various assetisiding off-balance sheet assets,
based on their perceived risk in order to calcutédke-weighted assets. Tier 1 capital consistsotdl shareholders' equity plus qualifying trust
preferred securities outstanding less net unreitizéns and losses on available for sale securg@msdwill and other intangible assets. Total tdpi
is comprised of Tier 1 capital plus the allowabtetipn of the allowance for loan losses and anyesgdrust preferred securities that do not qualify
as Tier 1 capital. The $7,000,000 in trust preférsecurities, issued by the Company during 200&liftes as Tier 1 capital because this amount
does not exceed 25% of total capital, includingttiet preferred securities. Financial instituionust maintain a Tier 1 risk-based capital rafio o
at least 4%, a total risk-based capital ratio deast 8% and a minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio of 4Phe Company’s policy requires a Tier 1 risk-
based capital ratio of at least 8%, a total risgebacapital ratio of at least 10% and a minimunm Tikeverage ratio of 5%. The Company monitors
these ratios on a quarterly basis and has seueatdgies, including without limitation the issuanaf common stock or trust preferred securities, to
ensure that these ratios remain above regulatomjmmims. The table titled “Analysis of Capital” st®the components of Tier 1 capital, Tier 2
capital, the amount of total risk-based capital esk-weighted assets, and the risk based capitals for the Company at December 31, 2011 and
2010.

Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statemertsiges additional discussion and analysis of regujacapital requirements.
LIQUIDITY

Liquidity management involves meeting the preset fature financial obligations of the Company witle sale or maturity of assets or
with the occurrence of additional liabilities. Ligity needs are met with cash on hand, depositairks, federal funds sold, securities classifed a
available for sale and loans maturing within onaryeAt December 31, 2011 liquid assets totaled6da4,000 as compared to $227,394,000 at
December 31, 2010. These amounts represent 481d%50% of total liabilities at December 31, 2@HH 2010, respectively. Securities provide
a constant source of liquidity through paydowns aradurities. Also, the Company maintains shomatéiorrowing arrangements, namely federal
funds lines of credit, with larger financial instibns as an additional source of liquidity. ThenR's membership with the Federal Home Loan Bank
of Atlanta also provides a source of borrowingshwitmerous rate and term structures. The Compaeyimr management monitors the liquidity
position regularly and attempts to maintain a pasitvhich utilizes available funds most efficienthAs a result of the Company’s management of
liquid assets and the ability to generate liquidtyough liability funding, management believesttttee Company maintains overall liquidity
sufficient to satisfy its depositors’ requiremeatsl meet its customers’ credit needs.



OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL OBIGATIONS

Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statemerasiges information about the off-balance sheetryeanents which arise through the
lending activities of the Company. These arrangeémecrease the degree of both credit and inteetstrisk beyond that which is recognized

through the financial assets and liabilities ondbesolidated balance sheets.

The table titled “Contractual Obligations and Salled Payments” presents the Company’s contractla@ations and scheduled payment
amounts due within the period indicated at Deceriie2011.

Contractual Obligations and Scheduled Payments

(dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2011

One Year Three Years
Less than through through More than
One Year Three Years Five Years Five Years Total
FHLB advances $ 20,000 $ 2250 $ 20,000 $ - $ 42,250
Trust preferred capital notes - - - 7,217 7,217
Securities sold under agreements
to repurchase - 10,000 - - 10,000
Operating leases 104 132 100 804 1,140
$ 20,104 $ 12,382 $ 20,100 $ 8,021 $ 60,607

The $42,250,000 in outstanding FHLB advances ispc@®d of five advances. Note 8 to the Consoldi&i@ancial Statements discusses
the rates, terms, and conversion features on tdbsnces. The trust preferred capital notes aigsed in Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The payments due on operating leeselésaussed in Note 6 to the Consolidated FinhSt&ements.



Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosues about Market Risk

As the holding company of the Bank, the Compansitegry component of market risk is interest ratéatility. Interest rate fluctuations
will impact the amount of interest income and exgeethe Bank receives or pays on almost all ofstets and liabilities and the market value of its
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing ili@sil excluding those which have a very short temtil maturity. Interest rate risk exposure of th
Company is, therefore, experienced at the BanK.leAsset / liability management attempts to maxzienihe net interest income of the Company by
adjusting the volume and price of rate sensitiveetssand liabilities. The Company does not subjself to foreign currency exchange or
commodity price risk due to prohibition through ipgland the current nature of operations. Notetdl4he Consolidated Financial Statements
discusses derivative instruments and hedging #esvof the Company. The Company entered intongerdst rate swap agreement related to the
outstanding trust preferred capital notes durin@d0

The Bank's interest rate management strategy igriEsto maximize net interest income and prestheecapital of the Company. The

Bank’s financial instruments are periodically subgel to various simulations whose results are dsedi in the following paragraphs. These models
are based on actual data from the Bank's finastéaéments and assumptions about the performanwertain financial instruments. Prepayment
assumptions are applied to all mortgage relateet®sshich includes real estate loans and mortgagked securities. Prepayment assumptions are
based on a median rate at which principal paymemetseceived on these assets over their contraetmal The rate of principal payback is assumed
to increase when rates fall and decrease when nigges Term assumptions are applied to non-mgtdeposits, which includes demand deposits,
NOW accounts, savings accounts, and money markeuats. Demand deposits and NOW accounts are @Bnassumed to have a term greater
than one year since the total amount outstandieg dot fluctuate with changes in interest ratesvirfys accounts and money market accounts are
assumed to be more interest rate sensitive, threredanajority of the amount outstanding is assutodthve a term of less than one year.

The simulation analysis evaluates the potentiactfbf upward and downward changes in market ista@es on future net interest
income. The analysis involves change in the ister@es used in determining net interest inconer the next twelve months. The model utilizes
the static approach for the down 100 basis poidtigm 200 basis point rate shifts which assume amimginterest rates without any management
response to change the composition of the baldmeet.s The model considered a 24 month period wmnlating a 400 basis point rate increase.
The simulation analysis results are presenteddnahle below:

Year 1 Net Interest Income Simulation
(dollars in thousands)

Change in

Net Interest Income
Assumed Market Interest Rate Shift Dollars Percent Change
-100 BP $ (194) -0.85%
+200 BP $ (48) -0.21%
+400 BP $ (48) -0.21%

The Bank uses simulation analysis to assess earaingsk and economic value of equity (EVE) analys assess economic value at risk.
This analysis method allows management to regukadmpitor the direction and magnitude of the Bankierest rate risk exposure. The modeling
techniques cannot be measured with complete poecidMaturity and repricing characteristics of @assmnd liabilities, prepayments on amortizing
assets, non-maturity deposit sensitivity and load deposit pricing are key assumptions used in ieinguthis analysis. There is a realm of
uncertainty in using these assumptions but theysisalloes provide the Bank with the ability to mstie interest rate risk position over time.

The table below examines the Economic Value of &qEVE). The EVE of the balance sheet is definedhe discounted present value
of expected asset cash flows minus the discourreskpt value of the expected liability cash flow$e analysis involves changing the interest rates
used in determining the expected cash flows ardisicounting the cash flows. The model indicategxgosure to falling and rising interest rates.
These results are driven primarily by the relath@ease in value of the Bank’s core deposit basatas rise.

Static EVE Change
(dollars in thousands)

Change in EVE
Assumed Market Interest Rate Shift Dollars Percent Change
-100 BP Shock $ (4,114) -5.22%
+100 BP Shock $ (143) -0.18%
+200 BP Shock $ (1,483) -1.88%
+300 BP Shock $ (3,936) -4.99%



Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementarata

Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Eagle Financial Services, Inc.
Berryville, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednbalaheets of Eagle Financial Services, Inc. amdubsidiaries as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related cdasedl statements of income, changes in sharehbltpigy, and cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December @ll1.2 The management of Eagle Financial Services,dnd its subsidiaries (the Company) is
responsible for these consolidated financial statée Our responsibility is to express an opirdarthese consolidated financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversigbamd (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoematitit to obtain reasonable assurance about whistheconsolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. The Company isrequired to have, nor were we engaged to perfomaualit of its internal control over financial
reporting. Our audits included consideration @&inal control over financial reporting as a bdsisdesigning audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose pfessing an opinion on the effectiveness of the @omy's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aatb includes examining, on a test basis, evidsapgorting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accountingiptas used and significant estimates made by nemagt, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe dhiataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statataereferred to above present fairly, in all materiespects, the financial
position of Eagle Financial Services, Inc. andsitbsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010thendesults of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year geeoded December 31, 2011 in conformity with actiognprinciples generally accepted in the
United State of America.

/sl SMITH ELLIOTT KEARNS & COMPANY, LLC
SMITH ELLIOTT KEARNS & COMPANY, LLC

Chambersburg, Pennsylvania
March 23, 2012



EAGLE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2011 and 2010
(dollars in thousands, except share amounts)

2011 2010
Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 7,610 $ 6,884
Interest-bearing deposits with other institutions 14,331 7,086
Total cash and cash equivalents 21,941 13,970
Securities available for sale, at fair value 114,134 109,794
Restricted investments 3,520 3,982
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $8,M3011 and $7,111 in 2010 401,681 401,338
Bank premises and equipment, net 15,200 15,712
Other real estate owned 2,378 1,783
Other assets 9,168 12,261
Total assets $ 568,022 $ 558,840
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Liabilities
Deposits:
Noninterest bearing demand deposits $ 107,237 $ 98,256
Savings and interest bearing demand deposits 210,158 184,548
Time deposits 131,070 146,492
Total deposits $ 448,465 $ 429,296
Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase 10,000 14,395
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 42,250 52,250
Trust preferred capital notes 7,217 7,217
Other liabilities 2,000 1,853
Total liabilities $ 509,932 $ 505,011
Shareholders' Equity
Preferred stock, $10 par value; 500,000 sheutdsorized and unissued $ - % -
Common stock, $2.50 par value; authorized @@ shares;
issued 2011, 3,286,992; issued 2010, 34779 8,217 8,124
Surplus 9,568 9,076
Retained earnings 37,374 35,419
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,931 1,210
Total shareholders' equity $ 58,090 $ 53,829
Total liabilities and shareholdergigy $ 568,022 $ 558,840




EAGLE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2011 2010 2009
Interest and Dividend Income
Interest and fees on loans $ 23,029 $ 23529 % 23,001
Interest on federal funds sold - 2 10
Interest and dividends on securities avtlfor sale:
Taxable interest income 2,695 2,489 2,784
Interest income exempt from federabime taxes 1,397 1,302 1,194
Dividends 413 446 461
Interest on deposits in banks 37 21 3
Total interest and dividendame $ 27,571 $ 27,789 % 27,453
Interest Expense
Interest on deposits $ 2,439 $ 2983 % 4,040
Interest on federal funds purchased andrsies
sold under agreements to repurchase 364 387 392
Interest on Federal Home Loan Bank advances 1,685 1,844 2,042
Interest on trust preferred capital notes 713 138 184
Interest on interest rate swap 180 178 135
Total interest expense $ 4,805 $ 5530 $ 6,793
Net interest income $ 22,766 $ 22,259 % 20,660
Provision For Loan Losses 3,750 6,325 4,350
Net interest income after pravisfor loan losses $ 19,016 $ 15934  $ 16,310
Noninterest Income
Income from fiduciary activities $ 907 $ 917  $ 818
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,586 1,784 2,053
Other service charges and fees 3,190 2,993 2,148
Gain (loss) on the sale of bank premiseseguip ment 76 (83) -
Loss on the sale of other real estate owned (361) (338) (26)
Gain (loss) on securities 67 98 (419)
Other operating income 120 128 52
Total noninterest income $ 5585 $ 5499 % 4,626
Noninterest Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits $ 10,609 $ 9,263 $ 9,262
Occupancy expenses 1,155 1,142 1,069
Equipment expenses 676 625 665
Advertising and marketing expenses 500 435 409
Stationery and supplies 292 246 311
ATM network fees 546 442 104
Other real estate owned expenses 159 19 366
FDIC assessment 712 852 801
Computer software expense 507 419 317
Outside service fees 742 423 313
Bank franchise tax 376 317 305
Other operating expenses 2,634 2,626 2,558
Total noninterest expenses $ B9 $ 16,809 $ 16,480
Income before income taxes $ 5,693 $ 4,624 % 4,456
Income Tax Expense 1,371 1,019 1,015
Net Income $ 4,322 $ 3,605 $ 3,441
Earnings Per Share
Net income per common share, basic $ 131 % 111 $ 1.09
Net income per common share, diluted $ 131 $ 111 $ 1.08

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




EAGLE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Accumulated

Other
Common Retained Comprehensive Comprehensive
Stock Surp lus Earnings Income (Loss) Income Total
Balance, December 31,2008 S 7888 S 7,796 S 32,779 S (1634) S 46.829
C omprehensive income:
Net income 3,441 S 3441 3441
Other comprehensive income:
Changes in benefit obligations and planassets for
defined benefit and post retirement benefit plans,
net of deferred income taxes of $253 491 491 491
Change in market value of interest rate swap,
net of deferred income taxes of $160 iR iR iR
Unrealized gain onavailable for sale securities,
net of deferred income taxes of $991 1923 1923 1923
S §,%67
Issuance of restricted stock, stockincentive plan(3.509 shares) 9 ()]
Income tax expense onvesting of restricted stock (6) (6)
Stock-based compensationexpense 166 166
Issuance of common stock, dividend inve stment plan (36,559 shares) 91 492 583
Issuance of common stock, employee benefit plan (4,530 shares) 1 65 76
Dividends declared (50.68 per share) (2.172) (2,172
Balance, December 31, 2009 S 7999 S 8504 S 34048 S 1,092 S 51,643
C omprehensive income:
Net income 3,605 S 3,605 3,605
Other comprehensive income:
Changes in benefit obligations and planassets for
defined benefit and post retirement benefit plans,
275 275 275

net of deferred income taxes of SH1
Change in market value of interest rate swap,
net of deferred income taxes of (S140) (273) (273) (273)

Unrealized gain onavailable for sale securities,

net of deferred income taxes of 60 116 116 116
Total comprehensive income S 3,723
Issuance of restricted stock, stockincentive plan (11,936 shares) 30 ;o) -
Income tax expense onvesting of restricted stock (¢)] )
Stock-based compensationexpense 116 116
Issuance of common stock, dividend inve stment plan (37,9035 shares) 93 495 590
Dividends declared (S0.69 per share) (2234) (2.234)
Balance, December 31, 2010 S .24 S 9,076 S 35419 S 1210 S 53,829
Comprehensive income:
Net income 4322 S 4322 4322
Other comprehensive income:
Changes in benefit obligations and planassets for
defined benefit and post retirement benefit plans,
275 275 275

net of deferred income taxes of SH6
Change in market value of interest rate swap,
net of deferred income taxes of (S140) (27 7y 27
Unrealized gain onavailable for sale securities,
17 1717 17
S 6,043

net of deferred income taxes of $883

Total comprehensive income

Issuance of restricted stock, stockincentive plan (9,29 1 shares) 23 (23) -
Income tax benefit onvesting of restricted stock 3) 3)
Stock-based compensationexpense 166 166
Issuance of common stock, dividend inve stment plan (38,703 shares) 96 508 604
Issuance of common stock, employee benefit plan (5,184 shares) 13 76 89
Retirement of common stock (15,663 shares) (39) 232) (27
Dividends declared (50.72 per share) (2,367) (2,367)
Balance, December 31,2011 N 8217 S 9,568 S 37374 S 2931 N 58,090

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



EAGLE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $
Adjustments to reconcile net income to nehcas
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of intangible and othesats
(Gain) loss on securities
Provision for loan losses
(Gain) loss on the sale of bank presmand equipment
Loss on the sale of other real estateed
Stock-based compensation expense
Premium amortization (discount acomgtion securities, net
Deferred tax benefit
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in other assets
(Decrease) increase in other liabdli

Net cash provided by operatiogyvities $

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds from maturities and principal pay ment
of securities available for sale and liettd investments

Proceeds from sales of securities availablsdite
Purchases of securities available for sale
Proceeds from the sale of restricted investsen
Purchases of restricted investments
Proceeds from the sale of equipment
Purchases of bank premises and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of other real estateedw
Net (increase) in loans

Net cash (used in) investinivites $

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net increase in demand deposit, money market
and savings accounts $
Net (decrease) increase in certificates obdép
Net (decrease) increase in federal funds @ageshand
securities sold under agreements to réase
Net (decrease) in Federal Home Loan Bank ambgan
Issuance of common stock, employee benefit pla
Retirement of common stock
Cash dividends paid

Net cash provided by financaatjvities $

2011 2010 2009
4322 $ 3,605 $ 3,441
843 779 778
91 136 165
(67) (98) 419
3,750 6,325 4,350
(76) 83 -
361 338 26
166 116 165
111 26 (26)
(317) (362) (652)
2,568 (1,676) (2,118)
(13) 127 128
11,739  $ 9399 % 6,676
40,166 34,592 27,530
4,849 2,853 1,959
(46,798) (50,180) (29,302)
461 417 174
- - (124)
661 43 93
(964) (1,843) (310)
3,167 2,035 1,281
(8,139) (10,802) (20,426)
(6597) $ (22,885) % (19,125)
34592  $ 21,743 $ 25,098
(15,422) 9,445 (13,517)
(4,395) 380 (677)
(10,000) (10,000) (7,750)
89 - 76
(271) - -
(1,764) (1,645) (1,587)
2829 $ 19,923 $ 1,643

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



EAGLE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009

2011 2010 2009
Increase (decrease) in castcasl equivalents $ 7971 $ 6,437 $ (10,806)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning 13,970 7,533 18,339
Ending $ 21,941 $ 13,970 $ 7,533
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash payments for:
Interest $ 4,885 $ 5618 $ 6,896
Income taxes $ 1,100 $ 3,550 $ 1,295
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing
and Financing Activities:
Unrealized gain on securities available fde sa $ 2,602 $ 176 $ 2,914
Change in fair value of interest rate swap $ (411) $ (413) $ 472
Other real estate acquired in settlementarido $ 4,045 $ 1,235 $ 3,546
Issuance of common stock, dividend investnpdan $ 604 $ 590 $ 583

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



NOTE 1. Nature of Banking Activities and Significant Accounting Policies

Eagle Financial Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries (@ompany” or “Corporation”) grant commercial, dimcial, agricultural, residential and consumer
loans to customers in Virginia and the Eastern Badle of West Virginia. The loan portfolio is weliversified and generally is collateralized by
assets of the customers. The loans are expectezirepaid from cash flows or proceeds from the sfbkelected assets of the borrowers.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Comp@onform to accounting principles generally acedph the United States of America and to
accepted practices within the banking industry.

Principles of Consolidation

The Company owns 100% of Bank of Clarke County (&nk”) and Eagle Financial Statutory Trust Il.hél consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of the Company and its wholiped subsidiaries. All significant intercompamgcaunts and transactions between the
Company and the Bank have been eliminated. EagbnEial Statutory Trust Il is accounted for unttex provisions of GAAP. The subordinated
debt of Eagle Financial Statutory Trust Il is refel as a liability of the Company.

Trust Assets

Securities and other property held by the Eagledtment Group in a fiduciary or agency capacity rave assets of the Company and are not
included in the accompanying consolidated finanstatements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egsiivalents include cash on hand, amounts due banks, federal funds sold, and interest
bearing deposits. Generally, federal funds arelmged and sold for one-day periods.

Securities

Debt securities that management has the positteatimnd ability to hold to maturity are classifizsl "held to maturity” and recorded at amortized
cost. Securities not classified as held to matunitcluding equity securities with readily detemable fair values, are classified as "available for
sale" and recorded at fair value, with unrealizaihg and losses excluded from earnings and repurigither comprehensive income.

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognizeddrest income using the interest method overeheg of the securities. Declines in the fair
value of held to maturity and available for saleusities below their cost that are deemed to blaéothan temporary” are reflected in earnings as
realized losses. In estimating “other than tempdianpairment losses, management considers (1)ethgth of time and the extent to which the fair
value has been less than cost, (2) the financiadition and near-term prospects of the issuer,(@hthe intent and ability of the Company to retain
its investment in the issuer for a period of timéfisient to allow for any anticipated recoveryfafr value. Gains and losses on the sale of sisiri
are recorded on the trade date and are determsied the specific identification method.

The Bank is required to maintain an investmenh@dapital stock of certain correspondent banks:gddily available market exists for this stock
and it has no quoted market value. The investnmetitdse securities is recorded at cost and theyepmeted on the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet as restricted investments.

Loans

The Company grants mortgage, commercial and consloaes to customers. A substantial portion oflte portfolio is represented by mortgage
loans throughout the Counties of Clarke and FrelgXirginia and the City of Winchester, Virginidhe ability of the Company’s debtors to honor
their contracts is dependent upon the real estatganeral economic conditions in this area.

Loans that management has the intent and abilitigold for the foreseeable future or until maturity pay-off generally are reported at their
outstanding unpaid principal balances adjustedHerallowance for loan losses. Interest incomecgued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan
origination and commitment fees and direct loartsage being recognized as collected and incurféa: use of this method of recognition does not
produce results that are materially different frogaults which would have been produced if suchscastl fees were deferred and amortized as an
adjustment of the loan yield over the life of tietated loan.

The accrual of interest on mortgage and commeladads is discontinued at the time the loan is 9@ dkelinquent unless the credit is well-secured
and in process of collection. Credit card loand ather personal loans are typically charged offater than 180 days past due. Past due status is
based on the contractual terms of the loan. loases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or chaffetlan earlier date if collection of principaldan
interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loanattare placed on nonaccrual or charged off is segbagainst interest income. The interest on these
loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or costrezy method, until qualifying for return to acatu Loans are returned to accrual status when all
the principal and interest amounts contractually die brought current and future payments are neépassured.



Risks by Loan Portfolio Segments
One-to-Four-Family Residential Real Estate Lending

Residential mortgage loans generally are made @bakis of the borrower’s ability to make repaynfemin employment and other income and are
secured by real estate whose value tends to bédyreadertainable. As part of the application m®s; information is gathered concerning income,
employment and credit history of the applicant.hevaluation of residential collateral is provideg independent fee appraisers who have been
approved by the Bank’s Directors Loan Committee.

Commercial Real Estate Lending

Commercial real estate lending entails significadtlitional risk as compared with residential magtgdending. Commercial real estate loans
typically involve larger loan balances concentrawgth single borrowers or groups of related borrmwyve Additionally, the repayment of loans
secured by income producing properties is typicd#pendent on the successful operation of a bisioea real estate project and thus may be
subject, to a greater extent, to adverse condifiotise real estate market or the economy, in géner

Construction and Land Development Lending

There are two characteristics of construction legdihich impact its overall risk as compared tadestial mortgage lending. First, there is more
concentration risk due to the extension of a ldoge balance through several lines of credit tingls developer or contractor. Second, there is
more collateral risk due to the fact that loan feirrde provided to the borrower based upon the atginvalue of the collateral after completion.
This could cause an inaccurate estimate of the abmoeeded to complete construction or an excedsareto-value ratio. To mitigate the risks
associated with construction lending, the Bank gahelimits loan amounts to 80% of the estimatpgraised value of the finished home.

Commercial and Industrial Lending

Commercial business loans generally have morethiak residential mortgage loans, but have higheldgi To manage these risks, the Bank
generally obtains appropriate collateral and peakgnarantees from the borrower’s principal owreatd monitors the financial condition of the
borrower. Commercial business loans typicallyrasgle on the basis of the borrower’s ability to mad@ayment from cash flow from its business
and are secured by business assets, such as caaimeat estate, accounts receivable, equipmentimrghtory. As a result, the availability of
funds for the repayment of commercial businessdaarsubstantially dependent on the success dfubmess itself. Furthermore, the collateral for
commercial business loans may depreciate overdimegenerally cannot be appraised with as muchgwaas residential real estate.

Consumer Lending

Consumer loans generally entail greater risk tremidential mortgage loans, particularly in the caeonsumer loans which are unsecured or
secured by rapidly depreciable assets such as abtes In such cases, any repossessed collateraldefaulted consumer loan may not provide
an adequate source of repayment of the outstafatimgbalance as a result of the greater likelihmodamage, loss or depreciation.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established aefoare estimated to have occurred through a povisr loan losses charged to earnings. Loan
losses are charged against the allowance when maesyg believes the uncollectibility of a loan bakams confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if
any, are credited to the allowance. The allowdncdoan losses is evaluated on a regular basiswéyagement and is based upon management's
periodic review of the collectibility of the loams light of historical experience, the nature amidume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations tha
may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estiedavalue of any underlying collateral and prevgileconomic conditions. This evaluation is
inherently subjective as it requires estimates d@hatsusceptible to significant revision as mofermation becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific, general andlarsted components. The specific component relmtdoans that are classified using an internal
loan grading system. For loans that are alsoifiledss impaired, an allowance is established wherdiscounted cash flows (or collateral value or
observable market price) of the impaired loan vgdothan the carrying value of that loan. The galh@omponent covers non-classified loans and is
based on historical loss experience and other tgtigé factors. An unallocated component is maietd to cover uncertainties that could affect
management’'s estimate of probable losses. Thdogatéd component of the allowance reflects thegmaof imprecision inherent in the
underlying assumptions used in the methodologiesstmating specific and general losses in théfga.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on ctiméormation and events, it is probable that ttempany will be unable to collect the scheduled
payments of principal or interest when due accardim the contractual terms of the loan agreemdractors considered by management in
determining impairment include payment status,atettl value, and the probability of collecting egtled principal and interest payments when
due. Loans that experience insignificant paymetays and payment shortfalls generally are notsiflad as impaired. Management determines
the significance of payment delays and paymenttfdiisron a case-by-case basis, taking into conaigan all of the circumstances surrounding the
loan and the borrower, including the length of teday, the reasons for the delay, the borrowertsr grayment record, and the amount of the
shortfall in relation to the principal and interested. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loaisbiar commercial and construction loans by
either the present value of expected future cashsfldiscounted at the loan's effective interes, rite loan's obtainable market price, or the fair
market value less estimated liquidation costs efdabllateral if the loan is collateral dependeldrge groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans
are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accomgly, the Company does not separately identify\vigdial consumer and residential loans for
impairment disclosures, unless such loans areuthiect of a restructuring agreement.



Bank Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Buildings and equipmegtcarried at cost, less accumulated depreciatompated on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Estimatetlilbves range from 10 to 39 years for buildirzgsl 3 to 10 years for furniture and equipment.

Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foosdre are held for sale and are initially recordethe lesser of the fair value of the propertgsle
selling costs or the loan balance outstandingeatitite of foreclosure. Any write-downs based @nasset’s fair value at the date of acquisition are
charged to the allowance for loan losses. Afteedimsure, valuations are periodically performednignagement and property held for sale is
carried at the lower of the new cost basis or ¥aiue less cost to sell. Impairment losses on gntgpo be held and used are measured as the
amount by which the carrying amount of a properiyeeds its fair value. Costs of significant prapémprovements are capitalized, whereas costs
relating to holding property are expensed. Thetigorof interest costs relating to development edlrestate is capitalized. Valuations are
periodically performed by management, and any syuesa write-downs are recorded as a charge to tipesaif necessary, to reduce the carrying
value of a property to the lower of its cost on faalue less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses dmerations and changes in the valuation
allowance are included in net expenses from fosada@mssets.

Core Deposit Intangible Assets

Acquired intangible assets, such as the value odthased core deposits, are amortized over thegmhenefited, not exceeding fifteen years. The
book value of the Company’s core deposit intangisiget, resulting from a branch acquisition, wilg Aamortized at December 31, 2010.

Retirement Plans

The Company had a non-contributory defined bepeditsion plan that covers eligible employees. Hffedecember 31, 2006, the pension plan
was amended so that no further benefits would acender the plan and no additional employees doeddme participants. The plan was
terminated during 2011 after receiving final ap@iovRefer to Note 10 for a description of the teation of the Company’s pension plan. The
Company also sponsors a 401(k) savings plan unkiehveligible employees may defer a portion of ititeimpensation on a pretax basis. The
Company also provides a match to participantsiggtan, as described more fully in Note 12.

Stock-Based Compensation Plan

During 2003, the Company’s shareholders approvetbek incentive plan which allows key employees dirdctors to increase their personal
financial interest in the Company. This plan pesrtiie issuance of incentive stock options and qualified stock options and the award of stock
appreciation rights, common stock, restricted st@eid phantom stock. The plan, as adopted, aatftbthe issuance of up to 300,000 shares of
common stock. This plan is discussed more fulljate 11.

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arerdeted using the liability (or balance sheet) méthdnder this method, the net deferred tax asset
or liability is determined based on the tax effegtthe temporary differences between the booktardbases of the various assets and liabilities and
gives current recognition to changes in tax rateslaws.

When tax returns are filed, it is likely that sopesitions taken would be sustained upon examindtyotie applicable taxing authority, while others
are subject to uncertainty about the merits ofabstion taken or the amount of the position thatld be ultimately sustained. The benefit of a tax
position is recognized in the financial statememthe period during which, based on all availablalence, the Company believes it is “more likely
than not” that the position will be sustained ugsamination, including the resolution of appealsitayation processes, if any. Tax positions taken
are not offset or aggregated with other positiohax positions that meet the “more likely than n@tognition threshold are measured as the largest
amount of tax benefit that is more than fifty petcg50%) likely of being realized upon settlemerithwvthe applicable taxing authority. The portion
of the benefits associated with tax positions taken exceeds the amount measured as described sb@flected as a liability for unrecognized tax
benefits in the balance sheet along with any aagmtiinterest and penalties that would be payabléhe applicable taxing authority upon
examination. Interest and penalties associateld witecognized tax benefits are classified as mddit income taxes in the statement of income.
The Company has no uncertain tax positions.

Advertising
The Company follows the policy of charging the sasitadvertising to expense as incurred.
Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to th@ #6ancial statements to conform to reportingZod.1.



Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per share represents income awit@blcommon shareholders divided by the weightegramye number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings gi®re reflects additional common shares that dvbave been outstanding if dilutive potential
common shares had been issued, as well as anyradptso income that would result from the assumedance. The number of potential common
shares is determined using the treasury methodedaiés to outstanding stock options and nonvestgdcted stock grants.

The following table shows the weighted average remdd shares used in computing earnings per shatethe effect on the weighted average
number of shares of dilutive potential common stoBbtential dilutive common stock had no effecirmome available to common shareholders.

2011 2010 2009
Average number of common shares outstanding 3,202,29 3,243,292 3,177,244
Effect of dilutive common stock 7,708 7,576 7,290
Average number of common shares outstanding
used to calculate diluted earnings per share 993928 3,250,868 3,184,534

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally accepted in thetethiStates of America require that recognized negeexpenses, gains and losses be included in
net income. Certain changes in assets and liailinet of income taxes, are reported within ta&aitce sheet as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity. These changes, along within@®me, are components of comprehensive incontk aaa reported in the statement of
shareholders’ equity. In addition to net incontes Company’s other comprehensive income includasgés in the benefit obligations and plan
assets for defined benefit and postretirement litepkins, unrealized gains or losses on intere®t saaps, and unrealized gains or losses on
available for sale securities.

The components of the change in unrealized gaissék) on securities during 2011, 2010 and 2008 agfollows:

2011 2010 2009
Gross unrealized gain $ 2,669 $ 274 $ 2,495
Reclassification adjustment for realized (gainklos (67) (98) 419
Net unrealized gain (loss) before taxes 2,602 176 2,914
Tax effect (885) (60) (991)
$ 1,717 $ 116 $ 1,923
The components of accumulated other comprehensieerie, net of deferred taxes, during 2011, 2010 2899 were as follows:
Change ir
Unrealizec Market Definec Posi
Gain Value Benefit Retirement
(Loss) or of Interest Pensior Benefit

Securities Rate Swap Plan Plan Total
Balance, December 31, 2009 $ 1,429 $ 162 $ (559) $ 60 $ 1,902
2010 Change 116 (273) 272 3 118
Balance, December 31, 2010 1,545 (111) (287) 63 1,210
2011 Chang 1,717 (271 287 (12) 1,721
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 3,262 $ (382) % - $ 51 % 2,931

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company follows GAAP to account for derivatared hedging activities. Accordingly, a derivatisgecognized in the balance sheet at its fair
value. The fair value of a derivative is deterndir®y quoted market prices and mathematical modgtgywcurrent and historical data. If certain
hedging criteria are met, including testing for gedffectiveness, special hedge accounting mayppked. The Company assesses each hedge,
both at inception and on an ongoing basis, to deter whether the derivative used in a hedging &etisn is effective in offsetting changes in the
fair value or cash flows of the hedged item and timeiethe derivative is expected to remain effectiveing subsequent periods. The Company
discontinues hedge accounting when (a) it detersnihat a derivative is no longer effective in offieey changes in fair value or cash flows of a
hedged item; (b) the derivative expires or is stddninated or exercised; (c) probability existattthe forecasted transaction will no longer oaur

(d) management determines that designating thealé as a hedging instrument is no longer appatgr When hedge accounting is discontinued
and a derivative remains outstanding, the Companggnizes the derivative in the balance sheetsdiit value and changes in the fair value are
recognized in net income.

At inception, the Company designates a derivats/€aq a fair value hedge of recognized assetsbilities or of unrecognized firm commitments
(fair-value hedge) or (b) a hedge of forecastedsw@ations or variable cash flows to be receive@aid in conjunction with recognized assets or
liabilities (cash-flow hedge). For a derivativeated as a fair-value hedge, a change in fair valtecorded as an adjustment to the hedged iteim an
recognized in net income. For a derivative treated cash flow hedge, the effective portion dfi@ange in fair value is recorded as an adjustment to
the hedged item and recognized as a componentcafradated other comprehensive income (loss) wisiiareholders’ equity. For a derivative
treated as a cash flow hedge, the ineffective gomif a change in fair value is recorded as anshaient to the hedged item and recognized in net
income. For more information on derivative finah@estruments see Note 14 to the Consolidated EiahStatements.



Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptedthe United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptionsfibett the reported amounts of assets and liaksliiad disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamsl the reported amounts of revenues and expdnsieg the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Material estimatext tire particularly susceptible to significant apamn the near term relate to the determination of
the allowance for loan losses and the valuatiotedérred tax assets.

Stock Repurchase Program

On September 19, 2011, the Corporation announc&dek Repurchase Program to repurchase up to 158l@res of its common stock prior to
June 30, 2012. During 2011, the Company purchaS¢g&b3 shares of its Common Stock under its steplinchase program at an average price of
$17.28. The maximum number of shares that mapggurchased under the plan as of December 31,&@1134,337.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the Financial Accounting StandaBdsrd (FASB) issued Accounting Standards UpdatSUA 2010-06, “Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820): Improigrlosures about Fair Value Measurements.” ASW0206 amends Subtopic 820-10 to
clarify existing disclosures, require new discl@yr and includes conforming amendments to guidanteemployers’ disclosures about
postretirement benefit plan assets. ASU 2010-Oéffisctive for interim and annual periods beginnafer December 15, 2009, except for
disclosures about purchases, sales, issuancesetlanents in the roll forward of activity in Léw&fair value measurements. Those disclosures are
effective for fiscal years beginning after Decemb®&y 2010 and for interim periods within those disgears. The adoption of the new guidance did
not have a material impact on the Company’s codat#d financial statements.

In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-20, “Redgiea (Topic 310) — Disclosures about the Creditli@uaf Financing Receivables and the

Allowance for Credit Losses.” The new disclosutgdgnce significantly expands the existing requaata and will lead to greater transparency
into a company’s exposure to credit losses fronditeg arrangements. The extensive new disclosur@garmation as of the end of a reporting

period became effective for both interim and anmapbrting periods ending on or after December2080. Specific disclosures regarding activity
that occurred before the issuance of the ASU, sisde allowance roll forward and modification thsares, will be required for periods beginning
on or after December 15, 2010. The Company hasded the required disclosures in its consolidditehcial statements.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-28 afigible — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) — WhenPerform Step 2 of the Goodwill
Impairment Test for Reporting Units with Zero ordd¢ive Carrying Amounts.” The amendments in thBUAmodify Step 1 of the goodwill
impairment test for reporting units with zero ogatve carrying amounts. For those reporting umitsentity is required to perform Step 2 of the
goodwill impairment test if it is more likely tharot that a goodwill impairment exists. The amendisién this ASU are effective for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those years, beginnifigraDecember 15, 2010. Early adoption is not pttedli The adoption of the new guidance did
not have a material impact on the Company’s codat#d financial statements.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-29, iisass Combinations (Topic 805) — Disclosure of $aimentary Pro Forma Information for

Business Combinations.” The guidance requiresfanma disclosure for business combinations thatioed in the current reporting period as
though the acquisition date for all business comigms that occurred during the year had been #gedfeginning of the annual reporting period. If
comparative financial statements are presentedptbeforma information should be reported as thotigh acquisition date for all business
combinations that occurred during the current yeat been as of the beginning of the comparable priaual reporting period. ASU 2010-29 is
effective for business combinations for which tloguasition date is on or after the beginning of fingt annual reporting period beginning on or
after December 15, 2010. Early adoption is peeditt The adoption of the new guidance did not heweaterial impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

The Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) issueal Rnle No. 33-9002, “Interactive Data to Improviedncial Reporting.” The rule requires
companies to submit financial statements in extdadiusiness reporting language (XBR&)mat with their SEC filings on a phased-in scHedu
Large accelerated filers and foreign large acctadréilers using U.S. GAAP were required to providieractive data reports starting with their first
quarterly report for fiscal periods ending on deaflune 15, 2010. All remaining filers are regdito provide interactive data reports startindiwit
their first quarterly report for fiscal periods émgl on or after June 15, 2011. The Company compliih this Rule beginning with the filing of the
June 30, 2011 Form 10-Q.

In March 2011, the SEC issued Staff Accounting &inl (SAB) 114. This SAB revises or rescinds morsi of the interpretive guidance included in
the codification of the Staff Accounting Bulletirei®es. This update is intended to make the releiva@rpretive guidance consistent with current
authoritative accounting guidance issued as agfatie FASB’s Codification. The principal changasolve revision or removal of accounting
guidance references and other conforming changessore consistency of referencing through the SaBes. The effective date for SAB 114 was
March 28, 2011. The adoption of the new guidatidenot have a material impact on the Company’sobdated financial statements.

In January 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-01, “Rebdes (Topic 310) — Deferral of the Effective Paif Disclosures about Troubled Debt

Restructurings.” The amendments in this ASU teraplyrdelayed the effective date of the discloswaesut troubled debt restructurings in Update
2010-20 for public entities. The delay was intehde allow the Board time to complete its delibEnas on what constitutes a troubled debt
restructuring. The effective date of the new disgles about troubled debt restructurings for pudatiities and the guidance for determining what
constitutes a troubled debt restructuring was &ffedor interim and annual periods ending aftemeJd5, 2011. The adoption of the new guidance
did not have a material impact on the Company’'sobidated financial statements.



In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-02, “Reediles (Topic 310) — A Creditor's Determination oh®ther a Restructuring Is a Troubled
Debt Restructuring.” The amendments in this AS&tifyl the guidance on a creditor’s evaluation okettter it has granted a concession to a debtor.
They also clarify the guidance on a creditor’s gatibn of whether a debtor is experiencing finanditéiculty. The amendments in this ASU are
effective for the first interim or annual periodgiening on or after June 15, 2011. Early adopt®opermitted. Retrospective application to the
beginning of the annual period of adoption for nficdtions occurring on or after the beginning of tinnual adoption period is required. As a
result of applying these amendments, an entity iantify receivables that are newly considered ¢oifpaired. For purposes of measuring
impairment of those receivables, an entity shogiplyathe amendments prospectively for the firseiimh or annual period beginning on or after
June 15, 2011. The Company has adopted ASU 20Bh@hcluded the required disclosures in its cadatdd financial statements.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-03, “Traarsf and Servicing (Topic 860) — ReconsideratiorEfiéctive Control for Repurchase
Agreements.” The amendments in this ASU removenftbe assessment of effective control (1) the roiterequiring the transferor to have the
ability to repurchase or redeem the financial asset substantially the agreed terms, even in tlemteof default by the transferee and (2) the
collateral maintenance implementation guidanceedl#o that criterion. The amendments in this A8Y effective for the first interim or annual
period beginning on or after December 15, 2011. ghelance should be applied prospectively to tretimas or modifications of existing
transactions that occur on or after the effectimted Early adoption is not permitted. The adoptbthe new guidance is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated forstatements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, “Fair¥aMeasurement (Topic 820) — Amendments to Ach@@mmon Fair Value Measurement
and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSEhis ASU is the result of joint efforts by theABB and IASB to develop a single,
converged fair value framework on how (not whenijnasure fair value and what disclosures to proafmit fair value measurements. The ASU
is largely consistent with existing fair value maa&sment principles in U.S. GAAP (Topic 820), witkanmy of the amendments made to eliminate
unnecessary wording differences between U.S. GAA®P IERSs. The amendments are effective for intemmd annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2011 with prospective applicationrlyEapplication is not permitted. The adoptiontioé new guidance is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated fomrstatements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, “Comgmsive Income (Topic 220) — Presentation of Comgmeive Income.” The objective of this
ASU is to improve the comparability, consistencyd aransparency of financial reporting and to inseethe prominence of items reported in other
comprehensive income by eliminating the option tespnt components of other comprehensive incomgagsof the statement of changes in
stockholders’ equity. The amendments require #ilahon-owner changes in stockholders’ equity bespnted either in a single continuous
statement of comprehensive income or in two sepdmatt consecutive statements. The single stateofi@mprehensive income should include the
components of net income, a total for net incorhe,domponents of other comprehensive income, afmtather comprehensive income, and a
total for comprehensive income. In the two-statetmapproach, the first statement should preseat tat income and its components followed
consecutively by a second statement that shoukkpteall the components of other comprehensiveniec@ total for other comprehensive income,
and a total for comprehensive income. The amenthtEnnot change the items that must be reportethier comprehensive income, the option for
an entity to present components of other comprehenscome either net of related tax effects orobefrelated tax effects, or the calculation or
reporting of earnings per share. The amendmerttsisSnPASU should be applied retrospectively. Theeadments are effective for fiscal years and
interim periods within those years beginning afbecember 15, 2011. Early adoption is permittedabee compliance with the amendments is
already permitted. The amendments do not requargsition disclosures. The Company is currenthessisag the impact that ASU 2011-05 will
have on its consolidated financial statements

In August 2011, the SEC issued Final Rule No. 33892Technical Amendments to Commission Rules aodrB related to the FASB's
Accounting Standards Codification.” The SEC haspaed technical amendments to various rules andsamder the Securities Act of 1933, the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the Investr@amhpany Act of 1940. These revisions were necgseaconform those rules and forms to the
FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The techhiamendments include revision of certain rulesRiegulation S-X, certain items in
Regulation S-K, and various rules and forms prescriunder the Securities Act, Exchange Act andstment Company Act. The Release was
effective as of August 12, 2011. The adoption h&f hew guidance did not have a material impacthen Gompany’s consolidated financial
statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08&afigible — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) — Testi@godwill for Impairment.” The
amendments in this ASU permit an entity to firgess qualitative factors related to goodwill toedmine whether it is more likely than not that the
fair value of the reporting unit is less than igrging amount as a basis for determining whethisrnecessary to perform the two-step goodwill tes
described in Topic 350. The more-likely-than-rfroeshold is defined as having a likelihood of mihian 50 percent. Under the amendments in this
ASU, an entity is not required to calculate the failue of a reporting unit unless the entity defees that it is more likely than not that its fair
value is less than its carrying amount. The amemdsiin this ASU are effective for annual and imbegoodwill impairment tests performed for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 201 1lyEatoption is permitted, including for annual anterim goodwill impairment tests performed
as of a date before September 15, 2011, if anyenfihancial statements for the most recent anouahterim period have not yet been issued. The
adoption of the new guidance is not expected t@ lsamaterial impact on the Company’s consolidatehtial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11, éBed Sheet (Topic 210) — Disclosures about Offggttissets and Liabilities.” This ASU
requires entities to disclose both gross infornmatimd net information about both instruments aaddactions eligible for offset in the balance
sheet, and instruments and transactions subjeeintagreement similar to a master netting arrangenfen entity is required to apply the
amendments for annual reporting periods beginnmgroafter January 1, 2013, and interim periodéiwithose annual periods. An entity should
provide the disclosures required by those amendsmetriospectively for all comparative periods pnésd. The Company is currently assessing the
impact that ASU 2011-11 will have on its consolathfinancial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, “pemensive Income (Topic 220) — Deferral of theeEfive Date for Amendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of ltems Out o€mulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accourfitamdards Update No. 2011-05." The
amendments are being made to allow the Board tomeedeliberate whether to present on the face effithancial statements the effects of



reclassifications out of accumulated other compmsive income on the components of net income aher@omprehensive income for all periods
presented. While the Board is considering the djperal concerns about the presentation requirenfentgclassification adjustments and the needs
of financial statement users for additional infotima about reclassification adjustments, entitiesudd continue to report reclassifications out of
accumulated other comprehensive income consistighttine presentation requirements in effect befdpelate 2011-05. All other requirements in
Update 2011-05 are not affected by this Updatdudtieg the requirement to report comprehensive imeeither in a single continuous financial
statement or in two separate but consecutive fiahstatements. Public entities should apply thres@irements for fiscal years, and interim periods
within those years, beginning after December 18,12W0Nonpublic entities should begin applying thesguirements for fiscal years ending after
December 15, 2012, and interim and annual periodeafter. The Company is currently assessingrtipadt that ASU 2011-12 will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2. Securities

Amortized costs and fair values of securities @adé for sale at December 31, 2011 and 2010 wefalaws:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value

December 31, 201
(in thousands’

Obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencies $ 17,655 878 $ -$ 18,533

M ortgage-backed securities 33,420 1,143 a7 34,546
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 43,640 2,159 (33) 45,766

Corporate securities 12,421 707 (85) 13,043

Equity securities 2,054 192 - 2,246

$ 109,190 $ 5,079 $ (135)$ 114,134

December 31, 201
(in thousands

Obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencies $ 32,718 531 $ 9Ns% 33,150

M ortgage-backed securities 15,706 524 (73) 16,157
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 42,511 928 (531) 42,908

Corporate securities 14,464 994 (57) 15,401

Equity securities 2,054 124 - 2,178

$ 107,451 $ 3,101 $ (758)$ 109,794

Carrying amounts of restricted securities at Decamli, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
(in thousands’

Federal Reserve Bank Stock $ 344 $ 344
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 3,036 3,498
Community Bankers' Bank Stock 140 140

$ 3,520 $ 3,982




The amortized cost and fair value of securitieslabbe for sale at December 31, 2011, by contrdangturity, are shown below. Maturities may
differ from contractual maturities in mortgage-badlsecurities because the mortgages underlyingethigrities may be called or repaid without any
penalties.

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(in thousands’

Due in one year or less $ 995 1,015
Due after one year through five years 31,385 32,767
Due after five years through ten years 36,037 38,020
Due after ten years 38,719 40,086
Equity securities 2,054 2,246

$ 109,190 $ 114,134

During 2011, the Company sold $4,849,000 in avéldbr sale securities for a net gain of $155,000.2010, the Company sold $2,853,000 in
available for sale securities for a net gain of ,808. During 2011, the Company also recorded grairment charge of $87,500 on a corporate
security. The remaining book value of this seguattDecember 31, 2011 is $38,000.

The fair value and gross unrealized losses forrgesiavailable for sale, totaled by the lengthtiafe that individual securities have been in a
continuous gross unrealized loss position, at Déeer@l, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Less than 12 month 12 months or more Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

December 31, 201
(in thousands’

Obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencies $ $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -
M ortgage-backed securities 4,003 17 - - 4,003 17
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 282 2 294 31 576 33
Corporate securities 1,913 85 - - 1,913 85

Equity securities - - - - - -
$ 6,198 $ 104 $ 294 $ 31 % 6,492 $ 135

December 31, 201
(in thousands’

Obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencies  $ 6,916 97 $ - $ -$ 6,916 $ 97
M ortgage-backed securities 4,355 73 - - 4,355 73
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 11,464 481 320 50 11,784 531
Corporate securities 1,047 57 - - 1,047 57

Equity securities - - - - - -
$ 23,782 $ 708 $ 320 $ 50 $ 24,102 $ 758

Gross unrealized losses on available for sale g@=uincluded nine (9) and thirty-five (35) sedi@$ at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
respectively. The Company evaluates securitiesofber-than-temporary impairment on at least a tqugrbasis, and more frequently when
economic or market concerns warrant such evaluatidre Company’s mortgage-backed securities atedsby U.S. government agencies, which
guarantee payments to investors regardless oftahessof the underlying mortgages. Consideratsogiven to the length of time and the amount of
an unrealized loss, the financial condition of ifgier, and the intent and ability of the Compansetain its investment in the issuer long enough t
allow for an anticipated recovery in fair valueheTfair value of a security reflects its liquidig compared to similar instruments, current market
rates on similar instruments, and the creditworkéof the issuer. Absent any change in the liguaf a security or the creditworthiness of the
issuer, prices will decline as market rates risd wice-versa. The primary cause of the unrealibsses on obligations of U.S. government
corporations and agencies, mortgage-backed sesyrithd obligations of states and political sulsiivis at December 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010 was changes in market interest rates. Shresetlosses can be attributed to changes in matketst rates and not expected cash flows or an
issuer’s financial condition, the unrealized losaesdeemed to be temporary. The Company’s hadddfigorporate securities and equity securities
represent investments in larger financial institosi. The current economic crisis involving housiiguidity and credit were the primary causes of
the unrealized losses on these securities at Demreib, 2011 and 2010. The Company monitors thanfiral condition of these issuers
continuously and will record other-than-temporanpairment if the recovery of value is unlikely.



The Company’s securities are exposed to varioks,riguch as interest rate, market, currency antitaisks. Due to the level of risk associated

with certain securities and the level of uncertairiated to changes in the value of securitieis, @t least reasonably possible that changesks ri

in the near term would materially affect securitieported in the financial statements. In additimtent economic uncertainty and market events
have led to unprecedented volatility in curren@memodity, credit and equity markets culminatindaitures of some banking and financial services
firms and Government intervention to solidify other These recent events underscore the level @siment risk associated with the current

economic environment, and accordingly the leveisif in the Company’s securities.

Securities having a carrying value of $20,117,00December 31, 2011 were pledged to secure pubposlts, securities sold under agreements to
repurchase, and for other purposes required by law.

NOTE 3. Loans
The composition of loans at December 31, 2011 &id) 2vas as follows:

December 31,
2011 2010
(in thousands’

Mortgage loans on real estate:

Construction and land develop ment $ 31,579 $ 31,560
Secured by farmland 3,390 4,332
Secured by 1-4 family residential properties 212,638 207,671
M ultifamily 4,517 4,908
Commercial 118,043 116,381
Loans to farmers 1,910 1,293
Commercial and industrial loans 22,866 24,449
Consumer installment loans 13,185 14,518
All other loans 2,296 3,337
$ 410,424 '$ 408,449
Less: Allowance for loan losses 8,743 7,111
$ 401,681 $ 401,338

NOTE 4. Allowance for Loan Losses

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for tl@syended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 wéod@sgs:

December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)

Balance, beginning $ 7,111 $ 5970 $ 4521
Provision charged to operating expense 3,750 6,325 4,350
Recoveries added to the allowance 848 291 252
Loan losses charged to the allowance (2,966) (5,475) (3,153)

Balance, ending $ 8,743 $ 7,111 $ 5,970




Nonaccrual and past due loans by class at Dece3dh@011 and 2010 were as follows:

As of December 31, 2011
(in thousands)

30 - 59 60 - 89 90 or More 90 or More
Days Days Days Total Past Days Past Due  Nonaccrual
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Current Total Loans  AStluing Loans
Commercial - Non Real Estate:
Commercial & Industrial $ 114 $ 421  $ - $ 535 $ 22331 $ 22866 3 - $ -
Commercial Real Estate:
Owner Occupied 174 9 447 630 82,476 83,106 - 600
Non-owner occupied 873 1,102 - 1,975 32,962 34,937 - 234
Construction and Farmland:
Residential - - - - 10,594 10,594 - 151
Commercial - - - - 24,375 24,375 - -
Consumer:
Installment 114 13 5 132 13,053 13,185 5 -
Residential:
Equity Lines 217 30 - 247 33,182 33,429 - 177
Single family 2,187 194 717 3,098 176,111 179,209 89 1,287
Multifamily - - - - 4,517 4,517 - -
All Other Loans - - - - 4,206 4,206 - -
Total $ 3679 $ 1,769 $ 1,169 $ 6,617 $403,807 $ 410,424 $ 94 $ 2,449
As of December 31, 2010
(in thousands)
30-59 60 - 89 90 or More 90 or More
Days Days Days Total Past Past Due Nonaccrual
Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Current Total Loans  A8tHuing Loans
Commercial - Non Real Estate:
Commercial & Industrial $ 91 $ 129 % 7 $ 227 $ 24222 $ 24,449 3 7 $ 267
Commercial Real Estate:
Owner Occupied 1,100 938 177 2,215 81,176 83,391 - 1,071
Non-owner occupied 248 - 294 542 32,448 32,990 - -
Construction and Farmland:
Residential 63 70 1,122 1,255 9,042 10,297 - 3,808
Commercial 1,222 - 911 2,133 23,462 25,595 - -
Consumer:
Installment 181 72 3 256 14,262 14,518 3 -
Residential:
Equity Lines 781 60 - 841 41,848 42,689 - 190
Single family 1,814 490 502 2,806 162,176 164,982 - 3,041
Multifamily - - - - 4,908 4,908 - -
All Other Loans - 696 - 696 3,934 4,630 - -
Total $ 5500 $ 2,455 $ 3,016 $10,971 $397,478 $ 408,449 $ 10 $ 8,377




Allowance for loan losses by segment for the yeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Allowance forcreditlosses:

Beginning Balance
Charge-Offs
Recoveries
Provision

Ending balance

Ending balance: Individually
evaluated forimpairment

Ending balance:collectively
evaluated forimpairment

Financing receivables:

Ending balance

Ending balance individually
evaluated forimpairment

As of and forthe Year Ended December 31, 2011

(in thous ands)

Construction Residential

Commercial

AllOther

Ending balance collectively evaluated

forimpairment

Allowance forcreditlosses:

Ending balance

Ending balance: Individually
evaluated forimpairment

Ending balance:collectively
evaluated forimpairment

Financing receivables:

Ending balance

Ending balance individually
evaluated forimpairment

Ending balance collectively evaluated

forimpairment

and Farmland RealEstate RealEstate Commercial Consuméoans Unallocated Total
$ 1386 $ 3457 $ 1231 $ 819 $ B2 $ 36 % - $ 7,11
(723) (2,203) (14) (572) (33) (125) - (2,966)

5 298 2 292 195 56 - 848

1948 992 (162) 538 85 156 193 3,750

$ 2618 $ 3544 $ 1057 $ 1077 $ B1 $ 23 % 193 $ 8,743
$ 1468 $ 2,071 $ 50 $ 544 $ - $ - $ - $ 4,233
$ 1150 $ 1473  $ 907 $ 533 $ 1B1 $ 23 $ 193 $ 4510
$ 34969 $ 217,155 $ 118,043 $ 22866 $ 13,185 $ 4,206 $ - $ 410424
$ 3,357 $ 9,748 $ 6,186 $ 599 $ - $ - $ - $ 19,890
$ 31612 $ 207,407 $ 11857 $ 22,267 $ 13,185 $ 4,206 $ - $ 390,534

Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2010
(in thous ands)
Construction Residential Commercial AllOther

and Farmland RealEstate RealEstate Commercial Consumé&oans Unallocated Total
$ 1386 $ 3,457 $ 1231 $ 819 $ 82 3% 36 % - $ 7,111
$ 622 $ 1623 $ 273 % 139 % - $ - $ - $ 2,657
$ 764 $ 1834 $ 958 $ 680 $ 182 $ 36 $ - $ 4,454
$ 35892 $ 212579 $ 116381 $ 24449 $ 14518 $ 4630 $ - $ 408,449
$ 3549 $ 1172 $ 5141 $ 39 $ - $ - $ - $ 20,181
$ 32,343 $ 201407 $ 111240 $ 24,130 $ 14518 $ 4630 $ - $ 388,268




Impaired loans by class at December 31, 2011 ahfl @@re as follows:

As of December 31, 2011
(in thousands)

Unpaid Average Interest
Principal Recorded Related Recorded Income
Balance Investment Allowance Investment Recognized
With no related allowance:
Commercial - Non Real Estate:
Commercial & Industrial $ 5 $ 5 % - % 2 3 -
Commercial Real Estate:
Owner Occupied 2,521 2,529 - 2,575 132
Non-owner occupied 2,552 2,567 - 2,623 110
Construction and Farmland:
Residential - - - - -
Commercial 361 361 - 466 21
Residential:
Equity lines 177 177 - 190 -
Single family 3,237 3,242 - 3,840 97
M ultifamily - - - - -
Other Loans - - - - -
$ 8853 $ 8881 $ - $ 9,696 $ 360

With an allowance recorded:
Commercial - Non Real Estate:

Commercial & Industrial $ 594 $ 600 $ 544  $ 602 $ 26
Commercial Real Estate:

Owner Occupied - - - - -

Non-owner occupied 1,112 1,124 150 1,128 64
Construction and Farmland:

Residential - - - - -

Commercial 2,997 3,006 1,468 3,012 147
Residential:

Equity lines 402 404 325 404 13

Single family 5,932 5,940 1,746 6,029 236

M ultifamily - - - - -

Other Loans - - - - -
$ 11,037 $ 11,074 % 4233 $ 11,175 $ 486

Total:

Commercial $ 599 $ 605 $ 544 % 604 3 26
Commercial Real Estate 6,185 6,220 150 6,326 306
Construction and Farmland 3,358 3,367 1,468 3,478 168
Residential 9,748 9,763 2,071 10,463 346
Other - - - - -

Total $ 19890 $ 19955 $ 4233 $ 20871 $ 846




As of December 31, 2010
(in thousands)

Unpaid Average Interest
Principal Recorded Related Recorded Income
Balance Investment Allowance Investment Recognized
With no related allowance:
Commercial - Non Real Estate:
Commercial & Industrial $ - % - % - $ - 8 -
Commercial Real Estate:
Owner Occupied 2,143 2,151 - 2,164 131
Non-owner occupied 2,144 2,153 - 2,153 34
Construction and Farmland:
Residential - - - - -
Commercial 2,447 2,447 - 2,451 70
Residential:
Equity lines 685 689 - 690 33
Single family 4,432 4,450 - 4,736 90
M ultifamily - - - - -
Other Loans - - - - -
$ 11851 $ 11,890 $ - $ 12,194 $ 358
With an allowance recorded:
Commercial - Non Real Estate:
Commercial & Industrial $ 319 % 319 $ 139 % 695 $ 29
Commercial Real Estate:
Owner Occupied 306 306 122 406 -
Non-owner occupied 548 549 151 202 23
Construction and Farmland:
Residential - - - - -
Commercial 1,102 1,102 622 1,259 68
Residential:
Equity lines - - - - -
Single family 6,055 6,093 1,623 3,653 319
M ultifamily - - - - -
Other Loans - - - - -
$ 8330 $ 8369 $ 2657 $ 6,215 $ 439
Total:
Commercial $ 319 $ 319 $ 139 % 695 $ 29
Commercial Real Estate 5,141 5,159 273 4,925 188
Construction and Farmland 3,549 3,549 622 3,710 138
Residential 11,172 11,232 1,623 9,079 442
Other - - - - -
Total $ 20,181 $ 20259 $ 2657 $ 18,409 $ 797

Recorded investment is defined as the summatidinegprincipal balance, accrued interest, and nferal loan fees or costs.




Impaired loans at December 31, 2009 were as follows

December 31,
2009
(in thousands)
Impaired loans for which,

an allowance has been provided $ 7,496
no allowance has been provided 147
Total impaired loans $ 7,643

Allowance provided for impaired

loans included in ALLL $ 2,253
Average balance of impaired loans $ 3,893
Interest income recognized $ 309

The Company uses a rating system for evaluatingiske associated with non-consumer loans. Consloaas are not evaluated for risk unless the
characteristics of the loan fall within classifieategories. Descriptions of these ratings arelésafs:

Pass Pass loans exhibit acceptable operatingstrérathnce sheet trends, and liquidity. Sufficient
cash flow exists to service the loan. All obligat have been paid by the borrower in an as
agreed manner.

Watch Watch loans exhibit income volatility, negatoperating trends, and a highly leveraged balance
sheet. A higher level of supervision is required these loans as the potential for a negative
event could impact the borrower’s ability to replag loan.

Special mention  Special mention loans exhibit &ptdl weakness, if left uncorrectaday negatively affect tl
borrower’s ability to repay its debt obligation. hd risk of default is not imminent and
borrower still demonstrates sufficient cash flovstgport the loan.

Substandard Substandard loans exhibit well defineaknesses and have a high probability of defalitte
borrowers exhibit adverse financial trends but Btive the ability to service debt obligations.

Doubtful Doubtful loans exhibit all of the charatstics inherent in substandard loans but the wesses
make collection or full liquidation highly questialole.

Loss Loss loans are considered uncollectible arsaici little value that its continuance as a batgkab
asset is not warranted.



Credit quality information by class at December 2111 and 2010 was as follows:

As of December 31, 2011
(in thousands)

Special
INTERNALRISKRATING GRADES Pass Watch Mention Substamd Do ubtful Loss Total
Commercial-Non Real Estate:
Commercial & Industrial $ 16,960 $ 2,668 $ 991 $ 22155 % 32 % - $ 22,866
Commercial Real Estate:
Owner Occupied 65,651 6,613 5,759 4,641 442 - 83,106
Non-owneroccupied 21573 6,688 1,330 5,113 233 - 34,937
Construction and Farmland:
Residential 9,839 - 755 - - - 10,594
Commercial 15,990 1657 2,595 4,029 104 - 24,375
Residential:
Equity Lines 31,862 227 355 985 - - 33,429
Single family 150,520 5,939 10,249 1,134 1367 - 179,209
Multifamily 2,320 1230 967 - - - 4517
Allotherloans 3,485 - 721 - - - 4,206
Total $ 318200 $ 25,022 $ 23,722 $ 2817 $ 2178 % - $ 397,239

Performing Nonperforming

Consumer Credit Exposure by

P ayment Activity $ 13,053 $ 132
As of December 31, 2010
(in thousands)
Special
INTERNALRISKRATING GRADES Pass Watch Mention Substamd Do ubtful Loss Total
Commercial-Non Real Estate:
Commercial & Industrial $ 19,990 $ 845 $ 1535 $ 1812 $ 267 $ - % 24,449
Commercial Real Estate:
Owner Occupied 65,983 5,686 8,823 2,899 - - 83,391
Non-owneroccupied 25,569 3,322 3,113 986 - - 32,990
Construction and Farmland:
Residential 7,875 1556 - - - - 9,431
Commercial 17,492 790 2,378 2,672 3,129 - 26,461
Residential:
Equity Lines 41430 182 67 860 150 - 42,689
Single family 147,445 3,674 2,229 9,132 2,502 - 164,982
Multifamily 3,272 1636 - - - - 4,908
Allotherloans 4,581 49 - - - - 4,630
Total $ 333637 $ 17,740 $ 18,145 $ 18,361 $ 6,048 $ - $ 393,931

Performing Nonperforming

Consumer Credit Exposure by
P ayment Activity $ 14262 $ 256

One consumer loan was rated as watch for $17,06@0¢consumer loan was rated as special mentior2fa2,$00, four consumer loans were rated as
substandard for $19,000 and one consumer loanated as doubtful for $5,000 at December 31, 20he consumer loan was rated as watch for
$23,000 and two consumer loans were rated as sulasthfor $10,000 at December 31, 2010.



NOTE 5. Troubled Debt Restructurings

All loans deemed a troubled debt restructuring;T@R”, are considered impaired, and are evaluatedllateral and cash-flow sufficiency. A loan
is considered a TDR when the Company, for econamitegal reasons related to a borrower's finandifficulties, grants a concession to the
borrower that the Company would not otherwise abersiAll of the following factors are indicatorsatithe Bank has granted a concession (one or
multiple items may be present):

«  The borrower receives a reduction of the stategtést rate to a rate less than the institutioniligngy to accept at the time of the
restructure for a new loan with comparable risk.

¢ The borrower receives an extension of the matdaty or dates at a stated interest rate lowerttteourrent market interest rate for
new debt with similar risk characteristics.

«  The borrower receives a reduction of the face amoumaturity amount of the debt as stated in tisrument or other agreement.
¢ The borrower receives a deferral of required paymérincipal and/or interest).
¢ The borrower receives a reduction of the accrutatest.

There were twenty-five troubled debt restructurednk at December 31, 2011 amounting to $10,706,00¢re were thirty-one troubled debt
restructured loans at December 31, 2010 amoumnii$$469,000. There were no outstanding commitsnentend additional amounts to troubled
debt restructured borrowers at December 31, 2011.

The following table set forth information on ther@pany's troubled debt restructurings by classrafrfcing receivable occurring during the year
ended December 31, 2011.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
(in thousands)
Pre-M odification Post-M odification

Outstanding Outstanding
Number of Recorded Recorded Impairment
Contracts Investment Investment Accrued
Commercial Real Estate:
Non-owner occupied 2 $ 1,092 $ 1,092 $ -
Construction and Farmland:
Commercial 1 1,530 1,530 713
Residential
Single family 8 3,657 3,389 393
Total 11 $ 6,279 $ 6,011 $ 1,106

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynpestructured eleven loans by granting concessiortsorrowers experiencing financial
difficulties. For each of the two commercial resitate loans above, two commercial real estateslogre combined into the one restructured
commercial real estate loan. On one of the twadpaonthly payments were converted from princgral interest to interest only. The other loan
remained on principal and interest payments, baibtiiginal loans were re-amortized. The residéetastruction loan was modified by granting a
reduction in the required monthly payment. Durihg year ended December 31, 2011, eight single yardidential loans were modified. Four of
the loans were modified by granting interest raguctions, another two had payment requirementsfisddrom principal and interest to interest
only, while the two remaining loans were modifigddranting a reduction in the required monthly papin



Loans by class of financing receivable modified B&s within the previous 12 months and for whicerthwas a payment default during the year
ended December 31, 2011 were:

Year Ended December 31, 2011
(in thousands)

Number of Recorded
Contracts Investment
Commercial Real Estate:
Owner occupied 2 $ 613
Non-owner occupied 1 898
Construction and Farmland:
Commercial 1 99
Residential:
Single family 5 1,596
Total 9 $ 3,206

A loan is considered to be in payment default ahisethirty days contractually past due underninadified terms.
NOTE 6. Bank Premises and Equipment, Net
The major classes of bank premises and equipmenthartotal accumulated depreciation at Decembg2@11 and 2010 were as follows:

December 31,

2011 2010
(in thousands)
Land $ 3,727 $ 4,004
Buildings and improvements 14,914 14,799
Furniture and equipment 7,063 6,749
$ 25,704 $ 25,552
Less accumulated depreciation 10,504 9,840
Bank premises and equip ment, net$ 15,200 $ 15,712

Depreciation expense on buildings and improvemesats $443,000, $404,000, and $388,000 for the yeraded December 31, 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively. Depreciation expense on fureiind equipment was $400,000, $375,000, and @3@dor the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

The Bank leases certain facilities under operal@ages, which expire at various dates through 20BRese leases require payment of certain
operating expenses and contain renewal optionse tdtal minimum rental commitment at December 31112under these leases was due as
follows:

December 31, 2011
(in thousands)

2012 $ 104
2013 82
2014 50
2015 50
2016 50
Thereafter 804

$ 1,140

The total building and equipment rental expense $i&¥,000, $176,000, and $174,000 in 2011, 20102809, respectively.



NOTE 7. Deposits

The composition of deposits at December 31, 2081280 was as follows:

December 31,
2011 2010
(in thousands)

Noninterest bearing demand deposits $ 107,237 $ 98,256

Savings and interest bearing demand deposits:

NOW accounts $ 78,927 $ 72,413
Money market accounts 83,393 69,766
Regular savings accounts 47,838 42,369
$ 210,158 $ 184,548
Time deposits:
Balances of less than $100,000 $ 76,956 $ 85,269
Balances of $100,000 and more 54,114 61,223
$ 131,070 $ 146,492
$ 448,465 $ 429,296

Time deposits with balances of less than $100,80Mude $10,107,000 and $20,172,000 in brokeredficates of deposit at December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively. Time deposits with batanzf $100,000 and more include $6,523,000 and7861000 in brokered certificates of deposit
at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The outstanding balance of time deposits at DeceBhe2011 was due as follows:

December 31, 2011
(in thousands)

2012 $ 97,180
2013 12,970
2014 15,364
2015 2,701
2016 2,855

$ 131,070

Deposit overdrafts reclassified as loans totalesb¥100 and $107,000 at December 31, 2011 and 284/%ectively.

NOTE 8. Borrowings

The Company, through its subsidiary bank, borrawsl$ in the form of federal funds purchased, stearsold under agreements to repurchase and
Federal Home Loan Bank advances.

Federal fund lines of credit are extended to thekBay nonaffiliated banks with which a corresportdeanking relationship exists. The line of

credit amount is determined by the creditworthinesthe Bank and, in particular, its regulatory italpratios, which are discussed in Note 16.
Federal funds purchased generally mature eachésssohay. The following table summarizes infornmatielated to federal funds purchased for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,

2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)
Balance at year-end $ - $ -
Average balance during the year 85 503
Average interest rate during the year 0.54% 0.70%
Maximum month-end balance during the year $ 1,945 $ 4,680
Gross lines of credit at year-end 36,000 36,000

Unused lines of credit at year-end 36,000 36,000



Securities sold under agreements to repurchadecarewings in which the Bank obtains funds by sellsecurities and simultaneously agreeing to
repurchase the securities for an agreed upon teangaven price which includes interest. The Comyphad $0 in funds from certain customers
through retail repurchase agreements at Decemhe2(@1. Generally, the term for retail repurchagesements is the next business day. The
Company had $10,000,000 in funds from a largemfirel institution through a wholesale repurchaseagent at December 31, 2011. The original
term of this wholesale repurchase agreement, wiviech executed during 2008, was five years and thategparty has the option to call the debt
after three years. The amount of borrowings thhosecurities sold under agreements to repurchasstiscted by the amount of securities which
are designated for these transactions. The faligwable summarizes information related to se@gitiold under agreement to repurchase for the

years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,

2011 2010
(dollars in thousands)

Balance at year-end $ 10,000 $ 14,395
Average balance during the year 12,416 14,971
Average interest rate during the year 2.93% 2.56%
Maximum month-end balance during the year $ 14,050 $ 15,552
Securities underlying the agreements at year-end:

Carrying value 12,150 19,198

Fair value 12,918 19,667

The Bank had a $112,990,000 line of credit withFlederal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta which was settiea blanket lien on the loan portfolio at
December 31, 2011. The Company had $42,250,086viances outstanding at December 31, 2011 (seésdetbow); therefore, the unused line of
credit totaled $70,740,000. Advances bear intaatst fixed or floating rate depending on the teemd maturity of each advance and numerous

renewal options are available to the Company.

The Company had $20,000,000 in short-term borrosvinigh the FHLB at December 31, 2011. The weiglaeerage interest rate on outstanding
short-term advances at December 31, 2011 was 3.55%.

The Company had $22,250,000 in long-term borrowinik the FHLB at December 31, 2011, which matasdollows: $2,250,000 in 2014 and
$20,000,000 in 2015. The interest rates on thstanding long-term advances at December 31, 20idedafrom 3.02% to 4.07%. The weighted
average interest rate on outstanding long-termrazbsaat December 31, 2011 was 3.50%.



NOTE 9. Income Taxes

The Company files income tax returns with the WhiSates of America and the Commonwealth of ViaginWith few exceptions, the Company is
no longer subject to federal, state, or local inedax examinations for years prior to 2008.

The net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2012Gi@ consisted of the following components:

December 31,
2011 2010
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan losses $ 2973 $ 2,418
Deferred compensation 109 116
Accrued postretirement benefits 51 49
Accrued pension benefits - 147
Home equity origination costs 36 45
Other than temporary impairment 876 846
Interest rate swap 197 57
Other real estate owned expenses 13 39
Other 125 243
$ 4,380 $ 3,960
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment $ 566 $ 458
Securities available for sale 1,681 796
$ 2,247 $ 1,254

Net deferred tax asset $ 2,133 $ 2,706

The Company has not recorded a valuation allow#émcdeferred tax assets because management betleateis is more likely than not that they
will be ultimately realized.

Income tax expense for the years ended Decemb@031, 2010 and 2009 consisted of the following ponents:

December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)
Current tax expense $ 1,688 $ 1,381 % 1,667
Deferred tax (benefit) (317) (362) (652)
$ 1,371 $ 1,019 $ 1,015

The following table reconciles income tax expersdhie statutory federal corporate income tax amowhich was calculated by applying the
federal corporate income tax rate to pre-tax incéon¢he years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 ad@. 20

December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)
Statutory federal corporate tax amount $ 1,936 $ 1572 % 1,515
Tax-exempt interest income (563) (544) (505)
Other (2 9) 5

$ 1,371 $ 1,019 $ 1,015




NOTE 10. Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

Effective December 31, 2006, the pension plan wasnaled and frozen so that no further benefitsagitirue under the plan and no additional
employees may become participants. The pensionvda terminated effective September 30, 2011 &adraceiving final approval from the
Internal Revenue Service, distributions in the faffump-sum cash payments to plan participantiwers and purchasing annuity contracts were
completed on December 19, 2011. The Company rézedja loss of $589,000 on the distribution ofplen’s assets. The loss is included in
salaries and employee benefits expense on the latatso statements of income. An additional $1@Q,H expense was incurred during 2011 for
the purchase of employee retirement annuities. ékpense is included in outside service fees owdhsolidated statements of income.

The Company provides certain health care andnigeiiance benefits for six retired employees whaehaet certain eligibility requirements. All
other employees retiring after reaching age 65teandng at least 15 years of service with the Compaili be allowed to stay on the Company’s
group life and health insurance policies, but Ww#l required to pay premiums. The Company’s shatbeoestimated costs that will be paid after
retirement is generally being accrued by chargexpense over the employees’ active service petmtige dates they are fully eligible for benefits,
except that the Company’s unfunded cost that ekistddanuary 1, 1993 is being accrued primarily gtraight-line manner that will result in its full
accrual by December 31, 2013.

The following amounts that have not been recogniadtie net periodic benefit cost of the postraetieat benefit plan for the year ended December
31, 2011 and are included in other comprehensigeenie: unrecognized net actuarial gain of $50. ffaesition obligation included in other
comprehensive income and expected to be recogitizbe net periodic benefit cost of the postretiearbenefit plan during 2012 is $0.

The following tables provide a reconciliation oktlchanges in the benefit obligations and fair valti@assets for 2011, 2010, and 2009 and a
statement of the funded status at December 31,, 200D and 2009 for the pension and postretirefpenéfit plans of the Company. The Company
uses a December 31st measurement date for its plans



Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss (gain)
Benefits paid
Settlement loss
Benefit obligation, ending

Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets, ending

Funded Status:
Funded status
Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Unrecognized net transition obligation
Unrecognized prior service cost
Prepaid (accrued) benefits

Amounts Recognized in Consolidated
Balance Sheets:
Prepaid benefit cost
Accrued benefit (liability)

Amounts Recognized in Accumulate
Other Comprehensive Income
Net actuarial loss (ga
Net transition obligatic
Deferred tax (benefit)/liabili

Pension Plar Postretirement Benefits Plai
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands'

$ 3,684 3,801 $ 3,859 $ 144 $ 154 $ 254
101 189 191 6 7 14
143 (246) 95 6 (11) (105)
(4,069) (60) (344) (6) (6) 9)

141 - - - - -

$ -$ 3684 3% 3,801 $ 150 $ 144 $ 154

$ 32%2 2,955 $ 2,691 $ - $ - $ -

87 78 498 - -

730 279 110 6 6 9
(4,069) (60) (344) (6) (6) 9)

$ $ 32523 2,955 $ - $ - $ -

Pension Plar Postretirement Benefits Plai
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands'

$ -$ (432)$ (846) $ (150) $ (144) $ (154)

$ $ (432)$ (846) $ (150) $ (144) $ (154)

$ -$ - % - $ -3 - % -

- (432) (846) (150) (144) (154)

$ - 3 (432)$ (846) $ (150) $ (144) $ (154)

$ - $ 434 $  84¢ $ (78 $ (93)$ (92

- - - - - 2

- 147, (288 26 30 31

$ - $ 287 $ 55¢ $ (50) $ (63) $ (59)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the pengitam was distributed during 2011, and as a rethdte was no accumulated benefit obligation at
December 31, 2011. The accumulated benefit oldigebr the pension plan was $3,684,000, and $308Wl at December 31, 2010, and 2009,
respectively. Due to the amendment of the penpian, the accumulated benefit obligation and ptegdenefit obligation are equivalent at

December 31, 2010 and 2009.



The following tables provide the components of petiodic benefit cost of the pension plan and poisement benefit plan for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009:

Pension Plan Postretirement Benefits Plan
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands’

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost:

Service cost $ - % -$ - $ -$ -$ -
Interest cost 101 189 191 6 7 14
Expected return on plan assets (83) (146) (132) - - -
Amortization of prior service costs - - - - - -
Amortization of transition obligation - - - - 2 3
Recognized net loss due to settlement 141 - - - - -
Amortization of net actuarial loss 572 235 365 1)1 9) -
Net periodic benefit cc $ 731 % 278 $ 424 $ (5) $ - $ 17

The total recognized net periodic benefit cost atiter comprehensive income for the pension plan ${a83,000), $(5,000), and $4,000 during
2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. The totalgeaed net periodic benefit cost and other comprsive income for the postretirement benefits
plan was $(6,000), $2,000, and $(54,000) duringl2@010, and 2009, respectively.

The benefit obligation for the pension plan waselated using the following assumptions; weightedrage discount rate of 6.10% for 2010 and
5.00% 2009. Due to the amendment of the pensim plo rate of compensation increase was assumed 2010 and 2009.

The net periodic benefit cost for the pension plas calculated using the following assumptionsgivieid average discount rate of 6.10% for 2011
and 5.00% for 2010 and 2009, expected long-terormetn plan assets of 5.00% for 2011, 2010, an®.2@ue to the amendment of the pension
plan, no rate of compensation increase was asstome@@11, 2010, and 2009.

The benefit obligation for the postretirement bénghn was calculated using a weighted averageodist rate of 4.25% for 2011, 5.00% for 2010,
and 6.00% for 2009. For measurement purposes,08%0annual rate of increase in the per capitaaosbvered health care benefits was assumed
for 2012 and 2013, 8.00% for 2014 and 2015, an@%.6r 2016 and thereafter. If these rates weteeased by 1.00% in each year, the benefit
obligation at December 31, 2011 would have incredse$6,000 and the net periodic benefit cost fit22would have increased by less than $500.
If these rates were decreased by 1.00% in each geabenefit obligation at December 31, 2011 wchade decreased by $6,000 and the net
periodic benefit cost for 2011 would have decredselss than $500.

The following table provides the pension plan’ssasdlocation as of December 31, 2010:

December 31, 2010
Equity securities -

Debt securities 57%
Other 43%
Total 100%

All plan assets were distributed to pension plamefieiaries during 2011 and no future paymentseapected.
Estimated future benefit payments at December @11 2which reflect expected future service, as apate, were as follows:

Postretirement

Benefits
(in thousands)
2012 $ 14
2013 14
2014 14
2015 14
2016 14

2017 - 2020 60



The pension financial instruments measured andtegpat fair value are classified and disclosedria of the following categories:

e Levell Inputs to the valuation methodology are quotedgsriunadjusted) for identical assets or liabilitiesctive
markets.
e Level2 Inputs tothe valuation methodology include quoted pricessianilar assets and liabilities in active mark

and inputs that are observable for the asset bilitia either directly or indirectly, for substaally the full
term of the financial instrument.

e Level3 Inputs to the valuation methodology arehservable and significant to the fair value measient.

The following table presents balances of pensisetasneasured at fair value on December 31, 2010:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2010 Usi
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant
Balance as of Identical Observable Unobservable

December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs

2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(in thousands’

Cash $ 1 $ 1 8 - $ -
Cash Equivalents 1,406 1,406 - -
AA corporate bonds 131 - 131 -
Mutual Funds® 1,714 1,714 - -
Total assets at fair value $ 3252 $ 3,121 $ 131 % -

(a) 100% of mutualfunds are invested in fixed int® corporate bond securitit

(b) 70% of mutualfunds investin common stockarfle-cap companies. 30% of mutualfunds invesbimmon stock of mid-ca
companies. 10% of mutualfunds investin anom stock of small-cap companie

NOTE 11. Stock-Based Compensation

The exercise price of stock options granted unisrplan, both incentive and non-qualified, cartmetess than the fair market value of the common
stock on the date that the option is granted. mhrimum term for an option granted under this péaten years and options granted may be subject
to a vesting schedule. All of the non-qualifiedcst options granted under the plan had a ten ywzar &nd were subject to a vesting period. The
following table summarizes options outstanding ac&nber 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009:

2011 2010 2009
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Aggregate Average Average
Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Value Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning of year 22,000 $ 21.59 22,000 $ 2159 22,000 $ 21.59
Granted - - - - - -
Exercised - - - - - -
Forfeited - - - - - -
Outstanding, end of year 22,000 $ 21.59 22,000 $ 2159 22,000 $ 21.59
Exercisable, end of year 22,000 $ 2159 % - 22,000 $ 2159 22,000 $ 2159
Weighted average fair value of
options granted during the year $ - $ - $ -

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table is eqodhe amount that would have been received byhien holders had all options been exercised
on December 31, 2011. It is derived from the amdaynwhich the current market value of the undedystock exceeds the exercise price of the
option. This amount fluctuates in relation to tharket value of the Company’s stock.

The following table summarizes options outstanding exercisable at December 31, 2011:



Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Price Outstanding Life (in years) Price Exercisable Price
$ 21.63 11,000 175 % 21.63 11,000 $ 21.63
21.55 11,000 2.75 21.55 11,000 21.55
$ 2155-2163 22,000 225 % 2159 22000 $ 2159

Restricted Stock provides grantees with rights Haraes of common stock upon completion of a serpiegod or achievement of Company
performance measures. During the restriction gerdl shares are considered outstanding and didilare paid to the grantee. Outside directors
are periodically granted restricted shares whictt weer a period of less than six months. Duri$12 executive officers were granted restricted
shares which vest over a three year service pamnadrestricted shares which vest based on meegirigrmance measures over a three year period.
The following table presents the activity for Reted Stock for the years ended December 31, 22010 and 2009:

2011 2010 2009

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Nonvested, beginningof year 12,772 $ 16.89 13,335 $ 20.00 11,492 $ 26.16
Granted 12,300 16.76 12,900 16.14 11,700 16.06
Vested (9,291) 17.55 (7,936) 19.51 (7,509) 21.12
Forfeited (2,081) 18.38 (5,527) 18.86 (2,348) 26.94
Nonvested, end of year 13,700 $ 16.11 12,772  $ 16.89 13,335 $ 20.00

The Company recognizes compensation expense ogaesiricted period. Compensation expense was,$166$116,000, and $166,000 during
2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. The total tgiate fair value of Restricted Stock which vested $163,000 and $155,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Unrdzedncompensation cost related to unvested ResdriStock was $47,000 at December 31,
2011. This amount is expected to be recognized @aveeighted average period of 1.1 years.

NOTE 12. Employee Benefits

The Company has established an Employee Stock GhipelPlan (ESOP) to provide additional retiremesnddfits to substantially all employees.
Contributions can be made to the Bank of Clarker@p&mployee Retirement Trust to be used to puestias Company’s common stock. There
were no contributions in 2011, 2010, and 2009.

The Company sponsors a 401(k) savings plan undiehveigible employees may defer a portion of salam a pretax basis, subject to certain IRS
limits. Prior to January 1, 2007, the Company mmetic50 percent of employee contributions, on a mari of six percent of salary deferred, with
Company common stock or cash, as elected by eaplogee. The shares for this purpose are providattipally by the Company’'s employee
stock ownership plan (ESOP), supplemented, as dednenewly issued shares. Contributions underpta@ amounted to $739,000 in 2011,
$668,000 in 2010, and $675,000 in 2009. In conjonanith amending the pension plan, the 401(khpleas amended, effective January 1, 2007, to
include a non-elective safe-harbor employer coutiiim and an age-weighted employer contributioracHEDecember 31 qualifying employees
will receive a non-elective safe-harbor contribatiequal to three percent of their salary for theary Also, each December S31qualifying
employees will receive an additional contributiaaséd on their age and years of service. The prgewof salary for the age-weighted contribution
increases on both factors, age and years of sewittea minimum of one percent of salary and aimaxn of ten percent of salary.

The Company has established an Executive Suppleineicome Plan for certain key employees. Bendfitsto be paid in monthly installments
following retirement or death. The agreement mesithat if employment is terminated for reasohgimthan death or disability prior to age 65, the
amount of benefits could be reduced or forfeitd@the executive supplemental income benefit expdrssed on the present value of the retirement
benefits, was $13,000 in 2011, $13,000 in 2010,%irH000 in 2009. The plan is unfunded; howevfer ihsurance has been acquired on the lives
of these employees in amounts sufficient to diggiéne plan’s obligations.



NOTE 13. Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company makesus commitments and incurs certain contingdj@bilities, which are not reflected in the
accompanying financial statements. These comminand contingent liabilities include various gudess, commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit. The Company does ntitipate any material losses as a result of thesamitments.

During the normal course of business, various lefzains arise from time to time which, in the opimiof management, will have no material effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

As a member of the Federal Reserve System, the Bardquired to maintain certain average resenlanibas. These reserve balances include
usable vault cash and amounts on deposit with duefal Reserve Bank. For the final weekly repgrferiod in the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, the amount of daily average requiedances were approximately $630,000 and $824@8pectively. In addition, the Bank was
required to maintain a compensating balance ongiepdh a correspondent bank in the amount of $280 at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

See Note 19 with respect to financial instrumerit wff-balance-sheet risk.
NOTE 14. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Actiities
Interest Rate Swaps

The Company uses interest rate swaps to reduceshtgte risks and to manage interest expensesnfying into these agreements, the Company
converts floating rate debt into fixed rate debtalbernatively, converts fixed rate debt into fiag rate debt. Interest differentials paid oreiged
under the swap agreements are reflected as adjustimeinterest expense. These interest rate s\gegements are derivative instruments that
qualify for hedge accounting as discussed in NoteThe notional amounts of the interest rate swagsnot exchanged and do not represent
exposure to credit loss. In the event of defaylabcounterparty, the risk in these transactionthéscost of replacing the agreements at current
market rates.

On December 4, 2008, the Company entered intotarest rate swap agreement related to the outstgnidist preferred capital notes. The swap
agreement became effective on December 1, 200& ndkional amount of the interest rate swap wa®(7000 and has an expiration date of
December 1, 2016. The estimated fair value wa8®%(®0) at December 31, 2011 and $(169,000) atrbleee 31, 2010. Under the terms of the
agreement, the Company pays interest quarterlyiiaéd rate of 2.85% and receives interest quartaria variable rate of three month LIBOR. The
variable rate resets on each interest payment dette. Company recognized interest expense of $080/02011 and $178,000 in 2010 related to
this interest rate swap.

The following table summarizes the fair value ofiggive instruments at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair
Location Value Location Value

(dollars in thousands)
Derivatives designated
as hedging instruments
under GAAP

Interest rate swap contracts Other Liabilities $ 580 Other Liabilities $ 169

The following tables present the effect of the daive instrument on the Consolidated Balance She®@ecember 31, 2011 and 2010 and the
Consolidated Statements of Income for Decembe@1], 2010, and 2009:

Year Ended December 31,

Amount of Loss

Amount of Loss Location of Loss Reclassified from
Recognized in OCI Reclassified from Accumulated
Derivatives in GAAP on Derivative Accumulated OCI OCl into Income
Cash Flow Hedging (Effective Portion) into Income (Ineffective Portion)
Relationships 2011 2010 (Ineffective Portion) 2011 2010 002
(dollars in thousands) (dollars in thousands)

Interest rate swap
contracts, net of tax ~ $ (271 (273) N/A $ -3 -$ -



NOTE 15. Transactions with Directors and Officers

The Bank grants loans to and accepts deposits ifsodirectors, principal officers and related pestof such persons during the ordinary course of
business. The aggregate balance of loans to digggirincipal officers and their related partiessv$11,210,000 and $10,281,000 at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. These balances tefiead principal additions of $5,097,000 and tgighcipal payments of $4,168,000 during 2011.
The aggregate balance of deposits from directaiscipal officers and their related parties was $10,000 and $7,436,000 at December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 16. Capital Requirements

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bamlsubject to various regulatory capital requireimi@dministered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requéet® can initiate certain mandatory and possibtjitemhal discretionary actions by regulators
that, if undertaken, could have a direct mateffiot on the Company’s and Bank's financial statetsie Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actidghe Company and the Bank must meet specific cagitalelines that involve quantitative
measures of their assets, liabilities, and cexéfitvalance-sheet items as calculated under regylaiccounting practices. The capital amounts and
classification are also subject to qualitative joggts by the regulators about components, risk igigs, and other factors. Prompt corrective
action provisions are not applicable to bank hadiompanies.

Quantitative measures established by regulaticensure capital adequacy require the Company an8ah& to maintain minimum amounts and
ratios (set forth in the table below) of total aFidr 1 capital (as defined in the regulations)isk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier ltalp
to average assets (as defined). Management belieaethe Company and the Bank met all capitajaaley requirements to which they are subject
at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

At December 31, 2011, the most recent notificafimm the Federal Reserve Bank categorized the Banell capitalized under the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action. To be gatézed as well capitalized, an institution mustintegin minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-
based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set fortheéntdbles. There are no conditions or events sheaotification that management believes have
changed the Bank's category. The following tabksents the Company’s and the Bank's actual capitalints and ratios at December 31, 2011
and 2010:

Minimum
To Be Well
Minimum Capitalized Under
Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Requirement Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2011:
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated $ 67,155 16.96% $ 31,670 8.00% N/A

Bank of Clarke County $ 60,930 15.55% $ 31,338 8.00% $ 39,172 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated $ 62,159 15.70% $ 15,835 4.00% N/A

Bank of Clarke County $ 55986 14.29% $ 15,669 4.00% $ 23,503 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets

Consolidated $ 62,159 10.88% $ 22,844 4.00% N/A

Bank of Clarke County $ 55986 9.86% $ 22,706 4.00% $ 28,382 5.00%
December 31, 2010:
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated $ 64,692 16.02% $ 32,299 8.00% N/A

Bank of Clarke County $ 58,111 14.56% $ 31,935 8.00% $ 39,919 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

Consolidated $ 59,619 14.77% $ 16,150 4.00% N/A

Bank of Clarke County $ 53,095 13.30% $ 15,967 4.00% $ 23,951 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets

Consolidated $ 59,619 10.62% $ 22,462 4.00% N/A

Bank of Clarke County $ 53,095 9.56% $ 22,226 4.00% $ 27,783 5.00%



NOTE 17. Restrictions On Dividends, Loans and Advaces

Federal and state banking regulations place cemratnictions on dividends paid and loans or adeamiade by the Bank to the Company. The total
amount of dividends which may be paid at any datgenerally limited to the lesser of the Bank'siretd earnings or the three preceding years'
undistributed net income of the Bank. Loans oramtes are limited to 10% of the Bank's capitalkstoad surplus on a secured basis. In addition,
dividends paid by the Bank to the Company woulgtmhibited if the effect thereof would cause theBs capital to be reduced below applicable
minimum capital requirements.

At December 31, 2011, the Bank's retained earnagslable for the payment of dividends to the Comypavas $7,278,000. Accordingly,
$51,879,000 of the Company's equity in the nettasfehe Bank was restricted at December 31, 2FLinds available for loans or advances by the
Bank to the Company amounted to $1,146,000 at DieeeBi, 2011.

NOTE 18. Dividend Investment Plan

The Company has a Dividend Investment Plan, whiichiva participants’ dividends to purchase additisteares of common stock at 95% of its fair
market value on each dividend record date.

NOTE 19. Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Steet Risk

The Company, through its subsidiary bank, is ayptrtcredit related financial instruments with bfitance-sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its cusmm&hese financial instruments include commitragntextend credit, unfunded commitments
under lines of credit, and commercial and standiteds of credit. Such commitments involve, toyireg degrees, elements of credit and interest
rate risk in excess of the amount recognized irctresolidated balance sheets.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss is repreddmyehe contractual amount of these instrumefitee Company uses the same credit policies in
making commitments as it does for on-balance-sheguments.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the following finahimstruments were outstanding whose contractiarsorepresent credit risk:

2011 2010
Commitments to extend credit $ 9,448,000 $ 6,111,000
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 63,000 64,195,000
Commercial and standby letters of credit 5,684, 4,953,000

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totlerdcustomer as long as the terms offered ampéaitle and certain other conditions are met.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration datesother termination clauses. Since these commitsnemy expire or terminate, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represeutdutash requirements. The amount of collatertlined, with regards to these commitments,
is based on management's credit evaluation ofubt®mer.

Unfunded commitments under lines of credit are s for possible future extensions of credit xsting customers. Unfunded commitments
under lines of credit include, but are not limitegd home equity lines of credit, overdraft protentiines of credit, credit cards, and unsecured and
secured commercial lines of credit. The terms @mtitions of these commitments vary dependinghenline of credit's purpose, collateral, and
maturity. The amount disclosed above represetasuaused lines of credit for which a contractwitie Bank has been established.

Commercial and standby letters of credit are comait commitments issued by the Bank to guarartieeperformance of a customer to a third
party. These letters of credit are primarily isbt@ support public and private borrowing arrangetsie Essentially all letters of credit issued have
expiration dates within one year. The credit iiiskolved in issuing letters of credit is essengidhe same as that involved in granting loans to
customers. The Bank holds collateral supportirese¢hcommitments if it is deemed necessary. At Dbee 31, 2011, none of the outstanding
letters of credit were collateralized.

The Bank has cash accounts in other commercialshafke amount on deposit in these banks at DeaeBihe011 exceeded the insurance limits
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation by8EXR.

NOTE 20. Trust Preferred Capital Notes

In June 2007, Eagle Financial Statutory Trusthe(tTrust 11”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the @pany, was formed for the purpose of issuing
redeemable capital securities. On June 20, 200%t Tl issued $7,000,000 of trust preferred sei@siand $217,000 in common equity. The
principal asset of Trust Il is $7,217,000 of then@pany’s junior subordinated debt securities with $ame maturity and interest rate structures as
the capital securities. The securities have a IRBE@dexed floating rate of interest and the interate was 2.15% and 1.92% at December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively. The securities have a atangredemption date of September 1, 2037, andubject to varying call provisions beginning
September 1, 2012.

The trust preferred securities are included in Tieapital for regulatory capital adequacy purp@efong as their amount does not exceed 25% of
Tier 1 capital, including total trust preferred ggties. The portion of the trust preferred seitesi not considered as Tier 1 capital, if any, rhay
included in Tier 2 capital. At December 31, 20t total amount ($7,000,000) of trust preferrecliséies issued by Trust Il are included in the
Company'’s Tier 1 capital.



The obligations of the Company with respect toitiseance of the capital securities constitute leafudl unconditional guarantee by the Company of
the Trust's obligations with respect to the capstdurities.

Subject to certain exceptions and limitations, @mwnpany may elect from time to time to defer indegayments on the junior subordinated debt
securities, which would result in a deferral oftdimition payments on the related capital secuitie

NOTE 21. Quarterly Condensed Statements of IncomeUnaudited

The Company’s quarterly net income, net incomeqmnmon share and dividends per common share dafiad and 2010 are summarized as
follows:

2011 Quarter Endec

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(in thousands, except per share amount
Total interest and dividend income $ 6,839 $ 6,864 $ 6,920 $ 6,948
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 4,672 4,706 4,682 4,956
Noninterest income 1,405 1,542 1,394 1,244
Noninterest expenses 4,504 4,444 4,567 5,393
Income before income taxes 1,573 1,804 1,509 807
Net income 1,167 1,323 1,139 693
Net income per common share, basic 0.36 0.40 0.34 0.21
Net income per common share, diluted 0.36 0.40 0.34 0.21
Dividends per common share 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.18
2010 Quarter Endec
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(in thousands, except per share amount

Total interest and dividend income $ 6,844 $ 6,934 $ 6,950 $ 7,061
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 4,879 4,785 2,721 3,549
Noninterest income 1,364 1,383 1,475 1,277
Noninterest expenses 4,058 4,105 4,290 4,356
Income before income taxes 2,185 2,063 (94) 470
Net income 1,578 1,485 81 461
Net income per common share, basic 0.49 0.46 0.02 0.14
Net income per common share, diluted 0.49 0.46 0.02 0.14

Dividends per common share 0.17 0.17 0.17 0.18



NOTE 22. Fair Value Measurements

GAAP requires the Company to record fair value sijients to certain assets and liabilities and terdene fair value disclosures. The fair value
of certain assets and liabilities is an exit pri@gresenting the amount that would be receivesetban asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants.

“Fair Value Measurements” defines fair value, elsthles a framework for measuring fair value, esshigls a three-level valuation hierarchy for
disclosure of fair value measurement and enhansefsdure requirements for fair value measuremeifitee valuation hierarchy is based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asséability as of the measurement date. Thedhesels are defined as follows:

e Levell Inputs to the valuation methodology are quotedgsrifunadjusted) for identical assets or liabilitiesctive
markets.
 Level2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include quateides for similar assets and liabilitiesdntive market:

and inputs that are observable for the asset bilitia either directly or indirectly, for substaally the full
term of the financial instrument.

e Level3 Inputs to the valuation methodology arehservable and significant to the fair value measient.
The following sections provide a description of treduation methodologies used for instruments nregsat fair value, as well as the general
classification of such instruments pursuant tovddeation hierarchy:

Securities Available for Sale: Where quoted priaes available in an active market, securities dassified within Level 1 of the valuation
hierarchy. Level 1 securities would include highityuid government bonds, mortgage products andhaxge traded equities. If quoted market
prices are not available, then fair values arevedgd by using pricing models, quoted prices ofisges with similar characteristics, or discounted
cash flow. Level 2 securities would include U.gemcy securities, mortgage-backed agency securitieigations of states and political
subdivisions and certain corporate, asset backddo#irer securities. In certain cases where thetinited activity or less transparency around
inputs to the valuation, securities are classifigtiin Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy.

Interest Rate Swap: The fair value is estimated biyird party using inputs that are observabl¢éhat can be corroborated by observable market
data, and therefore, is classified within Levelf2he valuation hierarchy.



The following table presents balances of finaneiséets and liabilities measured at fair value aecarring basis at December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Usi
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Balance as of Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(in thousands
Assets:
Securities available for sale
Obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencies $ 18,533 $ - $ 18,533 $ -
M ortgage-backed securities 34,546 - 34,546 -
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 45,766 - 45,766 -
Corporate securities 13,043 - 13,043 -
Equity securities:

Bank preferred stock 2,246 2,246 - -
Total assets at fair value $ 114,134 $ 2,246  $ 111,888 $ -
Liabilities:

Interest rate swap 580 - 580 -
Total liabilities at fair value $ 580 $ - $ 580 $ -

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2010 Usi
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Balance as of Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(in thousands’
Assets:
Securities available for sale
Obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agencies $ 33,150 $ - $ 33,150 $ -
M ortgage-backed securities 16,157 - 16,157 -
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 42,908 - 42,908 -
Corporate securities 15,401 - 15,401 -
Equity securities:

Bank preferred stock 2,178 2,178 - -
Total assets at fair value $ 109,794 $ 2,178  $ 107,616 $ -
Liabilities:

Interest rate swap 169 - 169 -

Total liabilities at fair value $ 169 $ - $ 169 $ -




Certain financial assets are measured at fair vatua nonrecurring basis in accordance with GAARjustments to the fair value of these assets
usually result from the application of lower of tos market accounting or write downs of individaakets.

The following describes the valuation techniquesdusy the Company to measure certain financialremdinancial assets recorded at fair value on
a nonrecurring basis in the financial statements:

Impaired Loans: Loans are designated as impaifahwin the judgment of management based on cunfemtmation and events, it is probable that
all amounts due according to the contractual tesfrtbe loan agreement will not be collected. Theasurement of loss associated with impaired
loans can be based on either the observable mariketof the loan or the fair value of the collaterFair value is measured based on the value of
the collateral securing the loans. Collateral rbayin the form of real estate or business assetadimg equipment, inventory, and accounts
receivable. The vast majority of the collateratdal estate. Level 2 impaired loan value is deiteed by utilizing an income or market valuation
approach based on an appraisal conducted by apedndent, licensed appraiser outside of the Compaimng observable market data. If the
collateral is a house or building in the processafstruction or if an appraisal of the real espatgerty is over two years old, then the fair eailsl
considered Level 3. The value of business equipriebased upon an outside appraisal if deemedfisigmt, or the net book value on the
applicable business’ financial statements if natsidered significant using observable market datavel 3 impaired loan values are determined
using inventory and accounts receivables collatenal are based on financial statement balanceging aeports. Impaired loans for which an
allocation is made to the Allowance for Loan Losaes measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basigy fair value adjustments are recorded in
the period incurred as provision for loan losseshenConsolidated Statements of Income.

Other Real Estate Owned: Assets acquired throogim, lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sahel are initially recorded at the lesser of the fair
value of the property, less selling costs or ttamlbalance outstanding at the date of foreclosare; write-downs based on the asset’s fair value at
the date of acquisition are charged to the allowdoc loan losses. After foreclosure, valuatiors periodically performed by management and
property held for sale is carried at the lowerha hew cost basis or fair value less cost to $eipairment losses on property to be held and ased
measured as the amount by which the carrying amotiat property exceeds its fair value. Costs ghidicant property improvements are
capitalized, whereas costs relating to holding prigpare expensed. The portion of interest cadéding to development of real estate is capitélize
Valuations are periodically performed by managemant any subsequent write-downs are recorded dmr@e to operations, if necessary, to
reduce the carrying value of a property to the loefdts cost or fair value less cost to sell. Bétieve that the fair value component in its vahrat
follows the provisions of GAAP.

The following table summarizes the Company’s finahand nonfinancial assets that were measureairatdlue on a nonrecurring basis during the
period:

Carrying value at December 31, 201
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Balance as of Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(in thousands’
Financial Assets:
Impaired loans $ 6,804 $ - $ -8 6,804

Nonfinancial Assets:
Other real estate owned 2,378 - - 2,378

Carrying value at December 31, 201
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Balance as of Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31, Assets Inputs Inputs
2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(in thousands’
Financial Assets:
Impaired loans $ 5673 $ - $ - $ 5,673

Nonfinancial Assets:
Other real estate owned 1,783 - - 1,783



The fair value of a financial instrument is theremt amount that would be exchanged between williagies, other than in a forced liquidation.
Fair value is best determined based upon quotelehprices. However, in many instances, therenarquoted market prices for the Company’s
various financial instruments. In cases where egloharket prices are not available, fair valuesbased on estimates using present value or other
valuation techniques. Those techniques are sigmifiy affected by the assumptions used, includlirgdiscount rate and estimates of future cash
flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates magt be realized in an immediate settlement of thetriimment. The aggregate fair value amounts
presented may not necessarily represent the umigrgir value of the Company. The following metiscand assumptions were used to estimate
the fair value of the Company’s financial instrurgen

Cash and short-term investments/restricted invesisfeccrued interest: The fair value was equ#ieccarrying amount.

Securities: The fair value, excluding restrictedwgities, was based on quoted market prices. faihealue of restricted securities approximateel th
carrying amount based on the redemption provisidnise issuers.

Loans: The fair value of variable rate loans, \whieprice frequently and with no significant chamgeredit risk, was equal to the carrying amount.
The fair value of all other loans was determineshgisliscounted cash flow analysis. The discouté mas equal to the current interest rate on
similar products.

Deposits and borrowings: The fair value of demdeplosits, savings accounts, and certain money maek®sits was equal to the carrying amount.
The fair value of all other deposits and borrowimgs determined using discounted cash flow analyEige discount rate was equal to the current
interest rate on similar products.

Off-balance-sheet financial instruments: The failue of commitments to extend credit was estimaigidg the fees currently charged to enter
similar agreements, taking into account the remainérms of the agreements and the credit worthioethe counterparties. The fair value of fixed
rate loan commitments also considered the diffexdiaween current interest rates and the comniittecest rates. The fair value of standby letters
of credit was estimated using the fees currentlgrghd for similar agreements or on the estimatest tm terminate or otherwise settle the
obligations with the counterparties.

The carrying amount and fair value of the Compafiyancial instruments at December 31, 2011 and2@4re as follows:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(in thousands’ (in thousands
Financial assets:
Cash and short-term investments $ 21,941 $ 21,941 $ 13,970 $ 13,970
Securities 114,134 114,134 109,794 109,794
Restricted Investments 3,520 3,520 3,982 3,982
Loans, net 401,681 418,230 401,338 416,669
Accrued interest receivable 2,037 2,037 2,179 2,179
Financial liabilities:
Deposits $ 448,465 $ 449,990 $ 429,296 $ 430,627
Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase 10,000 10,350 14,395 14,950
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 42,250 44,833 52,250 54,853
Trust preferred capital notes 7,217 7,217 7,217 7,217
Accrued interest payable 336 336 417 417
Interest rate swap contract 580 580 169 169

The Company assumes interest rate risk (the rekgbneral interest rate levels will change) duiisgiormal operations. As a result, the fair ealu
of the Company's financial instruments will chang®gen interest rate levels change and that changebmaither favorable or unfavorable to the
Company. Management attempts to match maturifiessets and liabilities in order to minimize iretgrrate risk. However, borrowers with fixed
rate obligations are less likely to prepay theingipal balance in a rising rate environment andearlikely to do so in a falling rate environment.
Conversely, depositors who are receiving fixed naterest payments are more likely to withdraw feibeéfore maturity in a rising rate environment
and less likely to do so in a falling rate envir@mth Management monitors rates and maturitiesséta and liabilities and attempts to minimize
interest rate risk by adjusting the terms of neank and deposits and by investing in securitieh witms that mitigate the Company's overall
interest rate risk.

NOTE 23. Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated events and transactitiseguent to December 31, 2011 but before the diabatatements are issued. Based on

definitions and requirements of Generally Accepdedounting Principles for “Subsequent Events”, @@mpany has not identified any subsequent
events that require adjustment to, or disclosuréhimfinancial statements.



Assets
Cash held in subsidiary bank

Due from banks

Securities available for sale

NOTE 24. Condensed Financial Information — ParenCompany Only

EAGLE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

(Parent Company Only)
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2011 and 2010

(dollars in thousands)

Investment in subsidiaries, at cost, plus simitiuted net income

Investment in limited partnership

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Trust preferred capital notes

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders' Equity

Preferred stock
Common stock
Surplus

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholdeguity

2011 2010
$ 313 164
503 502
5,165 5,793
59,157 54,251
77 536
$ 65,915 61,246
$ 7,217 7,217
608 200
$ 7,825 7,417
$ - -
8,217 8,124
9,568 9,076
37,374 35,419
2,931 1,210
$ 58,090 53,829
$ 65,915 61,246




EAGLE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
(Parent Company Only)
Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009
(dollars in thousands)

Income
Dividends from subsidiary bank
Interest and dividends on securities availtdieale
(Loss) on equity investments
Other income (loss)
Total income

Expenses
Interest expense on borrowings
Other operating expenses
Total expenses

Income before income tax (benefit) aquity
in undistributed net income obsidiary bank

Income Tax (Benefit)

Income before equity in undistribdite
net income of subsidiary bank

Equity in Undistributed Net Income of Subsidiary Bank
Net income

2011 2010 2009
1,600 1,500 1,200
313 368 384
(108) 16 (40)
1,805 1,884 1,544
317 316 319
179 112 115
496 428 434
1,309 1,456 1,110
(122) (41) (52)
1,431 1,497 1,162
2,891 2,108 2,279
4322 3,605 3,441




EAGLE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.
(Parent Company Only)
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009
(dollars in thousands)

2011 2010 2009
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income $ 4,322 $ 3605 $ 3,441
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities
(Loss) on securities 96 - -
Stock-based compensation expense 166 116 165
(Discount accretion) premium amortizat@nsecurities (2) (1) 1
Undistributed earnings of subsidiary bank (2,891) (2,108) (2,279)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) in other assets (91) (24) )
(Decrease) increase in other liabditie (4) 3 1
Net cash provided by operating atitis $ 1,596 $ 1591 % 1,322
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from maturities of securities avkilédr sale $ 500 $ 406 $ -
Net cash provided by investing atitg $ 500 $ 406 $ -
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Cash dividends paid $ 1,764) $ (1,645) $ (1,587)
Issuance of common stock, employee benefit pla 89 - 76
Retirement of common stock 271) - -
Net cash (used in) financing acibgit $ (1,946) $ (1,645) $ (1,511)
Increase (decrease) in cash $ 150 $ 3B2 % (189)
Cash
Beginning $ 666 $ 314 % 503
Ending $ 816 $ 666 % 314




Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company, under the supervision and with théigigation of management, including the Companytse€ Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effemtiess of the design and operation of its disclosargrols and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive deffiand Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controts @mcedures were effective as of December 31, #Ehsure that information required to be
disclosed by the Company in reports that it filessobmits under the Securities Exchange Act of 183recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in Sé@s and Exchange Commission rules and forms.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is also responsible for establishing raathtaining adequate internal control over the @any's financial reporting (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under theuites Exchange Act of 1934, as amended). PursmaBection 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, management has conducted an assessniret désign and effectiveness of its internal cdstower financial reporting based on criteria
established innternal Control — Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission
(“COosO").

Management maintains a comprehensive system ahaiteontrol to provide reasonable assurance raggutie reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaatepted accounting principles. The system
of internal control provides for appropriate diaisiof responsibility and is documented by writtetigies and procedures that are communicated to
employees. Those policies and procedures: 1) ipettathe maintenance of records that in reasondbtail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and disposition of the assets of thagany, 2) provide reasonable assurance that tecaipl expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of rgeanzent and directors, 3) provide reasonable asseir@garding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use or dispositionthef Company’s assets that could have a materiattefin the financial statements. Management
recognizes that that there are inherent limitatiover internal controls and financial reporting nmat prevent or detect misstatements. Changes in
conditions will also impact the internal controfesftiveness over time. Eagle Financial Services, &nd subsidiaries maintains an internal auditing
program, under the supervision of the Audit Comemitof the Board of Directors, which independensigesses the effectiveness of the system of
internal control and recommends possible improvesen

Under the supervision and with the participatiorttef Company’s management, including its Chief Exge Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, the Company has evaluated the effectiversdsts internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2011, using théernal
Control — Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission. Based upon thisuetiain,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financficer have concluded as of December 31, 2014 Gbmpany'’s internal control over financial
reporting is adequate and effective and meetsritezia of thelnternal Control — Integrated Framewark

Management’s assessment did not determine any ialateraknesses within the Company’s internal cdrgtaucture. There were no
changes in the Company’s internal control overrfaial reporting during the Company’s quarter en®edember 31, 2011 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeaf, the Company’s internal control over financigborting.

This annual report does not include an attestaport of the company’s registered public accognfirm, regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management’s report was ndiject to attestation by the Company’s registengalip accounting firm pursuant to rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission that permi€trapany to provide only management’s report in dimisual report.

Item 9B.  Other Information

None.



PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprate Governance

The information required by Part Ill, Item 10. icorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Stwe¢rfor the 2012 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held May 16, 2012.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Part Ill, Item 11. igorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Staerfior the 2012 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held May 16, 2012.

Iltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Benefi@l Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Mters

The information required by Part Ill, Item 12. icorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Ste¢rfor the 2012 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held May 16, 2012.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Trasactions, and Director Independence

The information required by Part Ill, Item 13. icorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Ste¢rfior the 2012 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held May 16, 2012.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Part Ill, Item 14. igorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Staerfior the 2012 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held May 16, 2012.



PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Scheduse
(@)(1) Financial Statements
The financial statements are filed as part of frinual Report on Form 10-K within Item 8.
(@)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules are omitted sihey are not required, or are not applicableherrequired information is given in the
financial statements or notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits

The following exhibits, as applicable, are filedlwihis Form 10-K or incorporated by reference tevpus filings.

Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Articles of Incorporation of the Company, résthin electronic format only as of

March 1, 2006 (incorporated herein by referencé&xbibit 3.1 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 1, 2006).

3.2 Bylaws of the Company (incorporated herein bfenence to Exhibit 3.2 of the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, Regisn No. 33-43681).
10.1 Description of Executive Supplemental Incom@enRincorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Annual Report on FathK for the year ended
December 31, 1996).*

10.2 Amended and Restated Employment Agreemenblof R. Milleson (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Compar¥hnual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2008).*

10.3 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement ashes W. McCarty, Jr.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1(.he Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).*

104 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement lifalieth M. Pendleton
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1(f.4he Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).*

10.5 Eagle Financial Services, Inc. Stock IncenBlan (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 of the Company’s Registration Stataion Form S-8, Registration No.
333-118319).*

10.6 Amended and Restated Employment Agreemenblofi E. Hudson (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Comparfhnual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2008).*

10.7 Amended and Restated Employment AgreementadéyKP. Crosen (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Compamhnual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2008).*

10.8 Employment Agreement of Dale L. Fritts (inamated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.8 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfe year ended December 31,
2008).*

10.9 Offer Letter of Kathleen J. Chappell (incogged herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8
of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fear ended December 31,
2008).*

10.10 Agreement, dated August 23, 2011, by anddwmiviEagle Financial Services, Inc. and

Robert C. Boyd (incorporated herein by referenc&xbibit 10.1 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enfleptember 30, 2011).*

10.11 Addendum to the Agreement, dated August @B12by and between Eagle Financial
Services, Inc. and Robert C. Boyd (incorporateeindny reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for qarter ended September 30,

2011).*

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company.

23.1 Consent of Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC

31.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer puesu to Rule 13a-14(a) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted putsoa®ection 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer puesit to Rule 13a-14(a) under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted putsoa®ection 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.



32.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer andhi€f Financial Officer pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Seefiérof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

101 The following materials from the Eagle Finah&arvice, Inc. Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 26dtdtted in Extensible Business
Reporting Language (XBRL) : (i) Consolidated Bakn8heets, (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Income, (iii) Consolidated Statemeft€Changes in Shareholders”
Equity, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flamsl (v) notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

* Management contracts and compensatory plangaadgements.
(b) See Item 15(a)(3) above.
(c) See Item 15(a)(2) above.



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the reaigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredualp authorized.

Eagle Financial Services, Inc.

By: /s/ JOHN R. MILLESON

John R. Milleson

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities indicated/arch 23, 2012.

Signature

/s/ JOHN R. MILLESON

John R. Milleson

/sl KATHLEEN J. CHAPPELL

Kathleen J. Chappell

/sl THOMAS T. GILPIN

Thomas T. Gilpin

/sl ROBERT W. SMALLEY, JR.

Robert W. Smalley, Jr.

/sl THOMAS T. BYRD

Thomas T. Byrd

/sl MARY BRUCE GLAIZE

Mary Bruce Glaize

/s/ DOUGLAS C. RINKER

Douglas C. Rinker

/s/ JOHN D. STOKELY, JR.

John D. Stokely, Jr.

/sl JAMES T. VICKERS

James T. Vickers

/s/ RANDALL G. VINSON

Randall G. Vinson

/sl JAMES R. WILKINS, JR

James R. Wilkins, Jr.

Title

President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director
(principal executive officer)

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(principal financial and accounting officer)

Chairman of the Board and Director

Vice Chairman of the Board and Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director



Exhibit No.
3.1

3.2

101

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

211
231
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Description
Articles of Incorporation of the Company, réstain electronic format only as of

March 1, 2006 (incorporated herein by referencé&xbibit 3.1 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 1, 2006).

Bylaws of the Company (incorporated herein bference to Exhibit 3.2 of the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, Regjisn No. 33-43681).
Description of Executive Supplemental Incom@enRincorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Annual Report on FathK for the year ended
December 31, 1996).*

Amended and Restated Employment Agreemenbluf R. Milleson (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Compar¥hnual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2008).*

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement ashed W. McCarty, Jr.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1(f.8he Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).*

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement lifalieth M. Pendleton
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1.4he Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008).*

Eagle Financial Services, Inc. Stock IncenBan (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 of the Company’s Registration Stataton Form S-8, Registration No.
333-118319).*

Amended and Restated Employment Agreemenblofi E. Hudson (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Compamkhnual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2008).*

Amended and Restated Employment AgreementadéyKP. Crosen (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Comparfhnual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2008).*

Employment Agreement of Dale L. Fritts (inamated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.8 of the Company’'s Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfee year ended December 31,
2008).*

Offer Letter of Kathleen J. Chappell (incomded herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9
of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for §ear ended December 31,
2008).*

Agreement, dated August 23, 2011, by anddmiviEagle Financial Services, Inc. and
Robert C. Boyd (incorporated herein by referenc&xbibit 10.1 of the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enfleptember 30, 2011).*
Addendum to the Agreement, dated August @B12by and between Eagle Financial
Services, Inc. and Robert C. Boyd (incorporateeindoy reference to Exhibit 10.2 of
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for doarter ended September 30,
2011).*

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC

Certification by Chief Executive Officer puesu to Rule 13a-14(a) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted putsoa®ection 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification by Chief Financial Officer puesit to Rule 13a-14(a) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted putdoa®ection 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification by Chief Executive Officer andhi€f Financial Officer pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Segfi6rof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

The following materials from the Eagle Finah&arvice, Inc. Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 26dtdtted in Extensible Business
Reporting Language (XBRL) : (i) Consolidated BakanSheets, (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Income, (iii) Consolidated Statemerit€Changes in Shareholders”
Equity, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flamsl (v) notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

* Management contracts and compensatory plangaadgements.



EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Bank of Clarke County is a wholly-owned subsidiafghe Company. Bank of Clarke County is a Virgibianking corporation,
headquartered in Berryville, Virginia within the @uy of Clarke.

Eagle Financial Statutory Trust Il (the “Trust”)dsvholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. ThissEiwas formed under the
laws of the State of Delaware for the purpose @ifiisg redeemable capital securities.



EXHIBIT 23.1

Smith Elliott Kearns & Company, LLC
Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referancthe previously filed Registration StatementsForm S-8 (No. 333-
118319) and Form S-3 (No. 333-131877 and No. 3324%) pertaining to Eagle Financial Services, b our report dated March 23,
2012 relating to the consolidated financial statetmeof Eagle Financial Services, Inc. includedhis tForm 10-K of Eagle Financial
Services, Inc. for the year ended December 31,.2011

/sl SMITH ELLIOTT KEARNS & COMPANY, LLC
SMITH ELLIOTT KEARNS & COMPANY, LLC

Chambersburg, Pennsylvania
March 23, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John R. Milleson, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fEagle Financial Services, Inc. for the year enDecember 31, 2011,

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigiamlisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfi@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%{nd internal control over financial reportires (defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andéhav

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedares designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatioiatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financigloréing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amssaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimmnd the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitierally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentddsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contanld procedures, as of the end of the period covkyethis report based on such
evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportinigat occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportingdan
5. The registrant's other certifying officer andhdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiégnternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetazammittee of the registrant's board of direct(s persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weadg®s in the design or operation of internal comver financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the tegid's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 23, 2012
/s/ JOHN R. MILLESON

John R. Milleson
President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kathleen J. Chappell, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fEagle Financial Services, Inc. for the year enbDecember 31, 2011,

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigiamlisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd, other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfi@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%({nd internal control over financial reportires (defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andéhav

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedaores designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatioiatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financigloréing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amssaraegarding the reliability of financial repodimmnd the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitierally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentddsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contanld procedures, as of the end of the period covkyethis report based on such
evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportinigat occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportingdan
5. The registrant's other certifying officer andhdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiégnternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetazammittee of the registrant's board of direct(s persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weadg®s in the design or operation of internal comvel financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the tegid's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 23, 2012
/s/ KATHLEEN J. CHAPPELL

Kathleen J. Chappell
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINA NCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION
1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SABANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fKEagle Financial Services, Inc. (the “Company™) flee period ended December 31,
2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion (the "Report"), the undersigned Chief ExeeuOfficer and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company hereby certify, pursuani®U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant tooBe®d6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 that, to our knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®aAct of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report faplesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 23, 2012

/s/ JOHN R. MILLESON

John R. Milleson

President and Chief Executive Officer
/sl KATHLEEN J. CHAPPELL

Kathleen J. Chappell
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



